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Financial Highlights
MBEE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBEE
Revenue increased by approximately 9.0% to RMB274.9 million (2021: . WS A90.0% E AR 27498 B T
RMB252.3 million). (20214 : AR¥2523BETT)

Gross profit increased by approximately 15.3% to RMB160.0 million (2021: - EFIBINA153%E AREE 16008 BT
RMB138.8 million). (20214 : AR¥1388EHETT) °

Loss for the Year decreased by approximately 55.2% to RMB14.2 million  « REEEABR D 45520 = AREE 1428
(2021: Loss of RMB31.7 million). BrQoF : BIEARENTEET) °

Loss per share was RMB1.51 cents (2021: Loss per share RMB3.35 cents). - BREBAARE 1515 (2021 F : %
BEARK3359) -

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend (2021:  « EFETERRNAFE 2 AW REAR
Nil) for the Year or any special dividend (2021: Nil). BQo21F &) IAEZKMNITMAE
RIAR B (2021 4F « ) o

Revenue Gross Profit And Gross Profit Margin
Wz EFRERE
RMB’ million RMB million
AR EHET AR EET
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500.0
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296.5 57.6% 0
300.0 2749 58.2%
252.3 150.0 55.0%
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170.7 138.8 160.0
1000 500
0 0
2020 2021 2022 2020 2021 2022

Loss Before Interest and Tax Net Loss For The Year
SR AEE REFEBE
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREEZET AREEETT
500 50.0
00 (42.9) (32.4) (10.0) 00 (49.6) (31.7) (14.2)
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Chairman’s
Statement

EERIE

To the Shareholders,
On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Nanjing Sinolife United

Company Limited* (the “Company’, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2022, the market faced numerous challenges, including unexpected
COVID-19 pandemic conditions, the Russia-Ukraine conflict, domestic heat
waves and droughts, reduction in demands, supply disruption, and inflation, all
of which have impacted economic development. Due to great pressure caused
by the prevailing economic conditions in the Chinese market, a growing
number of small brands with weaker risk resistance tried to clear their
inventories by lowering selling prices to recover funds and exit the market,
while the competition in the industry also intensified.

The Group will continue to implement the strategy of focusing on the
development of the Good Heath brand. In 2022, Good Heath brand's sales
revenue from e-commerce platforms and the distribution channels for
maternity and child series products in the PRC have both recorded significant
growth. The Group's brand promotion strategy has been successful so far, and
the brand visibility within the industry has improved.

In 2023, the market expects gradual relaxation of pandemic control measures
in response to the improving COVID-19 pandemic. Despite internal and
external pressure, the PRC government will continue to prioritise economic
development, and stabilise it at a comparatively higher target growth rate.
Furthermore, the PRC government will step up its efforts to implement policies
of stabilising investments with more credit facilities and monetary easing plans,
thereby stimulating economic development. Meanwhile, household
consumption is likely to rebound strongly, becoming a new growth
opportunity for the economy.

In 2023, the Group will focus on: (1) continuing to allocate more resources to
research and development in new products to shorten their research and
development cycle, so as to launch new products to meet the demands of
target customers; (2) identifying high-quality suppliers to meet customer
demands and achieve sales growth at lower costs; (3) strengthening online and
offline brand promotions to enhance its brand influence; and (4) further
expanding the Group's sales scale to improve its overall profitability.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express that the Group would grip the
opportunity to promote Good Health series as well as expand its health
products in several sales channels of food business in the PRC, New Zealand
and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

30 March 2023

ARTAEBMESROHBRAE —T-_FFR

EERYE

2022 FRFTMKEN —F - BIEHNEIE - B
SER -BRAEALSE  HRKE - #H4d
Z . BR GEEEETRRANES - R
BT MR Z M/ NG - EEEIRER
NEKX - BEAMERENSFZNBERT @ &E
MEBEGE LBEES  RE™MHE - HKMAT
FEMITEBRF AL -

REBBENTEEERANSETERERE
HIBLRE o PR 20224F » IR MIBEE FREKF
BURTEERPRLHBRENHEERAY
METAREEE - ALEREE EHEREY
BAC - {TERMBE TR -

R2023F  BEEFERBENTE - RIFEEN
FEEWEF - WNEEBREE A - HMNRES
FRIBFNEEFERQERSE 21 A
HEme B RIEEESIBERT AL - XS
HEmiE - BER  REBBE - R
BERE - R REHBEAREERIRE - F
RIEEFRIR R -

R2023F  AEBBEHFAR: WEEMNK
HEROIE  HEWEE  #EE20H
W omEEERRPHNER QBEEEHE
7 R SIS R AT KA M REA A (3) N
SRR M THREEEHE  RBAREFE
7 R@E—FBAREEMNIEERARE

RITEBRNEES -

EE )

AANERREFERT  AREBIERER
ZEEEREERTFRERIER  BARSE
B 7 B - AR P B R N S5 B AR 2 E m 2
% mEAMNRENR -

EER
kL

20233 A30H



Product Information

EmER

GOOD HEALTH
HRmRI

Propolis Capsules Oyster Plus Capsules

“RBBE HERBE

Hi Cal™ Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D Viralex Attack Capsules
B — REHEMELEED HHTHRABE

SUPPORTS JOINT
COMFORT & MOBILITY:

Homis o,

Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules 1-a-day Glucosamine Capsules
BEE*55,000B % SEEEERE

8 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Product Information

EmER

GOOD HEALTH

Y%

Mussel 6000 Capsules Milk Thistle 35,000 Capsules
##/E H60002 & DREBR

Omega 3 Fish Oil Capsules Garcinia Capsules
foHBE BERBE
pz
7
— \\\/
Bilberry & Lutein Capsules Joint Active with UC-Il Capsules
ESEEZBE BRRBE

ARAEBARMAERARTN —E-_—GFH O



Product Information

EmER

10

GOOD HEALTH

YFEm %5

‘ 4 godahealth

Yodified Milk Powdg : Goat Milk
with Lactoferrin /7 ~ Children 3+ Formula
Contains PHA and IgG o~ ‘with DHA, GOS & FOS

OO

godahealth

\ 4 b
Modified Milk Powder with Lactoferrin Goat Milk for Children
HEEARARAD RERREAFDH GARIAB)

Modified Milk Powder with Lactase Calcium Iron and Zinc Nutrient Sprinkles

FEmARIY FHFEER

CalciGrow Nutrient Powder with DHA
and Multivitamins

5 4 A ] R R THEE (BREEWRM)

Probiotic Powder Solid Beverage

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Product Information

EmER

GOOD HEALTH

Y%

(
goddheaith

Good Kids

Vision Chews

|
l gﬁm \“\».,M
By )

Good Kids Vision Chews Kids Magnesium Chews

RERIEGH REEERH

Kids Immune Chews Alage Oil DHA Kids Capsules
RESZEHEGH REZHDHABE

Gummy Candy Series

BREBERAR

BRPEMARMAERAT —T-—F5H 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Group continued to firmly implement its strategy of focusing on
the development of the Good Health brand, vigorously develop its
e-commerce platform, and distribute its maternity and child series products in
the Chinese market. During the Year, both sales revenue from the e-commerce
platform and the distribution of maternity and child series products in the
Chinese market experienced rapid growth. The Group's revenue for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB274.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.0% compared to approximately RMB252.3 million in 2021. The
Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB14.2 million for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 55.2% compared to the loss of
approximately RMB31.7 million in 2021.

During the Year, the Group strengthened the management of its supply chain
system by identifying high-quality suppliers and boosting its production
capacity, so as to accommodate the fast-growing demands from the
e-commerce platform and the maternity and child series products in the
Chinese market. Meanwhile, the Group optimized its logistics and
transportation system to improve the efficiency of inventory turnover.

During the Year, the Group continued to focus on the Good Health brand and
sales promotion through distributors and e-commerce channels, so as to
promote the brand recognition of the Good Health brand in the target
markets. The Group carried out continuous brand building and promotion
mainly through a combination of distributors, pharmacies, duty-free stores and
travel channels, and at the same time through flagship stores on domestic
major e-commerce platforms.

During the Year, in order to enhance market competitiveness of its products
and meet evolving consumer demands, the Group adopted a market-oriented
strategy for research and product development to further strengthen new
products development. During the Year, the Group launched a total of 18 new
products, including 1 Zhongsheng series product, and 7 Good Health series
products, etc. The new products mainly comprised Pannex Joint Cream,
Pannex Immune Capsule, Pannex Digestion Capsule, Milk Calcium Gummy,
DHA Gummy, Elderberry Gummy, Goodkids Manuka Honey Lollipops, etc..

In the Chinese market, the Group continued to develop its domestic
distribution network and e-commerce platforms during the Year. In terms of
e-commerce platforms, the Group continued to cooperate with e-commerce
platforms such as Tmall, JD.com, TikTok, xiaohongshu.com, and HealthPost,
etc..

The Group's overseas diversified sales platforms mainly include international
distribution networks that broadly distributed in various countries, including
the United Kingdom, Germany, Singapore, South Africa, Vietnam, and Thailand,
etc, and local large chain pharmacies, health goods supermarkets and tourist
souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERBNWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB274.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.0% from approximately RMB252.3
million in 2021. The Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB14.2 million
for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 55.2% as compared with
a loss of approximately RMB31.7 million in 2021. The Company’s loss per share
was approximately RMB1.51 cents (2021: loss per share of approximately
RMB3.35 cents) based on the weighted average number of 946,298,370 (2021:
946,298,370) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the Year.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 9.0% from
approximately RMB252.3 million in 2021 to approximately RMB274.9 million for
the Year. During the Year, the Group continued to invest more resources in the
Good Health brand. The increase in sales revenue for the Year was mainly
driven by the growth in revenue from the Good Health brand on e-commerce
platforms.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 15.3% from approximately
RMB138.8 million in 2021 to approximately RMB160.0 million for the Year. The
Group’s gross profit margin in 2022 slightly increased from approximately
55.0% in 2021 to approximately 58.2% for the Year. Such increase in gross profit
margin was mainly due to (i) the Group raised the selling prices of the Good
Health brand products in New Zealand and on e-commerce platforms; and (ii)
the increase in revenue from e-commerce platforms.

Other income and gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly comprised bank interest income,
government grants, rental income and foreign exchange gains, which
decreased from approximately RMB15.1 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB?7.9 million for the Year. Such decrease was mainly due to a decrease in
government grants during the Year and the one-off gain from the disposal of
Shanghai Hejian Nutritional Food Products Company Limited* (_E /&R 24 2
R AR A7) recorded in 2021.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWmR DN

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately 2.5%
from approximately RMB106.0 million in 2021 to approximately RMB108.6
million for the Year, representing approximately 42.0% and 39.5% of the
Group's revenue in 2021 and for the Year, respectively. Such slight increase in
selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to the Group's increased
advertising and promotional efforts on e-commerce distribution channels.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately 9.0% from
approximately RMB70.2 million in 2021 to approximately RMB63.9 million for
the Year, representing approximately 27.8% and 23.3% of the Group's revenue
in 2021 and for the Year, respectively. Such decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly due to a reduction in staff remuneration expenses and a decrease
in property depreciation expenses as a result of the reclassification of a self-use
property into an investment property measured at its fair value.

Income tax expense/(credit)

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately RMB3.7 million
for the Year and an income tax credit of approximately RMB1.4 million in 2021.
The income tax expenses recorded during the Year were mainly because Good
Health Products Limited, one of the Group's subsidiaries, returned to profit
position. The Group's effective tax rates in 2021 and for the Year were (4.2%)
and 35.7%, respectively.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, compared with a loss of approximately RMB31.7
million in 2021, the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB14.2 million for
the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 55.2%.

Reasons for decrease in loss

The decrease in loss for the Year was mainly attributable to: (i) an increase in
revenue brought by the expansion of the Group’s sales operations and change
in sales channels; and (ii) an increase in the Group’s gross profit margin as
e-commerce business, which generally have higher gross margin, contributed
more to the Group's overall revenue during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERBNWmR DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash flow

During the Year, the Group's cash and cash equivalents increased by
approximately RMB1.3 million, which mainly comprised the net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB7.9 million, net cash outflow
used in investing activities of approximately RMB3.5 million, net cash outflow
used in financing activities of approximately RMB4.1 million and exchange
gains of approximately RMB1.0 million.

Inventories

The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB75.3 million as at 31
December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB60.0 million). The
Group's inventories include raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods
and goods merchandise. The balance of inventories increased by
approximately 25.5% compared with that as at 31 December 2021. The Group
increased the reserve of products and raw materials mainly because New
Zealand'’s tourism market is expected to recover in 2023 due to the ease of
COVID-19 restrictions in various countries, resulting in an expectation of further
increase of sales from e-commerce platforms. The inventory turnover days
were approximately 213 days for the Year (2021: approximately 228 days),
decreasing by 15 days or approximately 6.6% compared with that of 2021.
Such decrease was mainly due to strong sales performance and rapid turnover
of Modified Milk Powder with Lactoferrin, a star product of the maternity and
child series under the Good Health brand.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB28.2 million as
at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB26.2
million), representing an increase of approximately RMB2.0 million or
approximately 7.6%. Such increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the
expansion of distribution on business-to-business e-commerce platforms.

Trade payables

The Group's trade payables increased by approximately RMB5.8 million or
approximately 36.9% to approximately RMB21.5 million as at 31 December
2022 (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB15.7 million). Such increase
in trade payables was mainly because of the Group's effort in reserving raw
materials in order to meet the expected increase in product demand brought
by the expected recovery of New Zealand's tourism market in 2023 after the
ease of COVID-19 restrictions in various countries, as well as the expectation of
further increase of sales from e-commerce platforms.
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and outbound
transactions principally in New Zealand dollar, United States dollar, and
Australian dollar. The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring of its foreign exchange exposures. The Directors
consider the Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuation to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any hedging or other alternative
policies to deal with such exposure during the Year.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any outstanding borrowings
or pledge of assets.

Gearing position

The gearing ratio, which represented total net debt (including lease liabilities,
trade payables and other payables and accruals) divided by total equity
attribute to owners of the parent and net debt multiplied by 100%, was 14.1%
and 23.3% as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group invested approximately RMB1.4 million (2021:
approximately RMB1.1 million) for the establishment of research &
development centre, plants and equipment.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments or contingent liabilities (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1. Any future occurrence of force majeure events, natural disasters or
outbreaks of epidemics, including but not limited to those caused by
COVID-19, influenza may restrict business activities in the areas affected
and adversely affect our business and operating results.

2. An increase in the price of raw materials and packaging materials could
adversely affect our business. The Group's products are composed of
certain raw materials such as nutraceuticals, herb extracts, vitamins and
mineral products as well as packaging materials. The Group is affected
by the increase in the prices of these raw materials and packaging
materials, which are determined principally by market forces and the
Group's bargaining power vis- a-vis the Group's suppliers. If the prices of
these raw materials and packaging materials were to increase
significantly, the Group may not be able to offset all price increases by
raising the prices of the Group’s products. Moreover, the Group may lose
competitive advantage if the prices of the Group’s products increase
significantly.
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The Company’s failure to appropriately respond to changing consumer
preferences and introduce new products could significantly harm
customer relationships and product sales of the Group. The continued
success of the Group is particularly subject to changing consumer trends
and preferences and the Company's ability to anticipate and respond to
these changes. If the Company is not able to respond in a timely or
commercially appropriate manner to these changes, relationships with
customers of the Group and product sales could be harmed significantly.
Furthermore, the nutritional supplements industry is characterised by
rapid and frequent changes in demand for new products. The
Company's failure to accurately predict these trends and introduce new
products could negatively impact consumer opinion of the Company.
This could harm customer relationships and cause losses to the market
share of the Group. The success of new product offerings of the Group
depends on a number of factors, including the ability to accurately
anticipate customer needs, innovate and develop new products,
successfully commercialise new products in a timely manner,
competitively pricing the products of the Group, manufacture and
deliver products in sufficient volumes and in a timely manner, and
differentiate product offerings from competitors. If the Group does not
introduce new products or make enhancements to meet the changing
needs of customers in a timely manner, some of the products of the
Group could become obsolete, which could have an adverse effect on
the operating results of the Group.

Foreign exchange risk and fluctuations in exchange rates could have an
adverse effect on business and investors’ environment. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases in United
States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-
party manufacturers in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation or
depreciation of RMB against United States dollars, Australian dollars and
New Zealand dollars may have a significant impact on the Group's
profitability. For example, a depreciation of RMB could increase costs of
purchasing products from Australia and New Zealand, as such
depreciation would require the Group to convert more RMB to obtain
the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender payment. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to
foreign currency risk. The value of RMB against foreign currencies,
including United States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand
dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other things, changes in the
PRC and international political and economic conditions and the PRC
government'’s fiscal, monetary and currency policies. There remains
significant international pressure on the PRC government to adopt a
more flexible currency policy. The Group cannot predict how RMB will
fluctuate in the future. As a result, the fluctuation in the exchange rate
between RMB and other currencies could have an adverse effect on the
Group's business, financial condition and operating results.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quality and dedicated staff are indispensable assets to the Group's success in
the competitive market. By providing comprehensive trainings and corporate
culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain on-going
trainings and development in the nutritional supplements industry.
Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurated with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
all employees. The Group reviews its human resources and remuneration
policies periodically to ensure they are in line with market practice and
regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a work
force of 298 employees (as at 31 December 2021: 279 employees). The total
salaries and related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB71.9
million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB68.9 million).
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Directors, Supervisors Senior Management and Employees

NEEERES

EE

DIRECTORS

The Board consists of 6 Directors, including 3 executive Directors and 3

BEE - 54

independent non-executive Directors.

The information of the Directors is set out as follows:

5=

EXEEhoRETAN

BREIBHATEERS

HEMIFATES -

EEMEHEIIMT

Date of joining Date of
Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities
] Fik MAXEENAE B BE ZEBH AGKRBE
Mr. Gui Pinghu 63 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the strategy and development
executive Director committee of the Board (“Strategy and
Development Committee”);
being responsible for strategic
development of the Company
ER it 635% 199F5A24B EEREWTES 19958248 EFeETERIEREZES
(EBHRBRZEER]])fF
BERAABEIEER
Ms. Zhang Yuan 53 25May 1999 Chief executive officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible
and executive for the management, organisation,
Director implementation of Board decisions;
and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board ('Nomination
Committee’)
SRR L 535% 199F5A25H HEHITERRITEE 0NF6AIVA RLE BEEE - AL EHESS
R &%%AFTk%é g
([REZBE)KE
Ms. Zhu Feifei 41 29 July 2003 Chief production officer 25 October 2012 Chief production officer; a member of
and executive Director the remuneration committee of the
Board ("Remuneration Committee”)
AL 45 2003F7A298 HELEEHRBITEE WNFI0ASAE BHRLEE EZ9ETFHZES
([FHEBE)KE
Mr. Zhang Jitong 50 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Nomination
non-executive (resigned with Committee; a member of each of
Director effect from the audit committee of the Board
25 January 2022) ("Audit Committee’) and
Strategy and Development
Committee
SRER 505% 2018F10A23H BUFNITES 2018F10H238 REZESIF ZFEGET
(R 20225 EvZEg(([BREEE R
1825 BEHT) BRREREEENE
Mr. Yu Bo 52 26January 2022 Independent 26 January 2022 Chairman of the Nomination Committee;
non-executive Director amember of each of the Audit Committee
and Strategy and Development Commlttee
RRFEE S25% 202% 18268  BUFNTES 202F1R26H REZESIF EREEE
ﬁW&%%iaﬁﬁﬁ
Ms. Cai Tianchen 49 23 0October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Audit Committee;
non-executive a member of each of the
Director Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
BERREZL 495% 2018F10A23H BUFRTES 018BF10A2BH ERZESIF HMZEEX
BRREREZEEENE
Mr. Wang Wei 40 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Remuneration
non-executive Committee; a member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee
FEEE 405% 2018F10A23H BUFRTES 018F10A2B R HHMZESIF ERZEEN
RELZEEKE
ARPEBARNERAT —T__FFR 19
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Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (£ 3#), aged 63, the founder of the Group, is the chairman
of the Board (“Chairman”) and was appointed as an executive Director on 24
May 1999. Mr. Gui is also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co. Pty
Ltd. (“Cobayer”) and Good Health Products Limited (“GHP”) (Shanghai Weiyi
Investment Management Co., Ltd.'s ("“Shanghai Weiyi") wholly-owned
subsidiary). He is primarily responsible for the strategic development of the
Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known as
Nanjing Institute of Education* (@ 724 & Z4Br)), majoring in Chinese in July
1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University in
June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse were
interested in approximately 81.18% of the domestic shares of the Company
(the "Domestic Shares”). Mr. Gui was also interested in approximately 4.83%
of the H shares of the Company ("H Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (8RR E & Z1MT A 7)) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (7 55 LL7E
BB &) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general manager
of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (F§ ST A& EFR) from
January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the Company
and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20 years of
experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (5RJR), aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group ("Chief Executive Officer”) on 17 June
2011. Ms. Zhang is also a director of Shanghai Weiyi, GHP, Living Nature Natural
Products Limited and Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily responsible
for the management, organisation and implementation of Board decisions. As
at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was interested in approximately
0.98% of the Domestic Shares and approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional supplements
industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the Company in May
1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration,
which was a part-time programme from Nanjing University in June 2012.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Zhu Feifei (5 ), aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on
25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-tech
Co. Limited* (B8R EEWEERAF]) and Niuhao Health Nutrition
(Nanjing) Co. Limited* (44T & % (B R)B R A E)). Ms. Zhu is primarily
responsible for the production of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Zhu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in July
2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January 2008.
She was appointed as a Director in October 2012.

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University* (8 5%
BEEER K E)) majoring in Business Administration in January 2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jitong (R # Y ), aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018.

Mr. Zhang holds a doctorate degree in management majoring in agricultural
economics management from Nanjing Agricultural University and has been an
associate professor and a professor of the School of Business of Nanjing Normal
University from September 2005 to April 2011 and from May 2011
respectively.

onwards,

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws majoring in ideological and
political education, and a master's degree in management majoring in
enterprise management, from Nanjing Normal University in July 1994 and June
2000, respectively. After Mr. Zhang had obtained a doctorate degree in
management from Nanjing Agricultural University in June 2005, he further
obtained a postdoctoral certificate in laws from Nanjing Normal University.

Mr. Zhang was an independent director of Jiangsu Zhongsheng Gaoke
Environmental Co. Limited* (VT & F & @ BHR FE R 15 B BR 2 7) (formerly
known as J|angsu Gaoke Petrochemical Company Limited* (;T &k BHA (L
13 B BR A &))) from February 2014 to February 2017, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002778).

Mr. Zhang had resigned as the independent non-executive Director of the
Company, and had also ceased to act as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and members of each of the Audit Committee and Strategy and
Development Committee of the Board, with effect from 25 January 2022.

* Foridentification purpose only
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Mr. Yu Bo (5R7K), aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022.

Mr. Yu obtained a doctoral degree in management from Nanjing University in
2006 and a master degree in business administration from Nanjing University
in 2001.

Mr. Yu has been appointed as a director of Nanjing Hexi New City Technology
Venture Capital Fund Co,, Ltd.* (B FUR PR R EHE B 2R E S| B E & BR
73 A)) since December 2011. He has also been a director of Nanjing Sinar Mas &
Zi Jin Venture Capital Management Co. Lid* (R e KL RIXEREERER
fR 2 R]) since January 2012, in which he served as its president between 2018
and 2020, a director of Nanjing Jinmei Film and Television Investment
Management Co,, Ltd* (FAR @ EFZRIZRE BEBR A F) since September
2014, and the vice chairman of Nanjing Hongtu Venture Capital Co,, Ltd.* (R &
41 T BIZE K E B BR A 7)) since September 2017.

Since May 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent director of Shenzhen
Jiachuang Video Technology Co., Ltd* ORI EBIR MR (D B R A 7)),
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300264). Since October 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent director of
GemPharmatech Co., Ltd* (T#F & 25 R A RN 7 B R 2 7). He has
also taken up the role of chief economist at Nanjing Southeast Investment
Fund Management Co,, Ltd* (FAR R IR EE S BB R A A)) since May
2021, and has also been appointed as a director of Nanjing Innovation
Investment Group Co., Ltd* (BRMEIFTIRESEEREFE A F) since
September 2021.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Cai Tianchen (£2X &), aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Ms. Cai completed an accounting
programme at Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly known as Hangzhou
Institute of Flectronic Engineering* (M1 & F L% 22px)) in October 1993, and
is a non-practising member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore since June 2001, a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder of the
CFA Institute at Charlottesville, Virginia since September 2004, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 2007 and
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2012.

Ms. Cai has extensive experience in initial public offering, merger and acquisition
and restructuring gained at international accounting firms. Ms. Cai has been a
partner of the Shanghai office of RSM China (& 38 & 51 Al = #5 P ( %5% gk
#)) (formerly known as Grant Thornton (2 [F] & n‘f'Eﬂi%n‘%Fﬁ BHREHEER)
since October 2013. Prior to joining RSM China, Ms. Cai has joined the Singapore
office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an auditor in February 1998, and was later
promoted to a manager in 2003 and then to a senior manager at the Shanghai
office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Cai has been an independent non-executive director of China Jishan
Holdings Limited since 28 December 2017, and resigned on 31 December
2020. The shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange (stock code:
J18).

Mr. Wang Wei (£ ), aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate degree in
food science. Mr. Wang has been a lecturer and an associate professor at the
College of Food Science and Technology at Nanjing Agricultural University
from December 2013 to December 2015 and from December 2015 onwards,
respectively. Mr. Wang has also been a council member of the seventh session
of the council of the Jiangsu Association for Instrumental Analysis* (T k& 7
HORIEL 5 E) since July 2016,

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in food science and engineering and a
master's degree in food science from Nanjing Normal University in July 2006
and June 2009 respectively, and a doctorate degree in food science from China
Agricultural University in June 2012.

* Foridentification purpose only
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SUPERVISORS E=

The board of supervisors (“Supervisors’) of the Company (‘Board of AR FEE([EE))e((ESg])BAM
Supervisors”) currently consists of four members. The following table sets out  ZAK B4 © TREVIEZEHZL D ER -
certain information about the Supervisors.

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
®E Fip MAXEENBH B EH EERH AERBE
Ms. Yu Min 44 16 September 2002 Chairman of the Board of 25 October 2012 General manager of the sales
Supervisors department of the Group in
Nanjing
"B 445% 2002F9 A 16 A EEeXR 2012F 10 B 25 B AEERERIEEAALE
Ms. Wang Ping 36 30June 2009 Supervisor 5 June 2020 Human resources manager of
the Company
IeLt 36 5% 20094 6 A30H S 20200F6 H5H  ARRFANERKR
Ms. Lu Jiachun 44 20 June 2001 Employee representative 25 October 2012 Accounting clerk
Supervisor
AL+ 4473% 200156 420 H BTRRES 2012410 A25H &ARE
Ms. Chen Xiu 38 30 August 2003 Employee representative 16 May 2013 Supervision specialist
Supervisor
BRAB L+ 385% 2003F 8 A30H BIRRES 20135168 EEBEHB

Ms. Yu Min (%)), aged 44, was appointed as the chairman of the Board of SR8 Z L - 445% * 2012510 25 B EE (T
Supervisors on 25 October 2012. BERGIE -

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (&FERHE2) S 4+ 1999F 6 AR XN SRR ZER (A
(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (FIRMEXZRER) WEAMEEIRER)EFHE - NAFR
majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report, Ms.  HHI » R&EZ 5 N ENEL0.10% HIES ©

Yu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was promoted R Z T+ 2002 F 1A KRR BIEZLEKRE » TR
to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and customer relations 2004 9 9 F & & F+ & F R 5 E &8 38 K& R 2008 FF
manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently appointed as the chairman 1 AEEF AR PEERKIE - R THEEESZ
of the Board of Supervisors and continued to be the customer relations {FAEREFFEREBEETTPEELE - R
manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as the general manager of the 201847 F * RX T REA ATEEERINE
sales department of the Group in Nanjing. B ARAKEIS o

Ms. Wang Ping (£ 3¥), aged 36, was appointed as a Supervisor on 5 June  EfE &+ 365k N2020F6 AsAEEZF A
2020. Ms. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and  E5Z5 o« F &+ 200946 A B2 A T &6 -

literature, majoring in broadcasting and hosting art, from Changzhou Institute ~ F{&#EE= & (FFHEFFEI) - T+ 8
of Technology* (&M TE2B%) in June 2009. Ms. Wang has joined the Company 200946 A MMA R AT « B EEVEAEH T
since June 2009. She first joined the Company as a conference moderatorand ~ AJIAZARARG] » EBEEHAANEREES o %
was later promoted to a human resources officer. She is currently the human — IRERRQA A A N ERLKIE o

resources manager of the Company.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Lu Jiachun (BE{E#H), aged 44, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the Open
University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In October
2012, she was appointed as a member of the Board of Supervisors.

Ms. Chen Xiu (Bf35), aged 38, was appointed as the employee representative
Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from Jiangsu Institute of
(T ARAC BB ZE RIITEPT) (formerly known as Jiangsu Vocational
and Technical Institute of Economics and Commerce* (/T &k 5= & IR &2
BT)) majoring in Accounting in July 2004.

Commerce*

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk. Since
July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist.

BEfEML L 4455 R2012F1025HER
TABTRRESE - B L 720054 10 AHL
SEREMASER TSRS+ 24 -

Fez B 2001 F6 AE—HIEEARERME
B o R201NF 107 HEZTAEEEKE -

BELZL 385 MN2013FE5 16 BEEZFA
BTRRESE - RZER2004F7 BREENT
BOCEBRERMER (A THAERNEER®IL
Bhr)@FrEE -

BRZZ £ 2003 F 8 AMAREBIERE -
B2009F 7 A - F—HIEFEEEE -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREERE
Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
" Fip MAXEENBE B EH4 ZEAH AERBE
Ms. Zhi Hui (2 7F) 42 4 June 2002 Secretary of the Board, 25 October 2012 Secretary of the Board,
joint company secretaries company secretarial
matters
xR E 425% 20029 6 A4R BExenE 2012F10A258 EFEWE
BEE A RIWE NAIWEEH
Mr. Li Bin (Z=3H) 43 1July 2013 Chief financial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
£ 435% 20137 A1 H BEREMEE 2013 7R 1R gEE
Mr.WuJun ((R8) 39 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
RIEFTHE 395% 20069 A4 H Lypvs 2013F9A1H gEE

* Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Zhi Hui (X 7F), aged 42, has more than 10 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002 as an
office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager of the
Company in January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to the
Board and served as the joint company secretaries of the Company
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.07% of the Domestic Shares and 0.12% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.

Mr. Li Bin (Z=38), aged 43, was appointed as the chief financial officer of the
Company in July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting experience.
He obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was admitted as a Certified
Management Accountant of the United States in July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific-Technological Application Research
Institute Co., Ltd.* (M RIEF B ERFEMABR A F]), a company
engaging in the development and production of Silicone and non-Silicone
foam control agents, between October 2003 and March 2007. He worked in
the finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy Co,, Ltd* (B E R(FF
R e RAR AR,
development, production, sale and services of solar energy components,
between June 2007 and September 2009 and the finance department of the

a company that engages in the research and

solar energy business unit of Jiangsu Sainty International Group Machinery
Import and Export Corporation Limited* (T #x 5% X BUFR £2 B 8 £ O I
BBR/A 7)), a company that engages in import and export trade, between
October 2009 and October 2010.

Mr. Wu Jun (21&), aged 39, was appointed as the financial controller of the
Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 10 years of experience in
the nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group in September 2006
as an accounting clerk of the finance department of Hangzhou Zhongyan
Biological Products Co. Limited* (Fu/ R EF A ¥R GA AR A F]) and became
an accounting clerk of the finance department of the company in August 2008.
He was promoted as the finance manager of the Company in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F & T 3 A £2)
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhi Hui (X ), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Senior Management” above for her biography.

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H 3£ 88), FCG, HKFCG, aged 55, was appointed as
joint company secretaries of the Company on 7 November 2013. Ms. Kam is an
executive director of Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a
global professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Kam is a Chartered Secretary
and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute ("HKCGI")
and The Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Kam is a holder of the
Practitioner's Endorsement from HKCGI.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, and the Strategy and Development Committee.

Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. At
present, the Audit Committee comprises Ms. Cai Tianchen, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Wang Wei, the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Cai Tianchen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration. At present, the Remuneration Committee
comprises Mr. Wang Wei and Ms. Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive
Directors, and Ms. Zhu Feifei, an executive Director. Mr. Wang Wei is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Wang Wei, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Yuan, an
executive Director. Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Development Committee

The Board established a Strategy and Development Committee with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and Development
Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the
long-term development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company. At present, the Strategy and Development Committee comprises
Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an executive Director, and Mr. Yu Bo and Ms.
Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the
chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention of
experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any material
disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour disputes or
strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect of its
employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
injury insurance, critical illness insurance, insurance for maternity leave and
housing provident fund.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading of
packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2022, it has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from its
business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting
green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade equipment such
as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to increase overall operating
efficiency. To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and
records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 132 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil) or any special dividend (2021: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) who have waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
2022 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
2022 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December 2022
was RMB(371.7) million. Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 135 of this annual report.

The Group did not have any outstanding borrowings or pledge of assets as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). Please refer to note 32 to the financial
statements in this annual report for further information in relation to financial
risk management of the Company.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans, borrowings or pledge of
assets as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). Please refer to note 32 to the
financial statement in this annual report for further information in relation to
financial risk management of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group's
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of the Company’s issued shares, had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2022 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jitong (resigned with effect from 25 January 2022)
Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

Mr. Yu Bo (appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM").

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during 2022 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Ping

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The Board of Supervisors has held two meetings during 2022. Details of the
meetings and events conducted by the Board of Supervisors during 2022 are
set out in the work report of the Board of Supervisors of this annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 19 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
(for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term of three years and
shall be elected by Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office, which
the successive terms of office of independent non-executive Directors shall not
exceed six years, in accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years and may be re-elected. No Director or Supervisor has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising from
the Group's activities which such Directors and officers may be held liable.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at AGM. Other emoluments will
be determined and recommended by the members of the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities, performance of the
Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the highest paid
employees of the Company are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends will be reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to
the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS, ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTION OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts, arrangement or transaction of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party subsisted at the end of 2022 or at any
time during the same year in which any Director or Supervisor or any entity
connected with the Director or Supervisor had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not entered
into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to manage or
administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
during the Year.
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EX EERSREBEAERKRD
REEROHEZR AR

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
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“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock

Exchange, are set out below:

Capacity

&t

Nature of interest

BHEME

Class of share
of the Company

AR F R ER

Number Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the relevant
class of shares®
RiEER &R

R AP HYBE AT
BERASL®
(%)

of shares

held as at

31 December
2022
2022
12A31H
FERAEA

SRR LR RS ORI

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R R4
ERAAL®
(%)

Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 494,053,628 (L) 73.32% 52.21%
('Mr. Gui")? S ERHAA WA R
ERayi it Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 560%
([HExE]) [N WA R
Beneficial owner H Shares 13,164,000 (L) 4.83% 1.39%
EREAA Hi
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 6,599,550 (L) 0.98% 0.70%
FRZT S EREAA WA R
Beneficial owner H Shares 218,000 (L) 0.08% 0.02%
EREAA Hi
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
KRR L S EREAA WA R
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
Rz s ERBEAA WA R
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Notes:
Q) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be interested

in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.
(3) As at 31 December 2022, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370.

(4) As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was
673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their spouses, or
children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors” and Chief
Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at
no time in 2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors and
Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors and Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS ANDSHORT FEREHEABROAREBEKRHOHER
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES 5823}

BEEME R202F128318  BRARQF
RIBEHFREIENE B IEREEENE
M ATRCER - MARE B BEITIRAFEHELER
FED 5% s A E AT (B REERIN B
KRBT -

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the persons who
hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the Company
(other than Directors and Supervisors), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as it was
known to Directors are set out below:

Nature of interest

EaitE

Class of share
of the Company

AR F R ER

Number
of shares
held as at

31 December
2022
R2022&
12A31H

FiRAEE

Approximate
shareholding
percentage in
the relevant
class of shares®
REEEA

R AP HY LA
ERESL®

(%)

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R

IR A HY LAY
KRaste

(%)

Ms. Wu Yanmei® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 5.60%
RYi§Z LT ERBEEAA NERK
Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 494,053,628 (L) 73.32% 52.21%
AiBER WA R
Interest of spouse H Shares 13,164,000 (L) 4.83% 1.39%
friBiten HAR
Ms. Zhou Li Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 35,075453 (L) 5.21% 3.71%
BBt ERRAA NERK
Mr. Cheng Xiaowei® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 35075453 (L) 521% 371%
RMERAES AiBER WA R
Mr. Gui Ke Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
BEREAE BEnRAA WER
Ms. Li Shi® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
Lo FeBE s NERK
Mr. Chen Xuelin Beneficial owner H Shares 27,576,000 (L) 10.12% 291%
BREMEE EGHAA Hi%
Hin Sang Group (International) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
Holding Co. Ltd.
PTHSE (BB ZERERRE EREAA HAR
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 ()" 21.70% 6.25%
Company Limited corporation
TERBERAERAF R LR R HAR
Ms. Kwan Lai Man® Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
BEELLo S B Hik
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
AiBER H A%
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
gONRE R EE R H i
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
ExRAA HAR
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Notes:

The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was
673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

Mr. Cheng Xiaowei is the spouse of Ms. Zhou Li. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheng Xiaowei was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhou Li was interested.

Ms. Li Shi is the spouse of Mr. Gui Ke. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Shi was deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui Kei was interested.

These 59,121,600 H Shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd., an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands whose issued
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited,
which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Ms.
Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Accordingly, Genwealth Group Holding
Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man were deemed to hold interests in
these H Shares under the SFO.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin was
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in

the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions

constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing

Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. The Audit
Committee is primarily responsible for the review and supervision of the
financial reporting process, and risk management and internal control system.
It has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the audited final results of the Group for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “Contributing to Development and Taking Social Responsibility” in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual report for details
of the donations made by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company,
or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

During the Year, there were no material investments, acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, there were no significant events affecting the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or applicable
laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
(as defined under the Listing Rules) during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules), have made non-competition undertakings in favour
of the Company. They have confirmed compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors, is
of the opinion that the relevant controlling Shareholders have been in
compliance with the non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing the
Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. The Company has made
specific enquiry with the Directors and Supervisors and all Directors and
Supervisors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during 2022.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of the over-
allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million (equivalent to
RMB336.4 million).

As at 31 December 2022,

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB72.0 million and RMB0.8 million
has been used on the acquisition of GHP, and for Living Nature’s product
function enhancement;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB95.1 million has been used to
build a R&D testing centre;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB19.3 million has been used to
build information technology and logistics centre;

(iv)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB96.4 million has been used on
the marketing and promotion activities;

(v)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB13.5 million has been used to
expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

(vi)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.6 million has been used for
working capital and the remaining of the Net Proceeds of approximately
RMBS5.7 million has been deposited into banks, which are intended to be
applied in accordance with the proposed application set out in the
circular of the Company dated 22 September 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution of the reappointment of
Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Company respectively will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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OUTLOOK

In 2022, the market faced numerous challenges, including unexpected
COVID-19 pandemic conditions, the Russia-Ukraine conflict, domestic heat
waves and droughts, reduction in demands, supply disruption, and inflation, all
of which have impacted economic development. Due to great pressure caused
by the prevailing economic conditions in the Chinese market, a growing
number of small brands with weaker risk resistance tried to clear their
inventories by lowering selling prices to recover funds and exit the market,
while the competition in the industry also intensified.

The Group will continue to implement the strategy of focusing on the
development of the Good Heath brand. In 2022, Good Heath brand's sales
revenue from e-commerce platforms and the distribution channels for
maternity and child series products in the PRC have both recorded significant
growth. The Group's brand promotion strategy has been successful so far, and
the brand visibility within the industry has improved.

In 2023, the market expects gradual relaxation of pandemic control measures
in response to the improving COVID-19 pandemic. Despite internal and
external pressure, the PRC government will continue to prioritise economic
development, and stabilise it at a comparatively higher target growth rate.
Furthermore, the PRC government will step up its efforts to implement policies
of stabilising investments with more credit facilities and monetary easing plans,
thereby stimulating economic development. Meanwhile, household
consumption is likely to rebound strongly, becoming a new growth
opportunity for the economy.

In 2023, the Group will focus on: (1) continuing to allocate more resources to
research and development in new products to shorten their research and
development cycle, so as to launch new products to meet the demands of
target customers; (2) identifying high-quality suppliers to meet customer
demands and achieve sales growth at lower costs; (3) strengthening online and
offline brand promotions to enhance its brand influence; and (4) further
expanding the Group's sales scale to improve its overall profitability.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 30 March 2023
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During the reporting period of 2022, the Board of Supervisors carefully and
thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the Company and
the Shareholders in a responsible manner according to the Company Law, the
Articles and the Rules of Procedures for the Board of Supervisors, and the
requirements under the relevant law and regulations, while duly monitoring
and examining the operations and financial conditions of the Company, as well
as the supervision by the Supervisors over the performance of duties by the
members of the Board, the managers and other senior management members
of the Company, according to the laws .

I.  DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2022, the Board of Supervisors convened two meetings.

On 30 March 2022, it considered the 2021 Work Report of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2021 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2021 Financial Settlement of the
Company and the Resolution regarding the 2022 Financial Budget of the
Company, the Resolution on 2021 Profit Distribution Plan of the
Company, the Resolution regarding the Appointment of Accountant and
the Authorisation Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to
Determine Its Remuneration, the Resolution regarding the Authorisation
Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to Determine the
Remunerations of the Directors and Supervisors, the Resolution on 2021
Statutory Reserve Withdrawal of the Company, the Resolution where the
Board is granted the general mandate at the General Meeting to issue,
allocate, and deal with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares, both
numbers of which will be no more than 20% of the total amount of
Domestic Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue respectively, and
the Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it sees fit, for the
purposes of reflecting the new shareholding structure upon the
allotment or issue of additional shares under the relevant mandate.

On 30 August 2022, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results for
2022 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on Material
Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2022 and the
Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in respect of
Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other Misbehaviours.
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V.
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LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors of the Company attended the meetings of the
Board during 2022, and duly performed its supervisory duties of
operation activities of the Company. It effectively discharged its
supervisory duties on the business development, channel operation and
employee incentives of the Company on a timely basis, thus fully
delivering its duties in the development of the Company in 2022.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the Company persisted in
standardised operations with due diligence in strict compliance with the
provisions under the Company Law and the Articles, as well as
conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general meetings; the
internal control system of the Company was well established; disclosure
of all information was made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation
against the laws, regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the
interests of the Company was committed by the Directors and senior
management of the Company in the line of duty.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business operation
of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2022 and the proposal on
business plan of the Company for the financial year 2023.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are complete,
true and accurate. The annual operating results of the Company have
been audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP who has also issued an
audit report on it. The audit report is factual, fair and objective.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no connected
transaction in 2022 which was subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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VI.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE
INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal control
report of the Company, and considered that the Company has
established an appropriate internal control system in all important
aspects and the internal control management system has operated
effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and normal
business operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to the
contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the implementation of resolutions passed at the
general meetings, and considered that the Board was able to implement
the relevant resolutions earnestly. The Board of Supervisors is of opinion
that the Board of the Company will carefully follow through the relevant
resolutions at the general meetings, without prejudicing the interests of
the Shareholders.

We hereby submit our report.

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited*
The Board of Supervisors

Ms. Yu Min
Chairman

30 March 2023

¥ For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE AND VALUE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high business ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in
the achievement of its long-term business objectives, it is imperative to act
with probity, transparency and accountability. By doing so, the Company
believes that Shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term and that
its employees, those with whom it has business activity and the communities
in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that its
objectives are met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing
robust corporate governance practices that are intended to ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to Shareholders;
that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
that overall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of
customers; and

that high standards of business ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG Code
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of
the Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors and Supervisors and the
Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time
performing them that are commensurate with their role and the Board
responsibilities.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive Directors
and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, the members of the Board are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Jitong ™

Mr. Yu Bo®

Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

Notes:

Q) Resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 25 January 2022.
(2) Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 26 January 2022.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on pages 19 to 23

of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Board meetings and directors’ attendance records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2022 for compliance with the code
provision C.2.7.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held four meetings. The
attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”
on page 57 of this annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company's business development
and daily management and operations generally.

Independent non-executive directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Ms. Cai Tianchen possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board independence evaluation

The Company has in place a mechanism that underpin an independent Board
and its views during the Year which sets out the processes and procedures to
ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board to
effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness, maximise
strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further
development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the
Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

Pursuant to the mechanism that underpin an independent Board and its views,
the Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board which will
collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if
appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors had completed the
independence evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report was presented to the Board and the
evaluation results were satisfactory.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism that underpin an
independent Board and its views and the results were satisfactory.

Appointment and re-election of directors

According to the Atrticles, Directors shall be elected by Shareholders at general
meeting of the Company and their term of office shall be three years. Directors
are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office, while the
successive terms of office of independent Directors shall not exceed six years.
Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules of the place
where the Company is listed, if the Board appoints a new Director to fill up any
interim vacancy or increase the members of the Board, the term of office of
such newly added Director shall expire at the next general meeting of the
Company and he/she is eligible for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a

specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current
term.

43

ExeB MG
ARARAFREERYSHBVEZTENEE
REsl - ERMEEFE ERRESS AR
BAMIBIY TR FESSEARBITREL
Al PARENIER S L i

AENEMNERSREFERR  RAREEE
B WHEEHRBUEIE — T HROEE -
A B MR AN R F ERBARITE R M
RENEEFEERR  HIM - HEEsESEN
BAAZIFBERTE -

REXHBLEFEREBROKS  EFg
LB IIEETFRERS - EFSR UM
HHREBREREFTE  EFTHRRIRER
MBCETTEE & (WE) -

HE202F1N2ANBIEFE 2EBEEHIU
MEFATRIBE T I - ES 2B T
RECRREFE  FHEERSARE ©

HE200NFNANBIEFE EF2FDEX
BEUVEEgRHEERERSINE B AR
W BERS AR e

EENZEAERER
BREER EFFHRRERNRABRRAGE

RELHRSERAR=F -EFNHIHE
MENAERSEHEE  AMBUES ZEFT
RFFE S N @ BN F - HARE LA
AR AR REBERANNBART  HESR
EREHEZTNAMESENIMAERRERNK
MK E - A EEENERBRARF
T—EERASRHIHARESERETER -

ARBVBUFNTESEZIR=ZFHTEF
- RIRBFHEmRERT TER -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Corporate Governance Report
CEEREE

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group'’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in
the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions
and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous professional development of directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) disclosure of information and insider
dealing; (i) the corporate governance and directors’ skills; (i) updates on the
regulations under the Listing Rules and directors’ on-going responsibilities; (iv)
connected transactions and the regulations on it; and (v) the management of
employees’ incentive scheme. The following Directors have attended the
trainings during the year ended 31 December 2022:

Name of Directors Participation

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu Attended
Ms. Zhang Yuan Attended
Ms. Zhu Feifei Attended
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jitong " N/A

Mr. Yu Bo® Attended
Ms. Cai Tianchen Attended
Mr. Wang Wei Attended
Notes:

(1M Resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 25 January 2022.
(2) Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 26 January 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which specify clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders
upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

Audit committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Ms.
Cai Tianchen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Zhang Jitong resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 25
January 2022. Mr. Yu Bo was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022, and became a member of the Audit Committee
in place of Mr. Zhang Jitong.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal
audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the interim financial
results in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2022 and discussed on 2022
audit plan. The Audit Committee also considered significant issues on the
internal audit, review the effectiveness of internal control systemes,
appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of works and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2022, without the presence of the executive Directors.
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The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.

Remuneration committee

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director, namely Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; assessing the performance of the Directors and approving
the terms of Directors’ service contracts; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 8 to the financial statement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.

Nomination committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
namely Ms. Zhang Yuan, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Zhang Jitong resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 25
January 2022. Mr. Yu Bo was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022, and became the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in place of Mr. Zhang Jitong.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set
out in the Company's Board Diversity Policy (as explained below under the
section headed “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee will
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once in 2022 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also considered the
qualifications of the retiring executive and non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for re-election. During the year ended 31
December 2022, Mr. Zhang Jitong resigned as an independent non-executive
Director. The Nomination Committee considered and recommended to the
Board Mr. Yu Bo to be elected as an independent non-executive Director. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members”.

Strategy and development committee

During the Year, the Strategy and Development Committee consists of one
executive Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo and Ms. Cai Tianchen. Mr. Gui Pinghu is
the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.

Mr. Zhang Jitong resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 25
January 2022. Mr. Yu Bo was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022, and became a member of the Strategy and
Development Committee in place of Mr. Zhang Jitong.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year 2022
and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the section headed “Attendance
Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

Board Diversity Policy
The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. A true diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences
will be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity (including gender diversity). The Company aims to build and maintain
a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also
committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels
(from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse
range of candidates are considered.

It is the Company’s objective to maintain an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices. As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio
in the Company’s workforce (including senior management) was approximately
37.6% male and 62.4% female.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural background, educational background, and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has achieved the
following measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy:

(@)  toensure at least a member of the Board shall have obtained accounting
or other professional qualification;

(b)  to ensure at least one-third of the members of the Board shall have
attained bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

() toensure at least one member of the Board was or currently is director
of listed companies (including Hong Kong and other regions) other than
the Company;

(d)  to ensure the Board has members coming from different cultural
backgrounds (including Hong Kong and PRC); and

(e)  to ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board comprised
of people from at least two decades.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The review of the Board Diversity Policy
and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually to ensure
the continued effectiveness of the Board.

Director nomination policy
The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors. It aims
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;
Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy;
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Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board and
independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. After receiving a list of candidates, recommended by members of
the Board, for the replacement and appointment of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee requested the candidate to provide his/her
biographical information and other information deemed necessary. The
Nomination Committee reviewed and took reasonable steps to verify the
information obtained from the candidate and seek clarification, where required.
The Nomination Committee may, at its discretion, invite any candidate to meet
with the Nomination Committee members to assist them in their consideration
of the proposed nomination or recommendation. The Nomination Committee
then submitted its nomination proposal to the Board for consideration and
making recommendation to the Shareholders for approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this corporate governance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the table below:

ESNZEEENEHFERE

TRV SZEFTREE202F12A831BIEF
EARARITHESZSSSENEEZESORIUR
RRARREAREG 2 H B8k

—~ B B8R

Attendance/Number of Meetings

ERLREHRERY

Audit
Committee

ENZRE

Name of Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu EEREE 44 -
Ms. Zhang Yuan RRXT 44 -
Ms. Zhu Feife ARRLL 4/4 -
Mr. Zhang Jitong " RERTEY - -
Mr. Yu Bo® RRITED 44 21?2
Ms. Cai Tianchen BRENT 44 W0,
Mr. Wang Wei TEEE 4/4 1
Notes:

m
@

Mr. Zhang Jitong resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022.

Mr. Yu Bo appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 26 January 2022.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and evaluating
effective risk management and internal control systems. The board of
Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the establishment and
implementation of risk management and internal control systems. The
management is responsible for coordinating and monitoring the risk
management and internal control progress. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in leading and coordinating matters regarding internal control,
overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Department of the Company examines
key issues in relation to accounting practices and all material controls and
provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company'’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.

The Company'’s risk management and internal control systems include different
functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic development,
human resources, asset management, sales and purchase, finance and
accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract management and
administration.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key
business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out through the
following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined business
processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business unit,
define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;

3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting
standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of accounting
work and improve accounting work procedures; and

4. Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use and
management of assets and safeguard the Company's assets by defining
clear business processes and work responsibilities.
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The Company'’s self-evaluation on internal control systems has the following
features and processes:

1. Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal control
systems and defining the scope and key areas;

2. Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management and
internal control, based on the conditions of internal control systems of
all business processes of the Company;

3 Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the implementation
and efficiency of internal control systems through walk-through testing;

4. Discover defects during the implementation of internal control systems
by evaluating key control activities samples which are extracted based
on the frequency of occurrence; and

5. Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business
process perspectives and improve according to the findings and report
of the Audit Department of the Company. Implement and test on the
improved internal control systems and verify its effectiveness.

During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods such
as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect evidence
in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and implementation,
accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the internal control systems.
Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that the control
policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial and non-financial controls for the year ended 31 December 2022,
and considered that such systems are effective and no material defects were
found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has in place a whistleblowing policy for employees of the
Company and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matters related to the Company.

The Company has also in place an anti-corruption policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also make
anonymous reports to the internal audit function, which is responsible for
investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate measures. The
Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery activities to
cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively organizes anti-corruption training
and inspections to ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which provide
a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors' Report on pages 125 to 131 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2022
is set out below:

ARAs B

Service Category

EERVBRRNVBE

BEENBFERBAQFEHZE 2022912 A 31
AIEFEVBRRABE -

EX W T ABEAERNHEE R F S KA e
ARAFERERNEXERNERNEFHB
;EI o

AR BVBIAZHENE B SIS MR A A 3R
BEENRAENANFERE 125213 ENEYL
TEEREA -

% S4B
MEE202F 1283 BIEFENEXRE R
IEWMIERIS BT FE A D RSN A BT
NS ¢

Fees Paid/Payable
RMB’ 000

BN BNEA
ARETT

Annual audit services, Ernst & Young FEEZRE - KFFTMEBT 2,000
Non-audit Services LIRS
— Environmental, Social and Governance reporting —IRE e MEAREEH
advisory 140
2,140
COMPANY SECRETARY RAEWE

Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy have been appointed as the
Company's joint company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the health
food and nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough understanding
of the operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy of
Tricor Services Limited, an Asia’s leading business expansion specialist
specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor services, has been
engaged by the Company as joint company secretary. Her primary contact
persons at the Company are Ms. Zhi Hui, another joint company secretary of
the Company and Mr. Li Bin, the chief financial officer of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha
Wendy have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 55 and 67 of the Articles, Shareholder(s) individually or
collectively holding 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company
carrying voting rights may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting by sending a written requisition with an explanation of the
matters proposed to be discussed at the meeting.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who individually or collectively holding more than 3% of the
shares of the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10 days
before the date of the general meeting of the Company, at the Company’s
registered office in the PRC or the principle place of business in Hong Kong.
The Board shall notify other Shareholders within 2 days of receiving the
proposal and include it for consideration at the general meeting of the
Company. The matters stated in the proposal must be within the functions and
powers of the general meeting of the Company and it shall have a clear subject
and specific resolutions.

Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals
stated in the notice of the general meeting of the Company or add new
proposals upon issuance of the announcement on the notice of the general
meeting of the Company.
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Putting forward enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:

Block E-2, 8/F, Deji Building

188 Chang Jiang Road

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819168
Email: zhihui@zs-united.net

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The Company publishes its
announcements, financial information and other relevant information on its
website at www.zs-united.com, as a channel to facilitate effective
communication. The Company has published detailed contact methods
through its website, notices of the general meeting, circulars to the
Shareholders and annual reports for Shareholders to express their views or
make enquiries.
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To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy of the Company. Taking into account the variety of
existing channels for communication and participation, the Company is of the
view that its Shareholders’ communication policy was effective during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company will display the main contact methods on its official website.
Currently, communication with Shareholders takes place mainly by email,
telephone, video conference and regular or occasional meetings of different
scope.

The Board believes that the diversified shareholders’ communication channels
provide Shareholders and investors with effective access to information about
the Group, and that Shareholders can contact the Board directly and express
their opinions on their own initiative through such procedures. The Board,
therefore, endorses the effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy.

Dividend Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has adopted a
Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of dividends. The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and
factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board during a financial year or period and any final dividend
for a financial year which will be subject to the Shareholders” approval.

64

RIREBCRA s MR - NRRERBERA
g LEmEBYER(BREBEEEMNES)IEH
BIORESR - RIRRAR LIRENAERER
BRZE LT RBRBBRERR - REERE
REBRRRGHERENARF R FAEET

o
=)

EZeCRTARANBREBRER ZATIE
Mo EERRFBEBRSERENZHEMN K
NARAEBRREBBRNEE202F12A8
JTHIEFEBAEM

HE202F1N2ANBILFEE  ARaEY
EMBEITEIER -

BRRREBENEE

ARAIE FIEBRBABREK - BREAREE
BRHOERNEIFIEERR - ZHEBKTE
HIMETTAR B DAREAR EL U

RABEARBEMERTIEMK N - BRIE
RBPEF - BEE - BHESBANERXTTE
Hi - AR #EE A & R B R APEA TSR

EE2HE SRR BBRESBRRNK
REERUEVERAEBERANRE - IR
AR EFEFEREEEEHBY THER
BR-HIt EFERABEREABERNA R
Mo

B EBR
REBZE202FN2A3BLEFER AREE
R E ik KR IR E MR S BUR - AR R E
FAFEEIRELE - RFARFRAEERG
AR A R B BCRE S MG EE R - £5
RV RFESHMETEZEN HUERES
i A (7] B B4R & A R HR AR BB AR SR AL E o

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRE

CONTENTS H &

ABOUT THIS REPORT B N 2 . oo 66
OVeIVIeW B BT 66
Basis Of Preparation A8 B I . 66
Scope and Coverage of the Report SR & &8 B M B I . 66
Data Description TR e B R AR BE . 66
Confirmation and Approval BE R M b . 66
Contacts TR B B 0 T 66
PRUDENT AND COMPLIANT OPERATION, STRENGTHENING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE B2 & 48 @ s b DB R ... .. 67
GoVernaNCe STUCTUIE B T8 R . 67
Board Statement BB BB B B 68
Identification of and Communication with Stakeholders B ABEBIELER ... 69
Determination of Material Issues B8 R I i RE 5 Bl . ..o 71
Operating Compliance B R R 73
BEING RESPONSIBLE AND PRODUCING QUALITY PRODUCTS FRLBE  THEEDMmE ... 76
Quality ASSUIANCE BT B R R . . 76
Innovation Research BT T B . 79
Supply Chain Management (B S B 38 . 82
Service System BRI R R, o 85
Communication With CUSTOMErs B B I . . ... 88
LOW-CARBON DEVELOPMENT TO BUILD A GREEN HOME TOGETHER B Hik38 & » HEBAZGBRE ... . 90
Environmental Management BRI B T . o 91
Environmental Target BRI B A . . 91
Use of ReSOUICes B Rl Bl . o 92
Emissions Compliance B AR BE B . ... 95
Response to Climate Change BT S Bl . 97
JOINING HANDS WITH EMPLOYEES TO BUILD ATALENT TEAMBEFRIFT - FT:EAA BB ... .. 103
Employee Employment B T I ... ... 103
Employee Development B B8R .. .. o 106
CareforEmployee B 1T .. ... 110
Employee Health and Safety B THERREIZZ 2 . .. . 114
CONTRIBUTING TO DEVELOPMENT AND TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HEH=Z - EEd@ &L . ... 117
Community Co-development AL B AR . 17
Health Promotion (B B . . 118

APPENDIX  CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
% BRMRMRE G RERBRERIIANBTRI . 19

ARPEBARNERAT —T__FFR 65



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the seventh Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
referred to as the "ESG") report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Stock Code: 3332) and its subsidiaries.

This report covers the ESG performance for the financial period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’), which is in compliance with the principles of “materiality”,
"quantitative”, “balance”, and “consistency”.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of systemic
procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing important
stakeholders and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of the ESG reports,
collecting relevant materials and data, compiling reports based on information
and verifying data in this report.

Scope and Coverage of the Report

The policies, statements, and data given in this report cover Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which are in line with the scope
of the Company’s annual report.

For the convenience of expression and reading, in the Report, the “Group’, “we”
or “our” refer to Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (referred to as the
"Company’ or “Sinolife United") and its subsidiaries, Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-
Tech Co. Limited* (B8R EEYIEHEBR AR (hereinafter referred to as
"Zhongsheng Bio-Tech”), Living Nature Natural Products Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Living Nature”’), Good Health Products Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Good Health") and Cobayer.

Data Description

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group undertakes
that this report does not contain any false record or misleading statements,
and is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its
contents.

Confirmation and Approval
The report was approved by the Board on 17 April 2023 after confirmation with
the management.

Contacts

Block E-2, 8/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road,
Xuanwu District, Nanjing

Tel: 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819168

Website: http://www.zs-united.com

E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com
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PRUDENT AND COMPLIANT OPERATION,
STRENGTHENING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

With the goal of achieving sustainable development, we continuously improve
our corporate governance structure, establish an internal management
mechanism with clear responsibilities and coordinated operations, and

RESH BLEEER

BPABRAFERRSBR - THTERF
SRR - BEBE R BEEHBENANE
S FEMEATSRER - IARRE

BAE - BELE—FRALEEEAKT -
EAREEMNEEEANTHEEE -

continuously strengthen internal compliance management with increasing
efforts in risk control, to consolidate and further enhance our corporate
governance level, and promote sustainable development for the Group and all
stakeholders.

Governance Structure ERERE
The Group regards ESG management as an important part of its daily ZAEBKSCEERAMEAFPLENETEA

D

MEBS  BESGESBARNRBBMEENS
EREN - K BAEEL  FSCEEZEGMESG
TV MBAEKKI B LM TH = RESGE ALEEE -
EEREMEE  BBREL B2t B2

operations and integrates ESG concepts into various aspects of its corporate
strategy and operations. The Group has established a top-down three-tier ESG
governance structure consisting of the Board, the ESG Management
Committee and the ESG Task Force, and clarified the responsibilities at all
levels. By adopting standardized, systematic, and scientific management  {LEE T - BB ESGIERB LM T E
methods, the Group actively promotes the implementation of ESG-related A2 E 5 - FEIRITEBITESGHEEE o

decisions and work, and fulfils its ESG commitments through practical actions.

/

® Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
B BRHE MEE B BRHE MEE S E A BESGH AR

® Reviewing the achievement of ESG goals and ESG performance
BATESG B iR B MESGRER

® Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies

FEHESGHARBER

® Reviewing and approving the ESG report
FERESGHE

® |mplementing the ESG risk management and internal control
HATESGIE bz & 22 6 (A FP L 42

ESG

® Directing the work of the ESG Task Force
Nlca nna‘?nei?‘t‘ent EEESCI{E/MAR TE
o ee ® Reviewing the ESG related policies
ESGEIE EMESGIARBR

® Reviewing the ESG report, and verifying the accuracy of the performance indicators

FHESGHE @ WREIEH BURHERENE

e Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports and other work

ZHE AR BESGHEMBEANKENREFRETIE

Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining whether

the Group's ESG risk management internal control system is proper and

effective by submitting regular reports
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Task Force .
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Board Statement

Overall Responsibility Borne by the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
performance, including establishment of ESG strategic guidelines, target
setting and progress monitoring, ESG risk assessment and identification, ESG
performance monitoring, and approval of the annual ESG report.

Risk Management

The Board participates in the assessment, prioritization, sorting, and final
confirmation of materiality issues each year, and regularly reviews and manages
ESG risks. The ESG Management Committee and ESG Task Force assess and
make recommendations on relevant risks. The Board ultimately determines the
risks and importance of the Group's ESG issues based on the development
dynamics of the Industry and the Group and the opinions and feedback from
stakeholders, and closely monitors the implementation of ESG risk
management.

Daily Implementation

The Group has in place the ESG Management Committee and the ESG Task
Force under the Board, which will regularly report to the Board on ESG-related
issues, including but not limited to the daily implementation of ESG work,
progress of the annual ESG report, and identification of climate change risks.
The Board regularly reviews the progress against the ESG goals and provides
guidance for the future development of ESG based on the achievements,
providing guidance to the ESG Management Committee and ESG Task Force
for their subsequent work.

Review of the Progress of Achieving Targets

Following the international sustainability trends, we regularly assess our
environmental, social and governance-related goals and implementation
progress after comparison with peer standards. With an understanding of the
sustainable development process of the Group, we will update our systems
and measures to promote the long-term sustainable development of our
business in a more environment-friendly, healthy and harmonious corporate
environment.
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Identification of and Communication with Stakeholders

We place importance to communication with our stakeholders and pay
attention to the demands and expectations of our stakeholders. We have
identified six major stakeholders that are influential to the Group and closely
related to our business, including government and regulators, shareholders
and investors, suppliers, media, employees, consumers and the public. We
have established multiple channels of communication with various
stakeholders to enhance our ESG management and provide feedback on
different concerns of our stakeholders in an active manner and make
improvements accordingly.
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Shareholders

Employees
8T

Consumers
and the public

HBEEAR

and investors
% SR Ed
BEE

Governments
and regulators

BUFEREE B A

 /
Suppliers
HIERS

In pursuit of a win-win situation for both the Group and our stakeholders, we
maintain active and close communication with all stakeholders by building
diverse and convenient communication channels, and provide proactive
feedback and improvement measures regarding different issues of concern to
stakeholders, so as to continuously improve our ESG management level, and
achieve sustainable development for the economy, society, and environment
in collaboration with all parties.
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Stakeholders

Expectations and propositions

Means of communication and responses

R A

Means of communication

and responses

BIFEREEHE

Shareholders and
investors

BREREE

Suppliers
HERE

Employees
8T

Consumers and

the public
HEBERAR

/0

HEERR

To fully implement national policies

as well as laws and regulations
To promote local economic development
To drive local employment
ERCEBBRRERNOERER
R 7 R
HENM R

To provide return

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure safety production

Yo 2 O] 3R

AREE

REEE

To fulfill contractual obligations according to law
To ensure honest operations

To manage supply chain

ROERH

PSR

HEEE IR

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure product responsibility
To participate in public activities
BREE
EmEE
NGIEED)

To protect employees’ rights

To provide remuneration and fringe benefits
To provide career development

BangE

HEitE R

BRER

To provide products and services

To be involved in public welfare and charity

To ensure green raw materials and productions

7 on EL AR 75
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BEERELR

To file reports

To provide advice and recommendations
To engage in discussions and submit special reports
To accept inspection

s

BERE
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BEXmE

To issue company announcements

To release special reports

To invite to site visits

NIV

HREER

BREHER

To engage in business negotiations
To engage in on-site studies

To engage in exchanges

Bi%ER

RGE
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To publish news release/announcements
To hold meetings

To invite to site visits

M, RE

e

B A

BRESER

To hold employee representative meetings
To ensure collective negotiation

To provide democratic communication platforms
BIKKAE®

SEHE

REEBTA

To provide a company website

To release company announcements

To address customer feedback

NIRRT
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Determination of Material issues

During the Reporting Period, we reviewed and identified a list of ESG issues for

2022 based on results of the 2021 materiality assessment with reference our

business development, an internal and external analysis and the Guide, and

conducted interviews to gain an in-depth understanding of the importance

attached by and expectations of various stakeholders on different sub-issues.

We conducted an analysis on the material issues matrix based on the
“Materiality to Stakeholders” and “"Materiality to the Group's sustainability”,
providing an important basis and direction for future sustainable development

management. In this report, we will disclose the management and results of

our work on the following issues, in order to better respond to the suggestions

and expectations of our stakeholders.

Materiality to Stakeholders
RS NEZ G

MARPAERS

MAERRA T

Low-materiality issues
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Materiality to Sinolife United
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ESG Material Issues Matrix of Sinolife United for 2022

High-materiality issues Governance issues
NN YT
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1) Environmental issues
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¢ Social issues
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Moderate-materiality issues
hESRMEE
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Water resources management
IKEREE

Energy management
REREE

Pollutants management
ERYETR

Use of packaging materials

BEMBEAR
Greenhouse gas emission
R RS FE

Climate change
SR

Natural resources
BAER

Supplier management
HEmEE

Product quality management
EmEEEE
Product innovation
EmAlH

Responsible Marketing
BEEEH

Customer experience

EFER

Consumer information security and privacy

HEBEERZ2REA

20

21

22

23

24

25

Customer demand

BRHEL

Communication with communities and governments
HE - BES

Public charity

REEE

Employment

ERER

Diversity and inclusion

Zrlt kBB

Employees’ safety

BETASZE

Protection of employees’ interests and rights
ETRBERE

Employee development and training
BT HREEI

Governance structure

EIARE

Corruption and bribery

EVELcE

Business ethics

R BIERED

Intellectual property protection

I E IR &
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Operating Compliance

While expanding our business layout, we continuously strengthen the
integration of internal control, compliance management, and risk
management, further enhancing the awareness of lawful operation, promoting
compliance management, and improving our ability to prevent risks, so as to
safeguard the Group's stable development. In strict compliance with various
laws and regulations in the place where we operate, we promote the organic
integration of compliance concepts with production and operation, and
continuously deepen the implementation of requirements such as anti-
corruption, anti-monopoly, and anti-unfair competition, promoting a clean and
fair business ecosystem to facilitate the Group's high-quality development. We
aim to create sustainable long-term value for our employees, customers, and
community.

Business Ethics

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standards of business
ethics and adopts a zero-tolerance approach towards any behavior that
violates business ethics. We abide by various laws and regulations, including
the Law Against Unfair Competition of the People’s Republic of China and Certain
Opinions of the State Council on Promoting Fair Competition in the Market and
Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market, and ensure that we comply with
the highest standards of business ethics in interactions with all stakeholders, to
jointly maintain a business environment characterized by integrity, honesty,
and regulation. During the Reporting Period, there were no violations of laws in
relation to operation compliance and fair competition occurred in the Group.

Clean and Honesty

Integrity is the cornerstone of corporate governance. We strictly comply with
various laws and regulations, including the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
Against Unfair Competition of the People’s Republic of China. Adhering to the
bottom line of operating compliance, we have developed internal systems and
regulations such as the Employee Code of Conduct and Code of Business
Conduct, which detailed the requirements for our employees’ conduct in
business dealings with customers, partners and suppliers, so as to jointly create
a clean business environment and strengthen the foundation of high-quality
corporate development.

ARTAEBMESROHBRAE —T-_FFR

aRgE

FEhEE 5 EZHM BRI RE - HAITE nRA
HRER - AREE  BREE-BLER &
—TRICEERELEEH  REGRKEE
REMERREN  RECERRER - B
BT 2 EMERNSIBEARER BB
MESHREEZENERRS  THREEE
RBER REBGNRTEEHRFHESE
Ko URBRENBREREEARREEH
B WRRET  BEFNULGREARENE
HifE(E -

AEBBINRBRENHXBERITRIEE
B RREFERNTRABARIFTRRK
BE - BB T(REARKMBER TN EE 3
FENBHRENMEEN SR RFEEN S
EEMRFNETER)FERES  ERER
ENBZHEBETNESPETRSDFEBRE
o HEHERE  BRE - RHOEERE -
BERRN  AEBRELERZRAREENRF
BF R EREM

REBSE

RBEEZRELFREANER  RMKBEST
(PEARLMBEALE) (P EARLME S
BEEFEARKMBERTEERTE)F
REER o BFIBEBRTEMEERR - HE
TCEITSFADICKEE LR EREHE R -
RAEETHRER  AIFAHREERERE
ERPOTRERER - KRITERZNER
RIE RECEXSEEERRE -

/3



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRE

We continue to strengthen ethical control and promote anti-corruption, anti-
fraud and anti-money laundering and integrity construction through the
following measures targeted at different supervised personnel:

BRMFENRRGEELR  STEHTRA
S BHMBBRATHEEHESRBER - REKFF -
SO B BRI ¢
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Sales personnel

HEAEB

We strengthen the supervision of personnel in key positions in key departments to eliminate
irregularities such as receipt of rebates and private deals

Bl E AR I EREMUABNEE - HEEXEN L TREFERITA

Suppliers and distributors

HER R EHE

We adhere to the anti-corruption operation principle, providing standardized processes and
additional clauses in contracts that clearly stated the prohibition of corrupt and bribery
practices, to protect the common interests of both parties and promote sustainable and

positive development.

BMEE B ]  EaRTREFRECRECMIZAMM IR - B IEER
WRRTTA  HRE ST ARNZ  REBERITER
To improve the ethical and compliance awareness of all employees and laya  AiRE 2 8 THEEABRMKT - IiFE

foundation for clean governance, we conduct regular and institutionalized
educational activities such as anti-corruption and compliance training for new
hires before they join the Company, and periodic anti-corruption training for
directors and employees, creating a strong anti-corruption and integrity
atmosphere throughout the Group. During the Reporting Period, we
conducted the business ethics and anti-corruption training for the Board and
employees.

We encourage employees and all other stakeholders to reflect and report any
suspected violations of laws, regulations, business ethics, or corporate systems,
such as commercial bribery, privacy breaches, favouritism, fraud, money
laundering and irregularities. Whistleblowers select the whistleblowing channel
based on their actual circumstance and dedicated personnel will be
designated by the relevant department to deal with violations of laws and
regulations based on the reward and punishment system of the Group.
Whistleblowing is investigated and verified, and the findings are reported
internally for corrective measures, forming a closed-loop management. In case
of major corruption, employees can report directly to the management of the
Group to ensure timely risk control and prevent further risk expansion. In
addition, the Group attaches great importance to maintaining the
confidentiality of whistleblowers’ information and provides anonymous
protection throughout the whistleblowing process.
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Direct whistleblowing
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The Whistleblowing Procedures of the Group

REEEHRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any legal cases  #REHIK - ANEBE W A EET AT EEAR 55
involving corruption against itself or its employees. HEEBMNE SEMMEN AEEM -
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BEING RESPONSIBLE AND PRODUCING QUALITY
PRODUCTS

The Group regards product quality as the foundation of our business
operations. To pursue excellence, we have established a sound product quality
and safety management system, made great investment in research and
development and innovation, and extended high demands on product safety
and quality to the entire value chain, striving to provide consumers with high-
quality products. We actively build smooth and diverse communication
channels with consumers, respond to their demands in a timely manner,
protect their rights and interests in all aspects, and wholeheartedly provide
consumers with the best quality services.

Quality Assurance

"Quality First” is the philosophy that the Group has always upheld. We regard
product quality and safety as the top priority of our management, continuously
strengthen the construction and optimization of our quality and safety
management system, and improve our product recall system to ensure that we
provide consumers with high-quality and safe products, creating a quality and
healthy lifestyle.

Quality Control

We strictly comply with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China and
its implementing regulations, the Technical Guidelines on Prevention and Control
of COVID-19 for Production and Operation Units of Imported Goods, the
Regulations on Supervision and Administration of the Implementation of the Main
Responsibility for Food Safety by Enterprises, the Measures for the Administration of
Supervision and Inspection of Food Production and Operation, the New Zealand
Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985, the New Zealand Animal Products Act
1999, the New Zealand Food Act 2014 and the Good Manufacturing Practice of
Medical Products (GMP), as well as other relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate.
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During the Reporting Period, we revised our internal management systems
such as the Food Safety Management System and the Food Safety Risk
Management System for Daily Control, Weekly Investigation and Monthly
Adjustment in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. We optimized
our quality and safety management system and management structure,
reviewed and developed corresponding management measures, and
controlled the entire production process to ensure that all inspections meet
the requirements in the place we sell our products and safeguard the quality
and safety of our products. In order to further clarify the responsibilities of
personnel at all levels and standardize the implementation of quality and safety
management, we have also formulated the Code of Responsibilities for Food
Safety Director and Food Safety Officer, and appointed the responsible person,
food safety director, and food safety officers according to applicable
requirements of duties and responsibilities, so as to put the responsibility of
production quality into practice. In 2022, to meet the compliance requirements
of the Pharmacovigilance Inspection Program of the Therapeutic Goods
Administration of Australia (TGA), Cobayer took the following measures:

’--------

Ensured that all employees

Uploaded contact details of L
complete the training course
the relevant product owners to L
. for Pharmacovigilance
e Jlei s Inspection Program
ETGAMY E3 i T HBER b
= o e T5% =
B R REMBEEITRENEN
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We are committed to monitoring, analysis, control and prevention of each key
point of food safety and quality control from source to end customers,
ensuring the high-quality output of all products. For the first batch of new
products, Sinolife United conducts type testing and strictly review the arrival
and factory inspection reports to ensure that the quality of its products meets
the standard requirements. In addition, to ensure product safety during the
pandemic, the Company has implemented disinfection management and
pandemic prevention and control testing for all imported products. Good
Health has established a quality control system that covers the entire
production process and conducts quality inspection on received raw materials,
semi-finished products, and products in the packaging process according to
materials and product specifications, achieving effective product quality
control. Living Nature has inspection procedures set up throughout the
product production process, requiring at least two quality inspectors to
perform inspections and give written approval on quality, safety and coding
before moving on to the next stage of production. We strictly implement full-
process control to ensure the quality of our products while preventing the
occurrence of coding errors or unrecognizable expiration dates. Additionally, to
ensure the effectiveness of the process, Living Nature conducts internal audits
of the quality control process and batch production records every year.
Furthermore, we actively cooperate with third-party testing institutions that
meet the qualification requirements to conduct internal product quality testing
every year. In 2022, the Group did not receive any consumer complaints due to
product quality and safety issues.
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During the Reporting Period, Living Nature, a subsidiary of the Group, obtained
GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice of Medical Products) certification and passed
the COSMOS certification (organic or natural cosmetics) and BDIH certification
(Bundesverband der Deutscher Industrie-und Handelsunternehmen, the German
natural and organic certification) in relation to the premises, personnel,
procedures, equipment, raw materials and packaging, quality control, stock
rotation, emissions, waste, documentation and quality management system.
Good Health obtained the GMP certificate for a 2-year renewal, the MPI-RMP
Certificate (Risk Management Professional of The Ministry of Industries, New
Zealand), NZ National Programme Level 3 Certification, a HALAL Certification and
the qualification certification of Animal Products Exporter and the New Zealand
organic certification.

We continue to improve our quality and food safety training system, offering
various categories of training such as quality and safety awareness, food safety
system knowledge, and standard requirements. We conduct multi-level and
all-round quality education to enhance employee professional capabilities and
lay a foundation for improving product quality and food safety management.

Food safety training
BmEEE
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In 2022, the Company conducted trainings on Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of the Implementation of Main
Responsibility for Food Safety by Enterprises in order to meet the needs of product quality management. By interpreting the
requirements of national laws and regulations of the PRC, we facilitated the understanding of employees responsible for product
safety and quality on national policies and regulations, strengthened the responsibility of the main responsible person for food
safety, and regulated the conduct of food safety management personnel. Through a combination of training and examinations, we
consolidate learning results and improve our performance in food safety.
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Product Recall

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Food Product Recall Management Rules, and other laws and regulations in
the place where the Group operates, the Group formulates a collection of
internal policy documents, including the Products Recall Management System,
the Incoming Food Inspection Procedures and Food Recall System.

In order to ensure that we can respond promptly and efficiently to potential
individual product quality and safety incidents and better safeguard consumer
rights, the Group have developed effective product recall systems in their
respective markets and continuously optimize and improve them. At the same
time, we require all operating sites to conduct annual product recall drills to
verify the effectiveness and operability of our recall procedures, ensuring timely
and accurate response to relevant incidents and recalls. In 2022, the Group
conducted product recall drills at all operating sites, and did not experience
any proactive or passive product recalls due to product quality issues.

Innovation Research

The Group is dedicated to driving business development through innovation,
adhering to the research and development philosophy of nutrition, health, and
safety, constantly innovating and developing high-quality health products with
new functions, formulations, and processes for consumers. Meanwhile, we
attach great importance to the protection of product knowledge and
intellectual property rights to prevent counterfeit products from entering the
market and endangering consumer health, so as to safeguard the health and
safety of consumers.
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Product Research and Development

With innovation as the driving force and consumer demand as the core, the
Group continuously improves its responsiveness to market demand and
product trends, strives to enhance its innovation management capabilities, and
explores technological innovation in product design and development. In
terms of research and development, we have standardized the process of
approval, research, project approval and review of product research and
development through internal systems in strict compliance with regulations
and rules in the place where we operate, such as the Regulations of the People’s
Republic of China on the Registration and Administration of Overseas
Manufacturers of Imported Food (General Administration of Customs Order No.
248), the Measures of the People’s Republic of China for the Administration of
Import and Export Food Safety, the Measures on the Administration of Cosmetic
Labelling (National Medical Products Administration Order No. 77), the Measures
for the Administration of the Registration and Recordation of Cosmetics (State
Administration for Market Regulation Order No. 35), the Regulations on the
Administration of Supplementary Inspection Methods for Cosmetics, the
Specification for the Evaluation of the Claimed Efficacy of Cosmetics, the
Regulations for the Administration of Cosmetics Registration and Filing Data and
the Technical Guidelines for the Safety Assessment of Cosmetics, so that we can
provide better quality products to customers in a legal and compliant manner.

Adhering to a customer-oriented approach, we continuously increase our
research and development efforts, and constantly explore innovation in
products, technology, technologies and crafts. Through a dual-drive approach
of internal research and development and external introduction, we
continuously provide consumers with more natural, fresh, and safe products to
meet their health needs and promote the high-quality development of the
Group.

Committed to zero-additive, safeguarding the health of users
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In 2022, the Group adhered to the principle of avoiding the use of additives as much as possible for newly developed products.
Additives are only used when necessary based on process technology and have been proven safe and reliable after risk assessment,

and their usage in products is minimized as much as possible.
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During the Reporting Period, we have developed new products such as GoodHealth composite powder
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Wer'ermin composite powder (4 B 848 & # ) without the use any food additives, and all ingredients used were healthy materials

that are beneficial for the human body.
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In 2022, the Group invested a total of RMB0.83 million in research and
development and implemented 23 technological innovation projects, of which
5 were in Sinolife United, 17 were in Good Health and 1 was in Cobayer. During
the Reporting Period, Living Nature received a number of honors and awards
for its products.
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The Best of Natural Awards 2022 —
Best Serum Winner, Advanced
Renewal Night Serum

N

The Beauty Shortlist Awards 2022 —

Editor's Choice, Radiance Night Ol

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group highly values the transformation of innovation achievements and
the protection of intellectual property rights, and strictly complies with the
relevant requirements of the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other laws and regulations regarding intellectual property rights. We continue
to improve our intellectual property management system, continuously
improve our intellectual property management level and optimize our
intellectual property rights risk prevention mechanism by formulating internal
systems such as the Intellectual Property Rights Management and Patent
Protection System, while protecting our intellectual property rights from
infringement through trademark registration and patent application.
Meanwhile, Sinolife United has conducted regular training on patent law and
related policies and regulations for the staff of research and development
department, and invited cooperative trademark agencies to give lectures on
trademark law and common trademark cases to enhance the awareness of
intellectual property protection of employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not identify any incident involving infringements upon intellectual
property rights.

In 2022, the Group applied for and was granted 1 design patent, and
maintained 5 existing invention patents. During the Reporting Period, we
renewed 18 trademarks that were due to expire, applied for and were granted
11 new trademarks, and also applied for and obtained 3 artwork copyrights. As
of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group held a total of 191 trademarks,
including 106 for Sinolife United and 85 for Good Health.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group recognizes the value of effective supply chain management in
delivering high-quality services and driving business growth. With a responsible
attitude towards consumers, customers, suppliers, and society as a whole, we
continuously improve our supply chain system and actively build a responsible
supply chain. We seek close collaboration with our partners in the industry
chain to realize advanced resource sharing, helping to promote the sustainable
development of the industry chain.

Supplier Management System

We regard the establishment of an open, fair and transparent supply chain as
the cornerstone of our stable and sustainable development. The Group
continuously improves its supply chain management system and strive to
establish a reliable management system and supervision mechanism. In strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to the supply chain, we
have developed the Supplier Management System to continuously optimize the
management processes related to supplier access, supplier review, supplier
assistance, and supplier cooperation. As regards to overseas suppliers, we
implement a collaborative management model at home and abroad, and
conduct a comprehensive review in compliance with GMP standards to
safeguard production and operation stability.
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Supplier
access
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Cooperative
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Review
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Based on the GMP system, we review the qualifications of supplier,
and propose the relevant safety requirements. All suppliers are subject
to assessment by the competent department before being admitted
into supplier list.
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We maintain multi-level and in-depth communication with suppliers through various
measures such as emails, phone calls, WeChat, and face-to-face meetings in the process
of performance, to timely track and understand relevant dynamics and changes of
suppliers.
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Our performance assessment focuses on various dimensions, including food, service
quality, food brand awareness, punctuality of delivery, pricing, and aftersales services.
For suppliers with issues identified during the review, we provide them with
solutions, offer corresponding technical support, and help them improve their
management quality.
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Supplier Management System
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suppliers and 151 Chinese suppliers.
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Sustainable Supply Chain

We are committed to integrating ESG requirements into our supply chain
management, practicing sustainable procurement, and focusing on social and
environmental issues and potential risks in the value chain. We effectively
manage ESG risks in the supply chain through reasonable means and
continuously improve the ESG performance of the supply chain. We
incorporate ESG-related indicators into the scope of supplier access and
evaluation, examining their performance in environmental protection,
pollution prevention and control, occupational health and safety, anti-
corruption, and business ethics, to ensure compliance in procurement and
prioritize cooperation with suppliers with outstanding sustainable
performance. For suppliers with significant negative ESG incidents identified
during the cooperative process evaluation and review evaluation, we will take
reasonable actions and follow up on the rectification progress.

Living Nature has put forward a series of ESG-related requirements for suppliers
in the Quality System for Raw Materials and Packaging Materials, such as
encouraging suppliers to commit to reducing their impact on the environment,
purchasing palm oil produced in a sustainable and human rights-respecting
manner, enhancing material recycling and eliminating the employment of
child labor, etc., to promote the construction of a sustainable supply chain,
reduce potential risks in the supply chain, and ensure stable production and
operation of the Group.

The quality of raw and auxiliary materials is an extremely important part of
quality management. In the course of cooperation, we standardize the
management of our raw and auxiliary material suppliers, striving to achieve
comprehensive and full-process supervision of the supply chain. Based on the
agreement on the quality acceptance standards between our suppliers and us
in the contract, we require our suppliers to provide regular product testing
reports to ensure the safety and quality of raw and auxiliary materials. In
addition to requiring each new supplier to follow GMP processes, Good Health
conducts a comprehensive RMA (Raw Material Assessment) process for new
product development and quality teams, carries out rigorous sample testing
and trial production, while issuing evaluation questionnaires to suppliers, and
obtain the MSC (Marine Stewardship Council) certification, so as to ensure
product quality and sustainable materials.
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In addition, we regularly performed audit work over various suppliers, including
paper audit and on-site audit. We carried out extensive investigation into the
plant premises, production sites, and quality management of our suppliers to
ensure that their ESG-related risks, quality and management are up to standard.

In the face of risks and uncertainties in external environment, the Group
proactively identified possible supply chain-related risks and adjusted its
planning in a timely manner in order to ensure the high efficiency and stability
of the supply chain. By adopting a multi-supplier mechanism, dispatching
procurement orders in advance, replacing shipping with sea freight, increasing
market safety stock and placing orders for seasonal products in line with the
seasons, we reduce procurement costs and enhance the flexibility of our
supply chain, thus providing solid guarantees for the continuity of the supply
chain.

Communication with Suppliers

To ensure the continuity of supply chain and timely resolve issues that arise
during business cooperation, we actively engage in various formal and informal
communications with suppliers. In our daily work, we communicate with our
suppliers through face-to-face meetings, phone calls, emails, and WeChat,
jointly solving problems and challenges in cooperation and achieving efficient
cooperation.

We are committed to providing technical support to suppliers with our
expertise and experience to jointly develop high-quality products. During the
research and development and production stages, we recommend high-
quality raw materials and assist suppliers in analyzing problems that may arise
during production and provide relevant solutions to suppliers with our
historical production experience, achieving win-win cooperation.

Service System

The Group adheres to the concept of providing quality living for consumers
and treats every consumer with sincerity. By continuously enriching our service
channels, carrying out responsible marketing activities, expanding consumer
communication channels and protecting consumer privacy, we strive to
provide consumers with secure and pleasant experiences in both comfortable
services and health. By this approach, we can continuously improve consumer
experience and satisfaction with quality brand culture and services.

Service Channel

To meet the diversified service needs of consumers and provide them with
high-quality shopping experiences, we continue to expand our marketing
channels and integrate our marketing resources to achieve the full-range
coverage and multichannel services for our target customers.
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The Group continues to expand its online self-operated sales channels to
enable customers to enjoy a convenient shopping experience. In 2022, we
expanded and upgraded our channels to varying degrees on JD.com, Douyin,
Kuaishou, and Tmall. In addition, adhering to the development concept of
seeking innovation and change, we have actively adjusted our strategies
according to market conditions and promoted the shifting of various TV
shopping platforms and suppliers to Douyin, huimai.com, cnmall.com, hao24.
com, and other platforms, while operating Douyin’s brand flagship store. In line
with the pace of the times and in-depth analysis of consumer demand, we
further carried out live-streaming activities on the platform, actively
participated in various platform promotions, invited celebrities for live-
streaming e-commerce to increase the exposure of our brands, while
continuously expanded our sales channels, so as to provide consumers with
more choices. In particular, our New Zealand Goats’ Milk Powder recorded
outstanding performance by ranking first in category sales during the Double
11 Shopping Festival on “hao24.com” platform.

In New Zealand, Living Nature promotes its organic products through content
promotion and video marketing on social media, and invites multiple internet
celebrities to try out their products for free, increasing the exposure of relevant
products on social media. In 2022, Living Nature conducted a user evaluation
activity for its product Nourishing Night Cream, in order to obtain objective
and real customer evaluations, which would serve as convincing promotional
materials for future marketing of the product, thus helping the Company
develop a stable customer base. In 2022, a total of 25 users participated in the
product evaluation activity.

Living Nature attaches equal importance to offline product promotion activities
and conducts content promotion in various relevant magazines in New
Zealand. Moreover, it organizes various forms of offline promotional activities
targeting different types of users, actively maintaining the existing customer
base.
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“Flourishing Ladies” Offline Campaign
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To maintain a high level of service and uphold our brand image, we have set
clear access and evaluation criteria for our distributors and advocate reducing
the negative impact of business activities on the environment by entering into
the Distributor Cooperation Agreement, Anti-Corruption Agreement, and the
initiative to establish green and sustainable partnerships. At the same time, we
invite professionals to conduct monthly performance evaluations of
distributors from a third-party perspective, taking into account factors such as
performance, whether the data meets standards, the level of brand
maintenance, and the potential for long-term development.

At the same time, we will strengthen communication with distributors through
regular distributor meetings, offline satisfaction surveys and other methods,
with a view to providing consumers a quality service experience in a joint
effort.

Communication with Customers

We attach great importance to customer experience and demands, and make
active efforts to build a comprehensive customer service system and to
communicate with customers through online, offline and other diversified
channels to meet the diverse needs of customers with a full range of multi-
angle service methods and improve customer consumption experience and
satisfaction.

In strict compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Tort Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the New Zealand Fair Trading Act 1986, we continue to optimize the
customer complaint handling mechanism to ensure the timely handling of
customer complaint and improve customer satisfaction. In order to drive the
continuous improvement of our customer service system, we have set a goal
of achieving a satisfaction score of 4.8 points and zero negative reviews or
complaints during the Reporting Period.

Consumers can make inquiries and complaints through various channels such
as the enquiry hotlines and the platform system, which are answered by well-
trained and dedicated customer service staff. We are committed to providing
the first solution within 24 hours, completing the complaint within 48 hours,
and arranging a return visit within 72 hours after the completion to further
follow up and investigate the problem-solving situation, and continuing to
provide other solutions to customer if not satisfied, so as to realize the closed-
loop handling of customer complaints.

Living Nature is developing a customer service system that collects customer
inquiries across channels, aiming to efficiently evaluate feedback data , provide
improved solutions for customers, and assist product development to help
customers live a healthy life. In addition, Sinolife United designates quality
inspectors to conduct customer satisfaction surveys by reviewing orders and
conducting random checks, and organizes training for customer service staff
based on the feedback from quality inspectors to improve service quality.
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We regularly conduct professional training for employees products, customer
service, and after-sales handling, focusing on improving their understanding of
products, standardizing customer service terms, attitudes, and reception
processes on various platforms, and helping employees master skills for
handling after-sales issues to comprehensively improve service quality for
customers. At the same time, we conduct capability assessment after the
training to improve business skills and better serve our customers, continuously
improving customer satisfaction.

During the Reporting Period, we received a total of 380 complaints,
representing a decrease as compared to 2021. All complaints have been
properly resolved, achieving the annual customer complaint system
performance target of zero escalated complaints and low return rate. In 2022,
the customer satisfaction of Sinolife United reached an excellent score of 4.92
points (out of 5 points).

Responsible Marketing

The Group pays great attention to the management compliance of its
advertising activities. In the course of marketing and the provision of services,
the Group strictly complies with various laws and regulations, including the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Advertising Management
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China, the Interim Provisions of the People’s
Republic of China on Publishing Food Advertisements, the Interim Provisions of the
People’s Republic of China on Censorship of Healthy Food Advertisements. We
regulate the marketing management process, establish corresponding control
measures, and ensure the accuracy, truthfulness, and legality of marketing
activities and promotional materials. At the same time, we guide consumers to
a healthy living practices and promote responsible consumption by focusing
on advocating healthy living concepts in marketing activities.

To better manage marketing activities, we have established a marketing and
advertising review system, which is regularly reviewed and updated
accordingly for compliance with laws and regulations, to ensure that all
marketing content and forms pass internal reviews, and that all product labels
are clear and objective, without any exaggerations or false statements. In the
meantime, we conduct strict quality checks on the content of live-streaming
and have developed a review process for compliant live-streaming to ensure
the security and truthfulness of the products and information displayed during
the live-streaming. All marketing materials must be reviewed and confirmed by
compliance auditors on the platform before going online to avoid violations
and sales losses.
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In order to establish awareness of marketing compliance risks and ensure
business compliance, we provide compliance marketing publicity and training
to marketing and promotional personnel, strengthening their understanding
of advertising and marketing laws, regulations, and system requirements,
ensuring the effectiveness of compliance reviews. The training covers
marketing and promotional personnel involved in product operations and live
streaming operations across all channels.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

As marketing efforts intensify, we continue to strengthen measures related to
information security and privacy protection, ensuring the security of
consumers’ personal information from both operational and technical
perspectives. We have established and implemented the Measures for Customer
Privacy Protection in strict compliance with the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In the course of operation, by
adhering to the principle of “active calling, passive adding”, we have developed
strict external call regulations and imposed restrictions on our employees as to
access to private information of customers by using customer system features
such as hidden customer numbers and one-call outbound calls. At the same
time, we add customers’ WeChat account through official WeChat accounts
and conduct periodic chat spot checks to actively protect customer privacy
and ensure the security of customer information.

LOW-CARBON DEVELOPMENT TO BUILD A GREEN
HOME TOGETHER

We are committed to high quality and sustainable development. To this end,
we continuously improve our environmental management system, establish a
sound environmental management system, and strictly control the emissions
of various pollutants. Through technological and management innovation
throughout the production process, we reduce waste, improve energy
efficiency and resource utilization, and minimize the impact of our business on
the environment. At the same time, we continuously strengthen employees’
awareness of environmental protection and deepen the concept of
sustainability in every aspect of production and operation.
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Environmental Management

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations of the places we
operate in during the process of production and operation, including the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard of the People’s Republic of China (1996),
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the Environment
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and the New
Zealand Environment Act, 1986 and etc. We have developed internal
management systems and policies such as the Corporate Environmental
Management System, the Energy Conservation Management System, the
Corporate Solid Waste Management System, the Precautionary Measures for
Hazardous Waste and the Wastewater Management System, to promote the
institutionalization and standardization of environmental management. To
ensure the orderly operation of environmental management, the Group has
established an environmental protection taskforce, formulated environmental
framework, identified environmental management targets and responsibilities.
Furthermore, we effectively respond to environmental protection issues
through a sound institutional system and reasonable methods and measures,
realize scientific management of water resources, energy and emissions, and
reduce the environmental footprint in our production and operation.

Living Nature has Toitu (which is formerly known as EnviroMark and provides
environmental management solutions) certification, which accesses its
environmental management in terms of supply chain, business, and risks.

Environmental Target

The Group strives to reduce the impact of its production and operations on the
environment, and have made continuous improvements to environmental
performance at all stages of production, setting specific environmental targets
and indicators, supervising and guiding green and low-carbon development,
and actively fulfilling our environmental responsibilities. We have set five-year
(2022-2026) environmental targets for greenhouse gas emissions, energy
consumption, water use and waste discharge in 2021. During the Reporting
Period, through assessments of the current situation and implementation of
environmental measures, we strived to reduce carbon emissions, resource
consumption, and waste and continuously reduced the impact of our
production and operations on the environment. We made efforts to achieve
our environmental objectives and promote sustainable development of our
business.

ARTAEBMESROHBRAE —T-_FFR

REEHE
AEEELEEMEEBREPBEBET(PEA
REMBRBREE(PEARXMBENOTR
DAz EE AR A FIES 7K &R S BE IR ZE
1996)Ch E AR A MB E R REY)) S R IREN A
FEICPEARAMBERRS R AE) RAT
BCORBEIAR - 1986) F& 2 EMAARRA
AR - HIE CRIREE S E)(EREEIEHE)
(ElEERYEESE)(EREY&EEE)
(BKEENE)FAMEEGIE - BEHEER
HEERGEL KRB RERAEERRE
BTHENARFRAR  RFKIRERES N
ERREEEER PHHERBEEERFER
B BBTENHIERRMEENTEREY
RIGREREETAREY - BREKER
BER MBI EERE RO RPIEEME
ERIEPRIRFE RS -

Living Nature &8 [Toitu] CRIZEEEFA T &
Al & A EnviroMark) 3378 - 2R (it - %
% REREFEYCERRREEIRNE -

REBEEHE

REEZNREEELBLIRENTE  HWE
ESREHMNIRIBEREET T IFEERN SO -
B ABKIREBEMER  BRIESHE
B R - BIREITIRIREE © 20214 + H 1M
B R EREEHER - EFEHRE - KERFERM
REZEWIBERRGEE T 54 (2022-2026) IRIREHZ ©
WMENA - BMBBE IR ARIRESE
RISEHL - DR IRPEN - BEREFEREE
V) BEROTELEELEBHIRRENNE
2 BIREHIZMERMES N -
HERR -

91



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

N4

Greenhouse gas emission targets
BERBHREE
Accumulative reduction of 20% in
greenhouse gas emissions based on
average greenhouse gas emissions from
2019-2021
£A2019-2021F PR ER ML E R
EEE - Rt BERBHER209

Energy consumption targets

ﬁ“%‘éEF

Accumulative reduction of 20% in
electricity consumption based on
average electricity consumption from
2019-2021

L2019 -2021FFHHEERE
ME - ZFRLHEER20%

Water consumption targets

KEBE
Accumulative reduction of 8% in
water consumption based on average
water consumption in 2021
L2021 F R KEREEE - RitE
DFEKE8%

Use of Resources

The Group has always been committed to rational resource allocation,
continuously optimizing our resource management system, and improving
resource management measures, and have adopted a series of management
optimization measures in respect of the management of water resources and
the use of packaging materials. We actively explore ways to improve resource
utilization efficiency.

Water Resource Management

The Group adheres to the concept of rational and water-saving water use, and
strictly complies with the Water Law of People’s Republic of China and the New
Zealand Water Services Act, 2021. To continuously improve water resource
utilization efficiency, we have conducted a thorough analysis of water resource
usage in the production and operation processes, implemented corresponding
water-saving measures, and improved employees’ water-saving awareness
through various publicity and training efforts, comprehensively enhancing our
water-saving capabilities. During the Reporting Period, Sinolife United was
awarded the title of Provincial Water-Saving Enterprise by Jiangsu Water
Conservancy Department.
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Waste targets

BRERYBR

Hazardous waste disposal rate of
100%

FEBRRYEREZET 100%
Reduction of 20% in solid waste
discharge based on average solid
waste discharge from 2019-2021
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The source for water resources of the Group is municipal water supply and
rainwater reuse, which is mainly used for the daily operation of the office
premises and production in the industrial park. During the Reporting Period,
we did not experiences any issue in relation to water security. Our practices for
water conservation are:

REEKERFRATRAKMBE/KEA - £
EHRERAELENDAFIEERNK - RS
HARS - BRI A TR B AR K R 2 B 9
o BIMEIKERIES ¢

=
Water-saving
measures in the
production process

EERIK

» Avoided processes that consume substantial water in research and development and
production process and installed water-saving devices to reduce water resource consumption

L ERENEERMEPEFRKTE - AEMEKEER - HMAKERERE

irrigation, cleaning roads

Rainwater recycle BRI AR AR LEE « BEIBRETIE
MKE A

(- Built rainwater and sewage separation facility in the office premises and the industrial park for
rainwater recycling. By separating rainwater and sewage, rainwater is recycled and used for greening,

MABRRERKEW RS - IRKERBERNA - BBHRTETOR

During the Reporting Period, our water consumption is as follows:

Consumables

HEHR - LAWAKERDT

Consumption JHE &

Category 2021 2022 Unit By
Water resources KE R 20,284 6,617 7,160 Tonne 4§
Water consumption BTz ke FE 0.68 0.26 0.26  Tonne per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Y=V

Packaging Materials Management BEMEEE

The Group is committed to reducing the environmental impact of packaging
materials in production, operation and disposal, while complying with relevant
laws and regulations in the regions where it operates. We have established a
packaging committee to monitor and manage the use of packaging materials
following relevant guidelines, continuously improving our packaging
management system, and actively exploring the research and application of
sustainable materials. We continuously develop environmentally-friendly
packaging, increase the proportion of recyclable materials used, and enhance
recycling efficiency. In packaging design, we consider product specifications
and usage to minimize the unreasonable use of packaging materials.
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We constantly explore the use of new environmentally-friendly and recyclable
packaging materials, and strive to improve the reuse rate of our packaging
materials. Living Nature has replaced the original PP (polypropylene) inner
packaging material with first-grade plastic PET (polyethylene terephthalate),
effectively enhancing the recyclability of the product packaging. In addition, it
selects paper packaging materials such as cardboards and labels that have
obtained PEFC (Program for the Endorsement of Forest Certification) and FSC
(Forest Stewardship Council) certifications. For its outer packaging, Living
Nature uses packaging cardboard materials that have obtained the
aforementioned certifications and are made from soy-based ink printing which
is natural, non-toxic, and 100% recyclable.

We advocate appropriately sized packaging and actively promote the
reduction and lightness of packaging materials . Additionally, we make the
orders for packaging materials in line with the production volume of products
by following our principle of purchasing on demand to avoid unnecessary
resource waste. During the Reporting Period, we promoted the reduction of
packaging materials by optimizing packaging design:

Adjusted packaging
design toreduce ™
unnecessary packaging

AEOLR
DR Lk

Reduction of Packaging

BEREL
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Cardboards and plastics are our major packaging materials. Set forth below
was the consumption by the Group of packaging materials during the
Reporting Period:

Consumables

BHAZEERNEN BRIRMER - HEH
A B BREMEHERBE R T

Consumption JH3E &

Category 2021 2022 Unit B4y
Packaging materials 2EEe 553.87 546.98 552.6 Tonne M
Consumption of packaging BTN e FE 18.68 2168 20.1  Kilogram per
materials per revenue of RMB10,000
RMB10,000 Tr/B1
Emissions Compliance SRBER

The Group strictly follows and complies with relevant laws and regulations and
continuously improves the standardized management of wastewater, exhaust
gas, and waste. We integrate pollution prevention, process control, and end-of-
pipe treatment into the entire operation and production process. We attach
great importance to the impact and hazards of pollutions on the environment
and insist on compliance and transparency in pollutant emissions. Through the
development of internal management systems, we regulate the emission of
exhaust gas, wastewater, and solid waste in all stages of production and
operation, ensuring compliance with discharge standards while achieving
green development. During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any
violations of laws and regulations related to environmental protection,
excessive pollutants, orillegal discharge.

Wastewater Management

We have formulated the internal management documents to establish clear
environmental targets of “100% up-to-standard discharge” and wastewater
treatment requirements to protect and improve the production and living
environment and prevent the pollution of soil and water caused by non-
compliant discharge of wastewater. We have fine-tuned our wastewater
management and allocated responsibilities to each department, implementing
hierarchical and specialized management of wastewater discharge in all stages
of operation. Additionally, we continuously strengthen our infrastructure
management and strictly control the emissions of new sources of pollution.

All ' wastewater collection, treatment, and discharge in the Group are carried
out in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the regions where
we operate. The wastewater generated by us mainly consists of domestic
wastewater, which is discharged into the municipal pipe network after being
treated to meet the standard through sedimentation. All of our production
water is recycled through a biological recycling system. Through the
normalization and refinement of our water resource management, we avoid
excessive water use in our production and operation processes, effectively
reducing the amount and discharge of wastewater.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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During the Reporting Period, we invited a third-party testing agency to
conduct inspections on our wastewater discharge, and the results showed that
our wastewater discharge met the relevant discharge standards, achieving our
target of 100% up-to-standard discharge. Set forth below was our wastewater
discharged during the Reporting Period:

WA - BOUEEE = AR EE MR
BEKBERUIB A TTARR - BRI RAEE R BRI
%7K BE B 2 A8 B8 BE BRI 2E - B R BE 7K 100%
EIZHMMEIE - REHA - RFIRSKEER
BFRIT

Amount discharged B} &

Emissions

Category 2021 2022 Unit B {u

Wastewater discharged JEEIKBERL 2,625 2,697.6 4,770 Tonne M8
Waste Management BEYER

The Group strictly manages the waste in strict compliance with the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the Environment of the People’s
Republic of China and Prevention and Control of Waste Hazardous Chemical the
Law of Pollution, and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste, as well as
various laws and regulations of the overseas countries in which we operated.
We have developed relevant management systems to regulate the
management of waste, aiming to reduce the generation of waste, increase the
utilization rate of waste, and reduce the negative impact on the environment.

For non-hazardous waste generated during the production process, we
identify and classify the waste after collection and labeling before putting them
into waste bins for temporary storage, while taking measures to prevent
leakage and fly-away. We prioritize the recycling and reuse of general solid
waste, and for non-recyclable waste and domestic waste, we hand them over
to the municipal department for unified transportation and disposal. Sinolife
United attaches great importance to the management of hazardous waste and
adheres to the principle of “unified collection, classified disposal, and
elimination of hidden hazards”. We have formulated the Hazardous Waste
Warehousing Policy and incorporated pollution prevention and control of
hazardous waste into our development plan, constructing collection and
storage sites that meet environmental protection requirements. For all
hazardous waste generated, we collect them and temporarily store them in
hazardous waste storage after inspection and registration, and then hand them
over to qualified units for processing while keeping records of the transfer and
processing. This ensures the compliant processing of hazardous waste while
protecting the ecological environment, public safety, and health. Additionally,
we are committed to improving solid waste treatment technology to reduce
the amount of solid waste generated.

! Increase in wastewater discharge was due to new rental areas in the office premises in 2022.
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The non-hazardous waste generated from our operation mainly comprises of
packaging waste, personal protective equipment waste, electronic waste, office
waste, and food waste, and hazardous waste produced by us mainly includes
mineral oil waste, drugs waste, waste ink cartridges and waste batteries. Set
forth below was our waste discharge during the Reporting Period:

BMEENEZEENETEABEER - BR
RERL - BTN - WANIRAMERRE - E
ENEREEVEERERDM - BFES - B
B2 BEEMAE - WREHAN - BRMONEEDHE
IR

Amount discharged B} &

Waste
Category 2021 2022 Unit B4y
Hazardous waste BEREEY 1551 14.58 0.52 Tonne M§
Hazardous waste BTz BREEY 0.52 0.58 0.02 Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Tr/B1
Non-hazardous waste BmEREEY) 43.08 121.03 63.66 Tonne 188
Non-hazardous waste BTk BEEEY 145 48 2.32  Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
TrR/BT

Exhaust Gas Management BRERE

Due to the nature of our products and the specificity of production processes,
there is basically no external emission of exhaust gas in our production process
except for a small amount of emissions from laboratory. The generated exhaust
gas in each stage will be absorbed by activated carbon before its compliant
emission, to prevent the emission of exhaust gases from polluting the
environment.

Response to Climate Change

Climate change has become a major concern for human society, and achieving
carbon neutrality in all aspects of society has become the development trend
for the future. The Group closely follows the actions taken by our country and
the world to address climate change. We aim to achieve China’s “carbon peak
and carbon neutrality” goals and respond to the proposals put forward by
international organizations to combat climate change, in order to avoid climate
disasters. We actively explore low-carbon development models and realize the
green transformation of our business, contributing to the efforts to address
climate change.

Je

Energy Management

We comply with the relevant energy management laws and regulations of
places in which we operate, such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation, and continuously improve our energy management
capabilities. We actively implement energy-saving and emission reduction
measures in all operating processes and strengthen energy management and
utilization to achieve efficient energy use.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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m o AL,

In order to improve the energy efficiency of the production process and reduce A1 E 4 E IR BT LR A 8K - BRI AL R
energy consumption, we actively explored equipment technology  # ' R{PIFEGIFEEBERMSCE - AR E
improvements and replaced low-energy- efficiency equipment with high-  REREEFELRE  BSEHEREEXENEESER
efficiency equipment, implementing energy conservation and emission  £iZ 1 - HFINMEERSSEZREL H R
reduction in all aspects of production. We also actively pursued clean energy R RZEJENIATEE MRS o B - 3 M
transformation solutions and explored the development and implementation I8 /3 (&K in 2 B & 0 62 R (5 A 8 MRk
of rooftop photovoltaic projects. At the same time, we made efforts to reduce 8 - IEHAR - ZRPEDREFEBEHRENT
energy consumption and carbon emissions in the logistics and warehousing — EFRERBEER 5

sector. During the Reporting Period, we implemented the following energy-

saving and emission reduction measures in the logistics and warehousing

sector:

RRXXNXN

LED lights are used for warehouse lighting

RER\HEALEDE

Reasonable planning of warehouse partitioning: shipping area and warehousing area near the door to reduce the handling distance

RESEHRFIE  REERFRESEMA - BIRERNEHER

When the temperature regulation effiency of the air conditioner is higher than the demand of the product storage environment,
the operating state of the air conditioning unit is adjusted in time to avoid waste of resources

ZHRERHRESHERFRBATRE - REFARZARAETRE  BRERRE

Strengthen employees’ awareness of energy conservation through electricity and water saving signs and promotion

BERAERMEE HAEEAREE  BICEIHOERNER

Turning off the power when leaving the warehousing area is included in the daily inspection

KEREAEMEAABERE

The Group advocates for green and low-carbon office practices, and is ~ ANEBEEBZESERNMATR - B [4E
committed to creating green and low-carbon office environment by issuing 1B ]+ HIEREM A [5R] RA - BRI
the “Green Initiative” and establishing the “5R” principles for an &R BEFREMAIRE -
environmentally-friendly office.
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5R Principle [5R] JRAI

REDUCE POLLUTION AND CONSERVE RESOURCES

REUSE ITS RESIDUAL VALUE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE

RECYCLE THE WASTE AND WASTE CLASSIFICATION

RESCUE LIVING CREATURES AND CONSERVE NATURE

We promote the use of energy-efficient office equipment while continuously
pushing forward the promotion of environmental protection and training
activities to enhance employees’ environmental awareness. We encourage all
employees to participate in energy-saving actions, such as attending online
meetings, reducing paper bill receipt, and reducing the consumption of
electricity, paper, and office supplies, thus contributing to a green and low-
carbon office environment.

RE-EVALUATE WHETHER THE PRODUCT IS ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY

EHHNER - BAEHR

RELETE  RRER

BEERER - ZRFA

DEEY - ERBE

REER  BYHE

BPERE AR ARG - R T HEEAR
BRARE EHIE %JIE@J BB THRREE
B BEPTA B T2EEEITE - W2 NER
B BOMERERTES BB ITHOM
B BERUKEAORARREER  BRER
WM NERFREINE ©

Promote paperless office, Encourage employees to turn
online process, double-sided off the lights when leaving work,
printing when necessary; apply time-controlled switches,
promote smart field work and replace the lights in the
basement with LED lights

BEANERM - ERARER
7 - WiSERE

EHRBLEDE

d

Install time control devices in Reasonable tempera ture
charging piles for electric vehicles adjustment for air-conditioners

to reduce power wastage due to in the office

long-time charging
- E
T BB T BRI NG RIS
B RO RERETESHER
SREHER

Green Office Measures

BRERNERE

CRRE
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Meanwhile, the Group vigorously promotes green travel, calling on employees
to use public transportation. Sinolife United sold its owned vehicles and Good
Health provided work-from-home opportunities for employees. Multiple
measures were implemented to reduce carbon emissions generated by
employee travel.

Cope with Climate Change Risks

Currently, countries around the world are actively formulating response
strategies for the opportunities and challenges brought about by climate
change. Efforts from all parties are needed to mitigate and adapt to the risks
brought by current and future climate change. The Group has started the
preliminary work of identifying climate change risks with reference to the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD), and have formulated corresponding response measures. The physical
risks we have screened include typhoons, extreme precipitation, floods, and
extreme weather, and the transitional risks we mainly involve are gradually
stricter emission reporting obligations and compliance requirements in the
future.

To cope with climate change risks, we continue to monitor extreme weather
occurrences, actively formulate emergency plans for extreme weather, and
enhance our own ability to respond to physical risks of climate change. In
response to issues of flooding after heavy rain, we regularly clean the drainage
pumps in the basement and inspect and clear outdoor gutters and sewage
pipes while also providing insulation. While increasing the efficiency of energy
use by enhancing production equipment energy efficiency and improving
processes, we strive to cultivate employees’ awareness of green office practices
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, proactively controlling transitional risks
related to climate change.
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Set forth below is our energy consumption during the Reporting Period: WEBRR - HPIWEREREBRNT ¢

Consumables Consumption jH3E &

Category 2021 2022 Unit BE{u

Gasoline JUH 66,741 29,344 27,521 Litre F+

Diesel oil Bl 774 1,155 414 Litre F+

Liquefied petroleum gas BAEABR 2.92 409 1.81 Cubic metres

K

Natural gas AAR 0 0 157 Cubic metres

LK

Total direct energy B HREEE 75.05 36.78 31.87 Tonnes of standard

consumption Coal equivalent

MR B

Purchased electricity SMNEE 1,589.68 1,841.81 2,310.88 MWh

JEE B

Total indirect energy EEEEEIREFERE 192,01 226.36 284.01 Tonnes of standard

consumption Coal equivalent

MEAZ B

Total energy consumption’ REBERHFE? 267.05 263.14 315.88 Tonnes of standard

Coal equivalent

MR A

Integrated energy consumption BT 348 BEFE 901 1043 11.49  Kilogram standard

per revenue of RMB10,000 coal equivalent

per RMB10,000

FrZ

8T

2 Energy consumption: calculated based on the General Principles of Comprehensive Energy — ? BERUBRE - IRIB (R A REFESTE IR AN) (GB2589-2020)
Consumption Calculation (GB2589-2020). FE -
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BEHR - LAREREBHRIERAOT

Set forth was our greenhouse gas emission during the Reporting Period:

Emission HEIE

Greenhouse gas®
Category 2021 2022 Unit (Y
Greenhouse gas emission Scope | FHE— 5 =R EEHE 154.27 7048 64.69 Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO,EE&
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il g — B =R ARSI 45133 653.62 876.1 Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, 2 &
Greenhouse gas emission Scope il #0/E = 8 = s 2 HERL 0.25 4868 58.04  Tonnesof CO,eq
WECO, B &
Total greenhouse gas emissions 8 Z 5 B HE 44 2 605.85 77278 998.83  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, EE&
Greenhouse gas emissions BrTHmRE 2043 3063 36.33  Kilogram of CO, eq
per revenue of RMB10,000 REHMNE Per RMB10,000
T
CO, 28/ /B

102

Greenhouse gas emissions: Greenhouse gas emission Scope | was generated from petrol and
diesel consumption by the Company’s own vehicles and liquefied petroleum gas
consumption from its own canteens. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il was generated from
indirect emissions of purchased electricity. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Ill was generated
from carbon emissions from business flights of our employees.

The emission factors for electricity of Sinolife United is based on the Notice on the Key Work
Related to the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting in 2023-2025
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China, and the
emission factor for power grid has been adjusted to 0.5703 tCO /MWh. The greenhouse gas
emissions were calculated with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Industrial and Other Industrial Enterprises (Trial)
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of
China. The emission factors for electricity of Living Nature, Good Health and Cobayer adopted
2015 Guidelines for Defra/DECC's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting issued by Julie's
Bicycle Sustaining Creativity, and the greenhouse gas emissions were calculated with
reference to the National Greenhouse Accounts Factors issued by Australian Government,
Department of the Environment and Energy.

RERBHN: @B AEREBHBLKERFTAESR
HIEUM - SOHBERER B A REMRCAERH
mBAEREBHMREINEENELME N
B BB REREBHIRE B TIRITERBIZE
AERBRHERR

TAEBSNENHRATF2RPEARAMBE AR
TRIR AR B KRR 4 2023-2025 F 1 3R E A8
HERREEE M ER TENBA) - R E8HK
B FHHE 05703 tCO/MWh : SREREHNETE
2RAEARANBERERAXNEEZESHME
(TEEMITECFREREHMRETERERE
A (17)) ° Living Nature ~ FREEREREBANE

HEREA F 3R A [ulie’s Bicycle Sustaining Creativity ] 2%
5 892015 4F Defra/DECCHI R B $R 5B = REE M R
#3157 (2015 Guidelines for Defra/DECC's GHG Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting) © i = & 88 HE i 2 71
B2 RR KM D BT R IER H R 2 (Australian
Government, Department of the Environment and Energy)
B (BEIZRERBBZE ZE)(National Greenhouse

Accounts Factors) ©
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JOINING HANDS WITH EMPLOYEES TO BUILD A TALENT
TEAM

The Group deeply understands that caring for employee well-being and realizing
the self-value of talents are important conditions for the enterprise to achieve
stable and long-term development. By always adhering to the humanistic concept
of “people-oriented”, we improve the employee management system, fully protect
employee rights and interests, and create an open, inclusive, friendly, healthy and
safe working environment. We provide employees with transparent and sound
promotion channels, organize various employee training and team building
activities and always pay attention to employees’ physical and mental health, so as
to promote the common development of talents and enterprises.

Employee Employment

In strict compliance with local laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the New Zealand Human Rights Act 1993, the New Zealand Employment
Relations Act 2005, and the New Zealand Holidays Act 2003, the Group has
formulated and continuously improved internal management systems
including the Employee Recruitment System and Remuneration Management
System to ensure that employees’ legal rights and interests are not infringed
upon.

The Group adheres to transparent, fair, and impartial recruitment principles,
and eliminates any unfair treatment based on gender, marital status, physical
condition, ethnicity, religion, and other factors during the recruitment and
promotion process. The Group firmly opposes the use of child labor and forced
labor, and ensures that hired employees meet the legal employment age
through strict review of identity documents. We are committed to building a
diverse and equal employment relationship through respecting employee
diversity, adopting a zero-tolerance attitude towards all forms of discrimination
and harassment, and enforcing constraints through institutional measures.
During the Reporting Period, there were no violations of child labor, forced
labor, harassment, and other irregularities.

We have set up channels such as new media, human resource markets, campus
recruitment, third-party recruitment platforms, and internal recommendations to
continuously attract outstanding talents. During the Reporting Period, the Group
cooperated closely with universities and entered campuses during campus
recruitment periods, sharing industry trends and career planning with students
to help more jobseekers understand our corporate culture and attract
outstanding talents to join us. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
had 298 employees, of which 50% were recruited locally. Details are as follows:

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If
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Distribution of total employees by employment type (persons) Distribution of total employees by age group (persons)

RERELNEIHNETAZ (N BREREDPPETAE (A

7
' 52
e Full-time employees 920 ® 30 years old or below
EAT 30 ABREUA T
® Part-time employees ® 31 to40 years old
FBMAET 31-40/E5%
® 41 to 50 years old
e 41-50FB%
® above 50 years old
S0/EBRIA £
291

Distribution of total employees by gender (persons) Distribution of total employees by employee category (persons)
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Distribution of total employees by geographical region (persons)
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We have always placed great importance to talent retention and understand
the positive role that a highly stable employee team plays in supporting
business development. In 2022, the Group continued to focus on talent and
continuously improved employee retention capabilities, with an aim to build a
first-class, professional, lean, and stable talent team. On one hand, the Group
vigorously promoted the transformation of the human resources department
from a traditional model to a human resources business partner model, and
resolved employee issues in a timely manner implementing the point-to-point
pairing and tracking procedures. On the other hand, we actively attracted
industry professionals through recruitment channels such as headhunting
recommendations, recruiting middle and high-end talents with different levels
and backgrounds for business development, and empowering sustainable
development of the enterprise. In 2022, the overall employee turnover rate has
decreased.

In 2022, the Group's total staff turnover rate was 39.51%*, with details of staff
turnover’ as follows:

RE—BEERASEIT  FAEETUEMNET
BB N EBEREERBRER - 20224 -
NEBBBEAANT BRL - TEHIRABTRE
BN BER W FE BT BEMATK
h o —FEBEGH#EEANDERBPIEERERS
MANEREBAEKEEAER - BBy
BIRME - REEMRAETHE - S—FHHE
BMBEGRBEEHBESRIERERMITESR
EANTHRERE  AEFERBETREXM
EEMFREmAL  BEhEAFEER-
202245 BEEB TRKARGRHT T o

20025 REBEE THERKEAE3951% 0 B
TRAFBE T

Employee turnover rate

by geographical region (%)
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4 Staff turnover rate = Number of resigned employees/((number of employees at the 4 BIRAR=BIREAE ((REHTE

beginning of Reporting Period + number of employees at the end of Reporting
Period)/2) * 100%.
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Employee Development

A sound employee career development system is not only the foundation of
the Group's steady development, but also the driving force for employees to
improve their own qualities and abilities. Adhering to a talent-centric policy in
corporate development, we support our employees to enhance their expertise
and comprehensive quality through a scientific and reasonable salary and
performance system, employee training system, and smooth career
development path as well as diversified and comprehensive employee
development management measures, thus facilitating their career growth.

Remuneration Performance

We have established a clear performance management system and a scientific
salary system and continuously improved the evaluation mechanism to ensure
that each employee can be rewarded with a competitive salary for his or her
efforts. Employees are encouraged to improve their own capabilities and work
performance. We strive to create an open, fair work atmosphere that promotes
benign competition to stimulate the enthusiasm and creativity of our
employees.

Sinolife United continues to optimize the remuneration performance
management of its core business segments. Employees in these segments are
evaluated on a monthly basis based on their professional abilities, work
efficiency, learning capabilities, performance objectives, and other dimensions.
The monthly evaluation results are then compared with the performance
evaluation targets to reach the final evaluation results. The e-commerce
business segment has adopted a position-level pay system, under which an
employee with an “A” rating in performance evaluation for three consecutive
months is eligible for a promotion or salary increase. Employees in the
e-commerce business segment are also rewarded through a combination of
various incentives, including target incentives, material incentives, honor
incentives, and competitive incentives. For example, the top 10 outstanding
performers received a salary increase and the excellent teams were awarded a
trophy of honor during the Double Eleven in 2022. By adopting a performance
commission system, the distributor business segment has made the salary and
benefits system more transparent and motivating, while enhancing the
employees’ target awareness.
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Employee Training

The Group attaches importance to talent team building and values employee’s
self-improvement. We have formulated the Employee Training Management
System and continue to improve our internal training system. We provide
corresponding training for employees based on operating needs, set training
objectives, and organize regular assessments to enhance employees’ business
skills.

We offer a diverse range of employee training programs that cover multiple
dimensions, including induction training, professional skills training, and
specialized training programs. When new employees join us, we provide
relevant training on company rules and regulations and brand introduction to
help them better understand our corporate culture and integrate into the
Group quickly. Meanwhile, the Group will provide its in-service employees with
training on the skills required for their respective positions on a weekly basis in
order to help them grow quickly in their business fields. During the Reporting
Period, employees from various departments including finance, quality
assurance and human resources of Cobayer participated in a diverse range of
seminars and training programs, covering topics such as pharmacovigilance,
contract law changes, and data privacy and security. This helped to improve
the professional quality of our employees while ensuring operation
compliance.

Themed training on “Staring from Luxury Goods Marketing”
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In August 2022, we invited our director Mr. Yu Bo to lead a training session on the theme of “starting from luxury goods marketing”,
marking the beginning our themed training program. During the session, Mr. Yu provided an in-depth analysis of the meaning and
marketing strategies of luxury goods. He explained that luxury goods are often regarded as a symbol of status that classify people
into two groups. However, true luxury goods should have rich historical, cultural, and technological connotations so that they can
elevate people’s tastes. He also emphasized that a brand must have cultural concepts, brand image, and humanistic care in order to
succeed in the long run. If a brand only focuses on sales and descends to a fast-moving consumer goods brand, it will only be a
passing fad and won't last. This inspired the participants to think deeply and stimulated new ideas.
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E-commerce themed training
BErEERE

In 2022, we organized a total of 32 e-commerce themed training sessions, with trainers including the chairman, general manager,
e-commerce director, and team leaders of the Group. These training sessions covered topics such as corporate development
planning and objectives, e-commerce sales experience and case study sharing, and relevant regulations and latest requirements of
the industry and the Group.

202 BHAHAARBFAERNRSEFIEFI - JIEMEEAEEESR A8  SFL% S/ EERSE - 5
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During the sessions, the chairman of the Group and the general manager of the Group shared information about the development
status of the Company and its goals and plans in the coming three to five years, which allowed employees to understand the
Company's development direction and grow together with the Company. The e-commerce director shared his experience and case
studies on how to bring e-commerce sales to a new level, and the team leaders explained the issues for which each team is
responsible. All of these comprehensively improved the professional capabilities of the employees. These themed training sessions
also promoted communication and collaboration among different functional teams, thus improving their performance.
AEFBEERNMAEEREESZ TEEBERNZSFHEBRRE FETTHRERRBRE EETRCXREARIK -
FREEANKERIEERT L —ENsEETERAERRN S Z S VEARMZ DEMBENTHEETMM -
2HMRABTIEEREN - AR - BASEZEEI - RETEB A ENZRENE  BREAIFRAZEE -

The Group actively encourages our employees to obtain corresponding ~ AEBEBGEES TEZEUHEERL @ IBF 52
qualifications to improve their professional level and vocational skills. When our 7K FBE S 88 - B TiRiBEVSERE S IEA
employees received the qualification certifications such as health managerand & #H# B LMEEERFEER - AEESHER#E
senior nursery teacher, the Group will fully reimburse the expenses and provide T2 RESR§Y - W45 FREINEE - R - FFIE
additional incentives. Meanwhile, we have also set up education subsidies in ~ EFE A EPRESFME - THETEHHIRE
the remuneration structure to support our employees’ self-improvement. Ft o

] 08 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - B RERRE

In 2022, the number of employees participating in training sessions were 183,
with the percentage of employees receiving training reaching 61.41%. The
average training hours per employee is 48.3 hours. The training details of
overseas employees by gender are as follows®:

2024 EEZEEIINE T AEAEI13A
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Average
Percentage of training hours
employees  completed by

trained employees

(%) (hour)

Fillgat BIFHZI

Employee Training BEINZIER (%) R (/N BF)

By gender &1 R Bl 2

Female employees ZwET 63.39 35.57

Male employees S5E8T 36.61 69.44
By employee category RETIERE S

Senior Management mREIRRE 9.84 1803

Administrative TTBAR 9.29 1413

Healthcare supplement technicians RiEZEERMAE 13.66 2251

Sales HEAR 5246 24.22

Other Hitp 14.75 63

Career Advancement BESH

According to the Employee Promotion Management System, the Group has
improved its ranking system, promotion process, and qualification
requirements and established a sound promotion management system and
incentive mechanism, under which different promotion paths and scientific
development systems are available for different types of talents and business
needs. We discover the shining points of our employees, and help them
leverage their strengths and advantages in the areas in which they excel, giving
them a sense of achievement and belonging.
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We have created a clear and smooth career advancement path for our
employees, which explicitly states the promotion channels and qualification
criteria for each position and level. Meanwhile, upholding the philosophy of
diverse talent development, we have made promotion channels across
different business dimensions accessible to our employees. Through position
adjustment, we broaden the career path of our employees and allow them to
bring their strengths into play. During the Reporting Period, Sinolife United
provided employees with job transfer opportunities to help them gain a better
understanding of themselves through working at different positions, and find
positions that suit them best. For example, after the personnel of the logistics
department of the Company were transferred to the e-commerce segment,
given their familiarity with the warehouse process and categories, they were
ready to fit for work faster than new employees with their enriched work
experience, and improved their comprehensive capabilities.

In addition, the Group vigorously promotes the transparency of the promotion
mechanism, and supports internal competition for vacancies by making
available channels for public notification.

Care for Employee

We are committed to creating a comfortable office environment and a warm
working atmosphere for our employees by incorporating employees’ sense of
well-being into our development goals. We pay particular attention to the
physical and mental health of our employees, receiving their feedback on
work-life balance and work experience and timely responding to their needs to
help them improve their quality of work and life.
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Employee Benefits

On top of providing its employees with various rights and benefits in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations of the places where it operates,
the Group has implemented a multi-level employee welfare system to improve
their quality of life and provide them with sufficient care.

We advocate for a healthy, harmonious, and enjoyable working atmosphere.
Sinolife United assists employees in difficulty every year, in an effort to
effectively solve their worries and concerns. For example, we offer financial
assistance and food packages to those in difficulty through the trade union. In
addition, the Company has set up a lactation room for female employees who
need to breastfeed or take a break. Sinolife United prepares surprise gifts for
our employees on festivals or anniversaries such as work anniversaries. The
Living Nature team also prepares morning tea and Christmas luncheon for its
employees, enriching their daily lives. During the pandemic, we were
concerned about the health of our employees, providing them with care
packages when they returned to work. Good Health also distributed to all of its
employees the Good Health pandemic package to help them boost immunity,
contributing to the pandemic prevention and control. Meanwhile, the Group
has provided work-from-home opportunities to its employees depending on
the development of the pandemic.

The Group organizes a wide range of special activities after work to help new
employees integrate quickly into the group and bring them closer to each
other.
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“Mobile Game Competition— Arena of Valor"—Themed team-building activity

[FEFHEZ2IEES | —TEERED

In April 2022, Sinolife United organized a team-building activity with the theme of “Mobile game competition — Arena of Valor “.

Through this team-building activity, team members were trained to work together towards a common goal with clear division of
responsibilities, and complete work tasks more efficiently. While enhancing team cohesion, this activity also strengthened the bond
between employees and the Company
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“Ignite the Spark to Light up the Future” — Double eleven mobilization meeting

[EXRR  BREARR] —S#+-HES

In September 2022, we held a Double Eleven mobilization meeting with the theme of “Ignite the spark to light up the future”. At
the meeting, the director of the Group's e-commerce department set targets for each team leader in respect of the performance
targets during Double Eleven festival, with each team working to achieve its respective goals. This was designed to help employees
showcase their strengths and shining points in their respective areas of expertise.
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Meanwhile, we also organized an interactive game session, featuring a series of team-building games that helped to boost team

morale and enhance team cohesion. The activity was concluded with an exercise to arrange team members into the shape of the

letters “GH", which improved the tacit understanding and coordination among team members, and also served as a kickoff to our

upcoming “Double Eleven” sales event.
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Communication with Employees

The Group attaches great importance to the demands of employees and has
established effective communication channels and systems to listen to their
suggestions and requests. We endorse the “barrier-free communication” and
encourage flat management, allowing employees to communicate their
opinions and provide feedback to their superiors at any time via phone calls,
message, WeChat, corporate WeChat, email, and other means to quickly
resolve any issues. In 2022, due to the large number of new employees in our
e-commerce department, we added a “suggestion box for e-commerce special
teams” to help new employees in the e-commerce department solve any
problems, overcome any challenges, and quickly adapt to their work. The
human resources department regularly collects and sorts out messages from
various channels, screening and recording work requests, complaints about
irregular behaviors and conducts, process improvement suggestions, and self-
recommendations, addressing any existing problems and giving full play to the
feedback and suggestion boxes. We also organize senior management forums
to encourage employees to express their opinions and suggestions on
corporate and personal development, creating a communication channel
between employees and senior management. Based on the feedback and
recommendations given by the employees, the Group held discussions in a
timely manner, wherein practical recommendations were adopted and
reported to the chairman for approval before publishing public
announcements, and the employees will be provided with the specific reasons
why the recommendations are impractical.
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group always gives top priority to the health and safety of employees. In
strict compliance with various laws and regulations on safety and health,
including the Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, the Safety Training Management Rules, the Regulations on the Control
over Safety of Dangerous Chemicals and the Health & Safety at Work Act 2015 of
New Zealand, the Group will continue to improve the occupational health and
safety management system and implement relevant measures in a timely
fashion to prevent occurrence of any danger as our efforts to build a healthy
and safe workplace.

Health and Safety Management

We formulate and continue to optimize the administrative documents,
including the Safety Education and Training System, the Administrative Rules for
Special Positions, the Administrative Rules for Employee Health and Sanitation, the
Mould Management Rules, the Management Rules for Cleaning Tools, the
Management Rules for Use of Containers, and the Management System for the
Purchase, Use and Storage of Explosive Chemicals, and implement the relevant
administrative measures. The Group has established a safe production
management team, which comprises the general manager as the team leader,
department heads as team members, and shift leaders as the major safety
officers. Living Nature’s health and safety committee is responsible for
supervising and reporting any health and safety issues regarding their
personnel in their designated areas.

The Group employs a slew of health and safety control measures to safeguard
the health and production safety of its employees. Representatives from the
management, supervisors, and employee representatives identify all hazards
and potential hazards in the workplace and production facilities every six
months, and analyze the key potential risk factors from manufacturing or
production activities falling under the work safety scope, with corresponding
risk control measures and daily inspection mechanisms formulated to ensure
the safety of employees. To identify violations and hidden dangers, we
organize safety inspections quarterly, and conduct regular safety self-
inspections at least once a month by each department. We develop regular
corrective measures for any problems identified and promptly report the
corrective action to the safety leadership team.
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In order to strengthen the emergency management of production safety
accidents and emergencies, each operating base has formulated and filed
emergency plans for production safety accidents, requiring all departments to
achieve effective emergency management by ensuring the effectiveness of
emergency plans is safeguarded by emergency drills. To control the risks of
extreme weather, we keep a close track of extreme weather conditions, and
implement winter inspection and lightning protection inspection. To control
fire hazards, Sinolife United guarantees 24-hour maintenance, three daily
inspections, and a monthly comprehensive inspection by the fire protection
and maintenance unit. Furthermore, we conduct regular emergency drills.

To exercise effective control over health and safety risks brought by the
pandemic, the Group's operating sites around the world have formulated
corresponding management systems and response plans by taking into
consideration local pandemic situations and policies, thereby building a safety
shield for employees’ pandemic prevention. The Group has formulated the
Sinolife United COVID-19 Pandemic Prevention and Control Work Plan, and
continues to promote the normalized routine pandemic control measures.

We maintain regular monitoring of occupational safety hazards and purchase
labor protection supplies. In addition to providing routine health check-ups for
employees, we monitor risk factors for specific job positions each year based
on our health monitoring plan, including hearing and lung function tests for
occupational disease screening. During the Reporting Period, the Group's
investments in production safety was RMB150,100, and the lost days due to
work injury was 149 working days. In the past three years, the Group has not
identified any work-related fatalities.
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Culture of Health and Safety

We have been advocating for employees to raise their awareness of health and
safety prevention. Through regular health and safety meetings for on-site
employees, we enable employees to fully understand safety policies and
maintain effective safety and health management. At the same time, our
employees are organized to participate in occupational health and safety
training programs, including safety management, safety inspection, safety
equipment management, and pandemic prevention knowledge.

The Group conducts regular fire drills, which are recorded and summarized to
optimize emergency plans and ensure that we continue to enhance our
emergency capabilities. Sinolife United conducts four fire drills annually, while
Living Nature conducts fire/evacuation drills at least every six months. During
the reporting period, Sinolife United also conducted a one-day first aid course,
including how to perform the CPR, to enhance employees' first aid knowledge
and skills. During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a total of five
safety drills, with a 100% coverage rate for the annual safety drill and safety
training of Good Health.
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Safety Training and Emergency Drills

REFRESRR

116

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -t ERERBE

CONTRIBUTING TO DEVELOPMENT AND TAKING
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In the midst of achieving the business development, the Group shall always
keep in mind that we shall always think of its source when drinking water, and
thus remember our original intention. We continue to pay attention to public
welfare such as environmental protection and education, while actively
engaging in charity activities to assist the underprivileged groups in society.
Under our guidance and encouragement, member companies actively
establish partnerships with local communities, participate in the construction
of facilities and disaster relief activities in the areas where they operate, and
strive to share their resources with society, contributing their own efforts to
improving the livelihoods and building a harmonious society.

Community Co-development

The Group has always been actively fulfilling its corporate social responsibility.
While developing our own business, we always pay attention to community
development. We make use of our own advantages and platform resources to
focus on community construction through cooperation with the government
and enterprises in accordance with the requirement of the public, so as to
contribute to the harmonious development of community. During the
reporting period, The Group invested more than RMB10,000 in public charity
projects.

In 2022, Living Nature engaged with community activities by offering product
sponsorships to local public charity projects and non-profit organizations,
including:

Kerikeri
Retirement

Kokopu School
Fundraising
KokopuZ2 4%

BREH

Village
Kerikeri3B Rk +$

Ohaeawai School
Fundraising
Ohaeawai
BREJUEH

Elaine Bledisloe

Tournament
Elaine Bledisloe

BEE

Auckland
Mother's Day
R SR

HEED

WaitangiWomen
Golf Club
WaitangilF &
=] ESEE S

-Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁi\‘ﬁj TE-_FER

HEHRZ  ERAUYSER

iy

ot

EERCEBHROFAR  AEEYOKER - T
T BPBERIRER BEERARSE
¥ BEBRRARAELDLEY  BEERLES
SR - ERMMNBENZE T KELEE
R A R KRR - DS EZER
eI [@ YRR AR AR AR SO ) - B A
SGEREMERT  RAERE  ERMFEL
CEMBHNE -

HEHRE
REE—ENKRBREITOEL ST - £5
REFEFSNRE  BRMABKBEILRER -
FHRBFEZEMCETARER  BRAHEBT -
TEAE AEFIERELRER - AREM
SHRERECENE - REHAN - AEH
FER=EHRAAREE 10000847

2022 4F  Living Nature 8 8 ¥ & #1225 78 B
FEFEBIREEMEETHESRE - 18
ROk

Kerikeri
Primary School

Kerikeri/J» 88

Northern Dance

Academy
Northern

SmBk

Kaikohe Golf Club
Fundraising
Kaikohe & B X
BERBIED
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Health Promotion

We firmly believe that the health level of women and children is an important
indicator of measuring the health and social civilization of residents in a
country. By coordinating and allocating internal and external resources, the
Group continues to increase capital investments in women’s and children’s
health, provide financial and materials support to those in need, and actively
promote the construction of women'’s and children’s health culture, as our
commitment to creating a harmonious atmosphere where the entire society
concerns itself with women’s and children’s health.

In 2022, Living Nature demonstrated its social responsibility by supporting
women'’s and children’s health with concrete actions to shape its industrial
image of safeguarding women'’s and children’s health:

BRBKREE B RENREKFEEHE
—EAERERREMHLEXHAREENEER
R AEBEGERFEAINER - TEHIRRSFL
RERAENESRRA  AFZEORREMH
7 H ERE  RRESRNEREXE

R BHEEEHSRIGFHEENMER
o

20224 Living Nature 2 AL 2 HEE - AER
TOHYFEHERESE  BEEGRHRED
TEER

Breast Cancer Awareness Month Campaign: Living Nature donated 10% of its online lipstick sales to the Breast Cancer Foundation

NZ

ABRBEEAIEE : Living Nature 1§ AALEBABILHEN 10% BB EH NI REESS -

Auckland Health Foundation Fundraising: Living Nature participated in a fundraising auction for the Auckland Health Foundation,

providing products to help raise funds for a new stroke ward.

RRfEREESRETRE © LvingNature 3—EEFHESRHEER - A EFNTEAREEEER -

Plunket New Zealand: Living Nature provided products for Plunket New Zealand Mother's Day, which helped raise funds for

children and infants in the community.

Plunket New Zealand : Living Nature 4 Plunket New Zealands B & R EDE BN IRIEE mn - S B)E BN ARE L& A R E

BREKED -

Whangarei Hospital Care Package: Living Nature’s products were included in care packages for premature babies born at the

Special Care Baby Unit, Whangarei Hospital.

Whangarei & F7 &2 8 : Living Nature Je A9 2 an 455 AV RIS A2 B - AR RRESTE Whangarei 85t (1 A&

MREES -

Pink Ribbon Ride Fundraising: Living Nature provided a prize pack for the local Far North Pink Ribbon Ride, as part of the

fundraising event for breast cancer research.

MALAHEFURE) © Living Nature S EHERIEMAAFRITADRE T —EERE - RIREAREEES -

Product Poster for Breast Cancer
Awareness Month

HREEEAEMRER

g
S O Y

wuunMare AM) ExpeRIEnce

Everything you need fos an amazing morming!

Plunket New Zealand Mother’s Day
(SEIBIEEY)
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APPENDIX CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE OF THE

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE  HEREAERE-RRERBRENER KP)

P BFERBIXFERE HERE
BB EESIRB RS

Chapter
PriE =8

Environment B 15

Al: Emissions

Al B

General disclosure  Information on

—RE

ARPFEHARNERQAE

(@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHERLRERBHN - mKRLNES AEREZEENN

EEEN

@ HE:R

b)  ETHETABEAZENRRERRADNER -

The types of emissions and respective relevant emissions data

PR R ARRE P R

Direct and energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BERKEREEEERBHINEREE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELAERENRENTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEZRENRENTE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

HAPTRT LB E B R R AR EIEL R BRRAO SR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
WMERASREEEENNAE - RPN 0RRE B R R AE
255 L B RATIRERA A 5%

—E - FER

LOW-CARBON
DEVELOPMENT TO
BUILD A GREEN
HOME TOGETHER

EmER  ARRERE

Emissions Compliance

BB

Use of Resources

BIREM

Emissions Compliance

BRIER

Emissions Compliance

BRIER

Environmental
Management

REERE

Environmental Target

RERR

Use of Resources

BRfEA

Emissions Compliance

BRIER

Environmental
Management

RIEER

Environmental Target

REAR

Use of Resources

BIRfERA

Emissions Compliance

AR
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE  #EREAERE-REERBRERES KP)

Chapter
REZE

A2: Use of Resources  General disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other

A2 BRER —REE

A2

A22

A23

A24

A25

A3:The environment  General disclosure

and natural — R E
resources
A3 RIER
RRER
A3.1

A4:Climate Change ~ General disclosure

A4 RIREE —RIRE

A4

120

raw materials.

BRERER(BEER  KREMRME) OB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total and intensity
RERASNEER/KEEER(NE - fsoh) EREREE
Water consumption in total and intensity

BRKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

HALPTR] AL M BEIREE P et B AR R R E R iE L B IR ATIRERK 8%

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, and water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HAKIERNKR LA A EAIFE - ARMETLAAKREEERA
EIELEARRN SR

Total packaging material used for finished products and, with reference to per
unit produced

HREAAEM RN EE R BEESNES

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BMEZETAHRBERARERENEATENBE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
HORBEDHRERAAERNEATVERC RN EREBTEN
118

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI EHEL R EHETAELY ENEARBEBEEENKR
5o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage them
BB ERARHBTAELYENEARGEESE - RIEYTT
iﬂ o

Environmental
Management

BHEE

Use of Resources

BREA

Use of Resources

BRER

Use of Resources
EREA
Environmental
Management
RIEERE
Environmental Target
REER
Use of Resources
EREA
Environmental
Management
RIEERE
Environmental Target
RGER
Use of Resources
EREA
Use of Resources

BRER

LOW-CARBON
DEVELOPMENT TO
BUILD A GREEN
HOME TOGETHER

EER - AREEXE

Environmental
Management

RIFER

Use of Resources

BREA

Emissions Compliance

ERre il

Response to Climate
Change

EHRREL

Environmental
Management

RIEER

Use of Resources

BREA

Response to Climate
Change

EHRREL
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HERERERR-RRERBRERER KP)

Chapter
FREZE

Social &

B1: Employment

Bl : EfE

B2: Health and safety ~ General disclosure

B2: ERHEETE

General disclosure  Information on

—RKE

B1.2

—RIKE

B2.1

B2.2

B23

ARPFEHARNERQAE

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFM e - BERET  TERE . BRE - TEKE St

RIBAR AR Bt 558 AR -

@ HE:R

b) ETHETAREATENEBREZLRONEL -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region

RIS BREE - FlelR KR EI 5 HES B2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

RIER - FRAR Rt EE D HEERKL X

Information on

(@  the policies; and

()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

FRRHEZ2THERERREEEHEBENLAEN -

@ HE:R

b) ETHEBETABEAZENRREIRRAONEH -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three

years

BEZFEFRITHMARREE

Lost days due to work injury

RAIBBAIERH

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they
are implemented and monitored

RN B R EER 21816 - U RABRTRERTE

—E - FER

JOINING HANDS WITH
EMPLOYEES TO BUILD
ATALENT TEAM

BFRT TEATER

Employee Employment

ETER

Employee Employment

ST

Employee Health and
Safety

BTREEZ2

Employee Health and
Safety
BIREELZE
Employee Health and
Safety
ETIREEZE
Employee Health and
Safety
BIREELZE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HEREAERE-RRERBEENER KP)

Chapter
REZE

B3:Developmentand General disclosure  Policies on improving employees knowledge and skills for discharging duties

Training
B3 : R &I
B3.1

B32

B4: Labour Standards  General disclosure

THE  —HHE

B4.1
B4.2
B5: Supply Chain
B : {HIERETR

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B54

122

—RRE

General disclosure

—RRE

at work. Description of training activities.

ABRHEE BT TEBENMB IR NEUR - HlIZIED -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

RUEBIREESRRBSNXIIIEEET S

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee Category

RPN ESERIES

Information on

(@  the policies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

AEMEETHAHSIH -

@ HE:R

b) ETHEBETABEALENERERRAPNER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

- BREE RN TR

forced labour

A RN E R B R E T RANST

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered
MR RE R BN B A BB RERE A5

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

ERHERNORE R SRRBEK

Number of suppliers by geographical region

iEE DMt EREA

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

HABHEEREEENEN  MERTABEMNNEEEHE - UK
BREHINRITRERTZ

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
AR ERGERSHNBRE R ERRES - ARAER
TREENE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored

HMERE RERR RS RRRERRRENEN - ARBBHRT
RERETE -

Employee Development

BT%RE

Employee Development
BETHE
Employee Development
BTHRE

Employee Employment

ETRERE

Employee Employment

ST1ER

Employee Employment

BIER

Supply Chain
Management

HERER

Supply Chain
Management

g EIE

Supply Chain
Management

HEsEE

Supply Chain
Management

e R

Supply Chain
Management

HEREE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE  HEREAERE-RRERBRENER KP)

Chapter
FREZE

B6: Product

Responsibility ~— —MRIXE
B6: EmAT
B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 - RES

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

ARPFEHARNERQAE

General disclosure

—RIKE

General disclosure  Information on

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and methods of redress.

BHFREERNRENRRERZSY  BE  EEKLEBSEARA

T ER

@ HE:R

b)) BETHBETAREATENEBEERRONEL -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons

PEFCERERAETRL 2 REREFEMMARKNE S

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they

are dealt with

BRARERRRBHNRFEEUARELE T E

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights
g R R AR ERAENER

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

M BT B NEmBE R

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored

HAEE EBRHRE RALBHR -

Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

URBBRATRER T

laundering.
REAM LEE - 9% BEFRORRER -
@ HXR: X

b) ETHETABEATENRRERNADNER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of
the cases

RERBAHETASEESRI Y D EENE)THARMANEE K&
FENCES

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

L S R - A REER T RER A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HMEERE TRENRESE

—E - FER

BEING RESPONSIBLE

AND PRODUCING
QUALITY PRODUCTS
RLEE - TERLmE

Quality Assurance
EERkaE

Service System

R %

Innovation Research

RIS

Quality Assurance
EERE
Service System

e %

Operating Compliance
AL

Operating Compliance
BRI

Operating Compliance
BREE

Operating Compliance
L\fﬁﬁ«( 2
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter
B HERERERE-REERERENEE(KP) REZE
B8:Community General disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the need of the ~ CONTRIBUTING TO
investment —RRE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into DEVELOPMENT AND
B3 : HEIRE the communities’ interests. TAKING SOCIAL
FRAHR2ERTREEMEHBZIENRRAEBIDGZ it RESPONSIBILITY
B A AHR o ‘AT BEEHERME
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community
LiEREE Co-development
HEitR
Health Promotion
BERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focused area Community
EEISEMHHER Co-development
HEHfE
Health Promotion
BEEE
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EYzx

To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 132 to 226, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MRPEBERGBERAT —TE__FFRK

ZKETHENE T Tel 3% +852 2846 9888
B A EESIEI79%E Fax {2 H: +852 2868 4432
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BMRE  HEVBERRBERESTMAE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matter

RARETEE

BEENEE

RS EAT FRIVRIBRFI 2 FEHE - KRR
BAGRAVBRR  CBATREEZEH
ZEZERBMERE P BRRBEETER
WU E Mz BERFRERE - RO THZE
FREHNEFHER A TRESFEMS @ &
IR AR B AP 2 B Rt A BB IR % R

BPBITT AR E D EHEIFA R R EHRERZ
Btz EE BREEZSZEHEH
E - Bt - M2 EFERETE ERHRM
HRAaMBRRENERRAR R 25
Fre BB RFZER  BRREENTE
EMETZERF - ARG &AM B HRE
ZEABRIRHEER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BfzE T NNEERRETSEE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives
BEREHFF i TREEEERBE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite lives of RMB57,816,000 and RMB5,476,000, respectively, before
provisions for impairment of RMB25,442,000 and RMB5,344,000, respectively.
R202F 124318 EXERSEHERCASGTRELEED A
B AR 578160007 & A R #54760007T (RINBAEREARE
25,442,000 7T 2 A R ¥ 5,344,000 7T) °

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets’, the Group
is required to perform impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite lives both annually and whenever there is an indication that a
cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which these assets have been allocated may
be impaired. Management performed impairment tests on these assets by
using future discounted cash flow models as at 31 December 2022. This was
considered as a key audit matter because the assessment was complex, and
it involved significant judgements and assumptions such as the long-term
growth rate and discount rate.

REELGAERNER [EERE] X SEEEASFRNAENRE
TESRPMENEHEENR SEAEM(REELEEN]) ATRERE
REMERCASn TREREEETRERR - 72022912 A 31
B EEERAARRMBERSREAHZEEELETRENR - AR
AHEERERE - P RE MR R R N BRI R 6 8 Z T MR
UEAR SRR EAT =1 -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3, 16 and 17(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

AR ESHN GRSV EHREMTE24 3 16 & 17(b) °

We evaluated the processes and key controls of the
Group over the assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.
We reviewed the basis of preparation of the
forecasts used for the impairment tests for goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives. We
involved our internal valuation specialist to assist us
in reviewing the methodology and certain
assumptions adopted in the assessment of
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives. We also reviewed management’s
assessment of the sensitivity of the Group’s
impairment model to reasonably possible changes
and considered the adequacy of the disclosures of
impairment testing in the consolidated financial
statements.

HFIEHE EEEYHEBRERSHTRER
BEMRBENEOREREZES - RAEH
R N A S e MR B B E HREDRI S AT A
TR REEE - LAITMEABGEEKHE
HPIEHEHERERASH TREBLEERER
EPARARTERE TRR - RAITEHERE
EBY BEEERERILHSIENEEBHHR
MRRHE I E B4R E M BHRRARER HIKE
BFERME ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BARESEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EfzEtnmEERRETSEE

Net realisable value of inventories

FE R #5FE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded inventories of RMB75,272,000.
Management judgements and estimates are required in assessing whether
the carrying value is higher than the net realisable value (“NRV") of the
inventories on hand at the year end, especially of those slow-moving
inventories which may become obsolete.

R2022F 128318 BEEEEFFEARK 752720007 « RFEF
AFREFENREERGSNAIZRFE((TRRAFE]) - LHEA
R RBERIBHETER - F2EREEBHE & -

Significant judgements and estimates are also required in determining the
write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management’s
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the estimated
selling price of inventories based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. Therefore, we
considered this as a key audit matter.
EETEMRE ISR FER TAELERAE MG PRERE
REENMAREERUMEERMNBERRYFE ZHERIEA
BEFHBANEATEEE - Ait - HMRLEREREFFE -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HRARBERN RS MR ME24 3K 18

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If

We evaluated the design and implementation of
management’s controls over the assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. We obtained an
understanding of the Group's inventory provision
policy and checked the calculation of the inventory
provision based on the Group's policy. We
evaluated management’s assumptions used to
calculate the provision by checking the ageing of
inventories, subsequent sales and usage of
inventories on a sampling basis. We also checked
the subsequent selling prices to the sales orders
and invoices on a sampling basis.

BARHEE R E S S & IR EE bR
Rt RER - BRI T BEEEFEREER
RURE EEEBRREFTEREBNAHE -
BB AMETAERFENEREK FENH
RIHEBREAERTEEREANAERE
BR®R - BT RE MR HE R ENERE
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBETHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ho Wai Ling.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeEEkEMAEZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2022 i ZE2022F12A31HILFE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
REVENUE W 5 274,851 252,325
Cost of sales SHER A (114,856) (113,522)
Gross profit EH 159,995 138,803
Other income and gains E A R ez 5 7,910 15,094
Selling and distribution expenses HE MK HR X (108,603) (105,984)
Administrative expenses TR (63,924) (70,217)
Finance costs RSP 7 (472) (685)
Other expenses HmMAx (5,406) (10,110)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BT AIEE 6 (10,500) (33,099)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (X)) e 10 (3,746) 1,392
LOSS FOR THE YEAR TEEFHE (14,246) (31,707)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HfthZ2EKR A~ (#518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REE% PR EF S
that may be reclassified to profit or loss BaEMmEMEEEKA
in subsequent periods, after tax: (BE) - BREE :
Exchange differences on translation HMEGINETGHIE X = 5E
of foreign operations 1,045 (5,479)
Other comprehensive income that will REEZ BB TEEN DB
not be reclassified to profit or loss RERFEMEERA -
in subsequent periods, after tax: Brfiiz -
Gains on property revaluation IESE A LG 6,755 5,067
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEERHEBAR
FOR THE YEAR (6,446) (32,119)
Loss attributable to: LA 2 IAFE(GE1E
Owners of the parent BARHAA (14,246) (31,707)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UT&RIBEEGEEEERERE
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZEPN (6,446) (32,119)
RMB A R ¥ RMB AR
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREBEEREA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EaERER
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted — EARREE 12 (1.51) cents & (3.35) cents 73
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRE 13 80,074 89,583
Investment properties B 14 72,954 60,229
Right-of-use assets FEHREEE 15 39,985 13,074
Goodwill RS 16 32,374 31,927
Other intangible assets Himp & 17 5,077 8,737
Deferred tax assets RIETHIAE = 25 12,125 8,976
Total non-current assets IERBEELTE 242,589 212,526

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 75,272 59,983
Trade receivables Z 5 EWEIE 19 28,184 26,226
Restricted cash SRHIIRE 21 1,350 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JBFIE ~ 2& M EMEUKFIE 20 16,070 15,267
Tax recoverable EEEE 131 2,982
Pledged deposits BT EE 21 - 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEFEEY 21 73,391 72,057
Total current assets MBNEERRE 194,398 177,586
Total assets BEMAE 436,987 390,112

CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade payables B 5 NI 22 21,528 15,660
Other payables and accruals E b e B M BT E A 23 41,101 29,484
Lease liabilities MEaE 15 4,368 4285
Tax payables RS - 278
Total current liabilities ME BB 66,997 49,707
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 127,401 127,879
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERARE &G 369,990 340,405

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e P RIR LR

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR | ARBTI

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE

Lease liabilities HEBE 15 31,385 4,585

Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 25 14,031 4836

Provision Bt 24 774 740
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EERE 46,190 10,161
Net assets BESE 323,800 330,244
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners BAREE ABGESR

of the parent

Share capital R& 2R 26 94,630 94,630

Other reserves H b 27 229,170 235614
Total equity EmeE 323,800 330,244

Gui Pinghu Zhang Yuan
=S RIR
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
EERFHITEF BEATERHNITESF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEERSER

Year ended 31 December 2022 i ZE2022F12A31BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BARETAELE

Exchange  Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other revaluation Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve** losses equity

EiRD AERR BEEf
Bx  EAGR 1] e AHRE  RbEE e kR L i
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR®TR ARMTZ ARET:R

(note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27)

(Ma2e)  (W&27) (Wi 27) (Wa27)  (W&27)
At 1 January 2022 RanE1A1H 94,630 544,223% (7,380)* 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)* 6,217% (357,455)* 330,244
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - - (14,246) (14,246)

Changes in fair value of investment 382 % B3 AR
properties at fairvalue thiough 2 EH 2 IRE

other comprehensive income, NENAEEE

net of tax il - - - - - - 6,755 - 6,755
Exchange differences on translation 5 B E/E AN E R

of foreign operations NERZESR - - 1,047 - - - - - 1,047

Total comprehensive income/(loss)  AEE2ERA /

for the year (BB g - - 1,047 - - - 6,755 (14,246) (6,444)
At 31 December 2022 RA0%E12A318 94,630 544,223% (6,333)* 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)% 12,972% (371,701)* 323,800
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB229,170,000 (2021: * WEHERRB BEGEAMERIRANGS HMbiE
RMB235,614,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. A R % 229,170,000 7T (2021 £ A R #5 235,614,000
JT) °

o The asset revaluation reserve arose from change in use from owner-occupied properties to  ** EEEHRRFHEEANEETERAYEEZERE AR
investment properties carried at fair value. DRBEINRZREMEMELE °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2022 i ZE2022F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
2N
Exchange Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other  revaluation ~ Accumulated Total
capital reserve S reserve reserve reserve reserve** losses equity

EESf

A AR el i wE Rtk it .
RMB000 ’ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
BT T ARETT A ARBTE AR ARBTT  ARETT

(note 27)

At 1 January 2021 R221E1H18 94,630 544223+ (1,901)* 55,902 (3871)* (2022¢ 1,150 (325,748)* 362,363
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = = = = (31,707) (31,707)

Changes in fairvalue of investment &A% Bzt AR
properties at fair value through 2EKREZEE

other comprehensive income, MELREEE

net of tax BB = = - - - - 5067 - 5067
Exchange differences on translation ~ BEIAE BN ER

of foreign operations MERZE = = (5479) - - - - - (5479

Total comprehensive (loss)/income ~ AEE 2 (F8),/
for the year LN+ - - (5479) - - - 5067 (31,707) (32119)

At 31 December 2021 R0 E12A318 94,630 544203 (7,380)* 55,902% (3871)* (20227 6,217 (357455) 330,244
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
LEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 i ZE2022F12A31BILFE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRESRE
Loss before tax BT AT ES 1R (10,500) (33,099)
Adjustments for: BT SIBEL A -
Finance costs BhE A 7 472 685
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 5 (329) (357)
Depreciation of property, M - BB REETE
plant and equipment 13 9,330 12,499
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 15 3,578 4,152
Amortisation of other intangible assets H A E E 17 2,001 2,274
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ RAEEE
properties 14 348 487
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BWFE MERERR
plant and equipment 6 - (am
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A R E - (4,736)
Write-down of inventories to WO T &= Al &35 %A
net realisable value 6 3,375 1,291
Impairment loss of trade and B 5 KA fth R R IE
other receivables REEE 655 69
Impairment loss of other intangible assets Hitn M\ & EREREE 17 1,723 1916
10,653 (14,830)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm, B (17,427) 15,111
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits, BEHER  BARE - e
prepayments, deposits and other receivables % E fth fE Y sk 185w 4 (3 hn) 2,844 (9,047)
Increase in restricted cash PR 38 2 1 N (1,350) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 EUGRIE (380) /A (2,220) 4572
Increase in trade payables B 5 R sRIEE N 5,469 1,499
Increase in other payables and accruals HianERN A N ERT B R 9,946 3,024
Cash generated from operations RSB S 7,915 329
Income tax refunded FRiS TR K - 92
Net cash flows from operating activities WE RS MmE R 7,915 421
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHRSRE
Payments to acquire property, BB 2 - BB MR R SRR
plant and equipment (3,864) (10,097)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB RBHETSHRIE
plant and equipment 67 2,095
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — KB R RS I 55 - 9,165
Interest received B FILE 330 359
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEFEER (FTA)
investing activities ReMEFE (3,467) 1,522

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 i ZE2022F12A31HILFE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 5

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(i ARBTR | ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEETHESRE

Interest paid BFE (472) (685)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFARE D 28 (3,606) (3,763)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEREMRAR S R2 558 (4,078) (4,448)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBRSESEYEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) #H 370 (2,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#3R & NMIRGEEY) 72,057 77,116
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EREBNA) T L - JF58 964 (2,554)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERAEERAEEEY

AT END OF YEAR 73,391 72,057
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESEEUERDN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B & MIRITE R 21 56,112 55,936
Non-pledged time deposits with original WEER R EA=E AR

maturity of less than three months R E HifE K

when acquired 21 17,279 16,121
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HenexkMyRe &

in the statement of cash flows INEEEY 73,391 72,057
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAR&EERER
The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established in the ARAB TR E AR LFBE([HE ) K
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The address of its registered MR AR AR o 5P E i A
office is Block E-2, 8/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu BT &5 MR 24 & =T B% 188 5k 1=
District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. A REGIEE-2FE ©
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of AEBEEREFRH - BRI KA
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC, Australia REREREELBREHTE MIRE
and New Zealand. R o
Information about subsidiaries EEMBEARZER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are as R2022F 12 A3 BARREZH B A A
follows: LB

Place of incorporation or Percentage of
establishment and place equity attributable
of operation/date Fully paid to the Company
of incorporation share capital/ AN T ELRER
or establishment/ registered ZHAL Principal
type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  activities
R 32 35 R 37 3t B %
e ML BRHRRE
R A, R AR EMER HE BiE FEEK
HRTAEEMREER AT The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - Manufacture, processing and
17 June 2003 sale of health food products;
Limited liability company industrial property leasing
i AR 50,000,000 7T HE - MIRHERRE
20036 A 178 R TEMEHRE
BRAF]
MRESBEESTHBARAT  ThePRC RMB1,000,000 100% ~  Retailing of health food
21 April 2015 products
Limited liability company
T AR 1,000,000 ZERBRM
201554 A 218
BRAF
MirfEEEE(BR)BRAR ThePRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Retailing of health food
6 May 2021 products
Limited liability company
FE AR 1,000,0007C TERERR
2021456 H
BRAA
Australia Cobayer Health Food Australia AUD2,000 100% - Trading of food products
Co Pty Ltd. 2 March 2009
Limited liability company
EAH T 2,000387T EmEH
200963 H2H
BRAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREBEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBEHEBARZER (&)

Place of incorporation or Percentage of
establishment and place equity attributable
of operation/date Fully paid to the Company
of incorporation share capital/ ~ RATELER

or establishment/ registered ZESHL Principal
type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  activities
A B L B AR 37 it B

K MRS BRERE,

R BH,/ A& EfE A HE B TEEE

EEHENREERERAR The PRC RMB120,000,000 100% - Investment holding
21 October 2014
Limited liability company

H AR # 120,000,000 7C REZER
2014F10A 21 H
BRAR
Good Health Products Limited New Zealand NZD2,200,002 - 100%  Manufacture, processing and
("GHP") 22 December 1987 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
AT 2,200,002 A PRI T HE  MIMEERER®R
198712 A 22 H
BRAT
Living Nature Natural Products New Zealand NZD14,784,444 100% - Manufacture, and sale of
Limited ("LN") 1987 cosmetics and skincare
Limited liability company products
g 14,784,444 AR PR T HE RH Bk R & E
19876
ARAT
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RBEE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ZEMBRERDEERSEHMAE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all ([BEAESTAAE ) BHENE ST B®R
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting HEA([EBHBEREER]) (RIEMAB
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong BV BREER  BESFTEN(E
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting BETHEA ) KRB RBEBLRETR
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure AIAR BB R HEOI R ERERE - %
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been LU HRERTDIRBELRANEGIRE -
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment BARBRENREMERI - ZFH
properties which have been measured at fair value. These financial BHRERUARKEZS - MRIESHIER
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the SN FTBSEROBREREINTA -

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(@  Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June
2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

(b)  Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any impact

on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
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(©

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which it
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendment that is applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual perio

Effective for annual perio

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts!
Insurance Contracts'>

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
— Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the 2020 Amendments’)**
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the "2022 Amendments’)’
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
2

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

ds beginning on or after 1 January 2023

ds beginning on or after 1 January 2024

? No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

& As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to

align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

g As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply

HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification

overlay set out in this am

ARPAEBSROBRRDA

endment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1
January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHEMBEEKRER 2T BT

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising
from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement
of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required
to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy
disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHHEEREBE

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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ARPAEBSROBRRDA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

24

G

REFBEME (&)

AREENFERRHZTISE2EEZRH
MBEFRZF  SHEEEMKERZE
BB REHHAN 2B - AR ER
ENERBRROEEEXRBREBT 2R
SRNEERRBZETEMS  HERE
FEMHZ2BERT  AIREERAEZ
RENMHEET TBURBFNTNHEA
URAEEREE2 T - BEXEE
ZARENERAMSE2EEREEXA
EEBARZBRRITE(BREMHLEE
RREE 2 ZELBENHITE) °

FEMEEZANEFEDNZ —%
ME2EEEREMEEEZ&S &K
CRENEBREELETRERER
BRBRERGZA—BME2EEMEE
SEERIBENEHOREN -

AEEFEREARRTRBRZEER
i MEBCHEEFEARE  UE
ENAERIBEREABBEREERD
ERTABRBABIER

KU BBRRAEZEABRBELARBEZAER

EEEZRZREBHAREBEE NEAR
EFRBAETOHE -

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F— — BRRSEENBEREREM
for identical assets or liabilities 157 HME CREAR)HE
Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest s WEERMEE (B EE
level input that is significant to the fair value SR AT EER B A A (E s
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly EMEESEYREEHA
gB)
Level3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest F=E — RGERWEEGELTT

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset'’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit
if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) theentity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASHHEME(F)

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.
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(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASHHEME(F)

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Licence

The licence acquired as part of a business combination is valued at fair
value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence with
indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations were
valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings method.
Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful lives and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
14 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Trademarks

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations are valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Trademarks with
finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network

Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and machinery 20 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

ARPAEBSROBRRDA

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and
the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLSs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If

KEEMITA

e 3R 655 13 — TR A] 4OK 98 Bl A1 T RO HE R
ARHEEERSE  BERNFEER
HAFBREERENES  MEHE
ERTBAEHA TEE  YHFSE
SIABABIRIRA ©

ri
FEER AR BIFEME 2 RES
AEE - RAME T AR - R
MABEERMEE - ERSTHA
R IR R A o TRBEE R
it B (BRSSO L f Bt
AR -

RERREEEY
MEARERERMS  RELREF
BYEEF BIER S MEBFRIA KRR
RERSCHBERSNEHR R T
KE BEKDERTIA B—KRAR
SEHLEA=EARNIBH(TRERARE
REFEENRITES) MNBAREREE
BEXRERED °

IEEMBMAEME  RekBREE
BYEREFRRSLABRIZRH 2R
TR (BRERFHRARMEEER SRR
PUNEE) -

e
HEBEEHEBRA B OCEE K
E)RARAEFEAERR L AMERRE
% RIRERRE  EAN A ERE
BEw o

HARNTEBEXN  MERNBEES
HERBRRFEREEREBNREER
EREPRNBE - AHEHEBMEL
MRLIRIREIREE ST ABE AR EK
o

167



Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR MY aE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASHHEME(F)

168

(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health food products
Revenue from the sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health
food products is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
nutritional supplements and packaged health food products.

Some contracts provide customers with rights of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable
consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

ARPAEBSROBRRDA

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e, transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASHHEME(F)

(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed percentages of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of the Group's
subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

No contribution have been forfeited during the year ended 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the MPF Scheme in
future years (2021: nil).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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(CONTINUED)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASHHEME(F)

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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176

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial and industry property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

In addition, the renewal options for leases of plant and machinery with
longer non-cancellable periods (i.e,, 10 to 15 years) are not included as
part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.
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3.

ARPAEBSROBRRDA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The net carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was
RMB32,374,000 (2021: RMB31,927,000). Further details are given in note 16.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The net carrying
amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at 31 December
2022 was RMB132,000 (2021: RMB1,699,000). Further details are given in
note 17.
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178

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. Management
reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At 31 December 2022,
the net carrying value of inventories was approximately RMB75,272,000
(2021: RMB59,983,000). Further details are contained in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different. The net carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses and deductible temporary
differences at 31 December 2022 was RMB12,125,000 (2021:
RMB8,976,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses arising in
Mainland China at 31 December 2022 was RMB188,805,000 (2021:
RMB183,238,000). Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that are
used to make strategic decisions. For management purposes, the
Group operates in one business unit based on its products and
has one reportable segment which is the manufacture and sale of
nutritional supplements and the sale of packaged health food
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Australia
and New Zealand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) hiFE R

Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and the
majority of the non-current assets are located in Mainland China
and New Zealand. The Group's revenue from external customers is
primarily derived in Mainland China and New Zealand.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
markets:

REBE T KE D A BIHFTE A
FEAXBIFRBDEEAMNF
BIRRE R A Pa RS o NSRBI 2R B SR
BEP WA 2B MR
BWEL -

AT RAREREEEN SRS
DT -

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Mainland China ERlETpN 173 172,670 149,946
New Zealand i 85,892 82,726
Australia SR A K25 3,610 5,233
Vietnam Ry 4,839 3,815
Other countries EmBER 7,840 10,605
274,851 252,325
(c) Non-current assets () FRBEE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AREFIT
Mainland China AR B R BE 150,933 147,714
New Zealand paigisl 45,800 22,057
Australia SN FZR 1,357 1,852
198,090 171,623
The non-current assets information above is based on the N EIFERBEEZER TVERNEE
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and deferred tax i B NG E NIEERIEE
assets. = o
(d) Information about a major customer d BEE—BZEEFNER
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer NEFAFEEE —INEEERZS
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year AU S AN E B U 2S5 AY 10% 8 LA
(2021: Nil). (2021 4F : f&) o
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W - HittlkARZEF
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WHERAFEFEAEEEMRENKRERE
allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the value of services RE SIMERNSZERERTIRERS
rendered during the year. B{E(E -
(@) Ananalysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (a) W= Efik A RAE RS 470
T~

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETT

Type of goods or services & =k AR 7 B
Sale of goods HEE M 274,851 252,262
Rendering of services R MR - 63
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2K B R P& 4 2 Wk 4258 274,851 252,325
Timing of revenue recognition U 325 7 52 B P
Goods or services transferred at a point LR S o ok AR T B A BRF R B

in time 274,851 252,325
Total revenue from contracts with customers 38 B & F & 42 U ex 258 274,851 252,325

(b) Performance obligation (b) BHEE

Information about the Group’s main performance obligations is ERANEEXZRATENERSE
summarised below: MR
Sale of goods HEER
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods BHRERINERERET - miE
and terms of credit are generally due within 30 to 90 days from EH—MN R 1&30£ 90K A F
delivery, except for new customers and distributors in Mainland B MR BARENFER K5 i
China, where payment in advance is normally required. Some BN HERFEBENK - BT
contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume BRREPERETRERIFEE D
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to B HRE R T B A 52 PR Il Y AT R AR(E o
constraint.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Performance obligation (Continued) (b)
Sale of goods (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in

the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

RBmERTNFAGHEEBZ

Revenue recognised that was included

in contract liabilities at the beginning B iR
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEm

Wi - AR EF (&)

BHEE (&)

HEER (&)
TRIER A HE A ARE D
MaaEkaBERBEERED
BEMERNEBRK S S

2022
2022

2021
2021
RMB'000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

4,689 7,090

2022
2022

2021
2021
RMB'000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Other income and gains H WA R K=
Government grants* BSHEh & * 6 434 5,867
Rental income HBWA 15 4,768 3,792
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BEKR
plant and equipment F AW ES 6 - 11
Bank interest income RITHEIA 6 329 357
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHB AR AW - 4736
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ [& 3, =58 %58 6 2,324 =
Others Hit 55 331
7,910 15,004

Various government grants have been received for the Group's contribution
to the development of the local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK

* MRS BT QEERNER

BRI BBAHEDE - SIEBHZ
EHBE M ARTTRA IR B ER
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold EEFEHKA

Depreciation of property, Y~ B MR AEITE
plant and equipment*

Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FREEERE

Lease payments not included in the KT AHEAGBHER
measurement of lease liabilities HERIE

Amortisation of intangible assets** I E EE

Auditor's remuneration 1% D 37 A

Research and development expenses 35 F sz

Changes in fair value of investment REMFE 2 AR EEE

properties

Employment benefit expense
(excluding directors’, supervisors’

ETRMMAx (TERES

and chief executive’'s remuneration)*:

Wages and salaries TEMHFH

Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIH R
(defined contribution scheme)*** (EEEHIRETE])

Other benefits HAnEF

Foreign exchange differences, net
Impairment loss of other intangible

I X ERFER
Hip BB ERE

assets**** 51 *ox
Impairment of trade receivables fﬁ%ﬂgﬂﬂl%’\ﬁﬁfﬁ
Write-down of inventories to Mo FEZ I #E5
net realisable value***** TFE e
Bank interest income IRITFIBUA
Government grants T B &

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

HE — B 2R s
REHE R

EFERITHABERMFI) * -

FRBLATE B
A& BB B ABREMR /(GEA) U

Note

P &

TRIBEESEH :
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETIT
111,798 112,231
9,330 12,499
3,578 4152
382 141
2,001 2,274
2,000 2,300
836 1,292
348 487
57,421 56,272
2,397 2438
5,979 5,963
(2,324) 7,254
1,723 1916
655 69
3,058 1,291
(329) (357)
(434) (5,867)
- (4,736)
- an

*x

FRHH

FRRKK

182

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use
assets and employment benefit expense for the year is included in "Cost of
inventories sold”, “Selling and distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and
distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer
to reduce the existing level of contributions.

The impairment of other intangible assets is included in “Other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in “Cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

*%

KRHK

KHHEKR

FAME  BERREGTE SREEER
EURERRENAXG AR RaEME
HRERTFHEEFERA]  [HERKE
R R (TR -

FAERVAERHET ARG BREREMEE
Wask R el SH & AR R TTERIX ] »

AEE(EREE) WESR
HEFKF -

HHRARRIEIRE

Hib BB EREFAKAR
WP e [EfFs] -

mEEAME

=

FA - WBFEENZRFEFALER
REA2ERERTE [SHERA] o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERASITAT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET R ARET T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 15(a) 472 685
8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERITHAHGMH

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BE EMHEA - BB R AMEH 2 383(1)

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong @ b QRNOEFARAT (HEEEEH

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of =B ROIE2E R ENES RITHE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: HEOFEANFHOT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Fees e 240 240
Other emoluments: H A -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ha - 2 EEYER 1,785 2,064

Performance related bonuses FEUERE RS 4,177 1,735

Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIH K 142 157

6,104 3,956

6,344 4,196
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EXE ESRTBAIGM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RAFERBILIEATESZHH
year were as follows: WL :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Mr. Zhang Jitong (note i) SRAERY S5 A (3T 5 60
Ms. Cai Tianchen BRERE 120 120
Mr. Wang Wei FEEAE 60 60
Mr. Yu Bo (note i) FOR S A (BT 55 -

240 240
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RAEE - EME I IEHITES
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil). AT ERIE AL SR (2021 2 - 4E) o

(b) Executive directors and supervisors (b) BITESERES

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e 2H "X BRE
e REWER HEEs HE b
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTR ARRTR ARETR AR%®Tx

2022 20226
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu I - 449 650 35 1,134
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRZ T - 324 2,520 21 2,865
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRR L - 250 216 17 483
- 1,023 3,386 73 4,482
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yu Min St - 266 424 20 710
Ms. Lu Jiachun BEEmLT L - 167 72 17 256
Ms. Chen Xiu BELL - 142 105 16 263
Ms. Wang Ping F¥ut - 187 190 16 393
- 762 791 69 1,622
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE ESRITHEARFHM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) HITEEREE(H)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

& 2R B RIKE
wE REWEN HAEZE  HEHZR HEes
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARETE

2021 20215
Executive directors HOESE
Mr. Gui Ping Hu T - 766 2 38 806
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRZT - 322 651 3 996
Ms. Zhu Feffei KRR T - 257 244 19 520
- 1,345 897 80 2322
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yu Min SELt - 266 462 21 749
Ms. Lu Jiachun Bt - 148 73 19 240
Ms. Chen Xiu BE L+ - 141 118 18 277
Ms. Wang Ping F¥ut - 165 185 18 368
- 720 838 76 1,634
Note: B eE
[0) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 25 January 2022. 0] R2022F1 A 25 BEHEB N IERITE
$ °
(ii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 26 January 2022. (ii) 202241 A26 BEZERBILIFHR
TEE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RAEE  BIBmESHITHAIR
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the R EERREM ML
year.

ARAEBARMAERARTN —E-_—GFH 185



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
and one supervisor (2021: two directors and one supervisor), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid
employees who are neither directors nor supervisors of the Company are
as follows:

TEBRSHFMET
REAFEREESTNE I REMEE
ER—REEQRIF: MBEEER—F
EEE)  HEBFBENATlHESs - B
REE  RARIER T (20214 : )
IEEREENTREETIE THH B
BT

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYEH 3,876 3,958
Performance related bonuses EREREES 1,057 1,038
Pension scheme contributions RN ET BN 29 32
4,962 5,028

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000
HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000

ZZ 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 # 7T 2 1,500,000 75 7T
2,500,001 77T & 3,000,000 78 7T
4,000,001 7T 2 4,500,000 7 7T
4,500,001 77T 2 5,000,000 7 7T

HEINEA THEMNIFES MIFTTHRAH
ReHME THAZMT

Number of employees
ET#¥H

2022
2022 F

2021
2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FR8®
(@ The amounts of income tax expense in the consolidated @ RigtBERkEMEZEKREEPH
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income e Y &5 A

represent:

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETIT

Current BN &S
— New Zealand — 7 (92)
7 92)
Deferred (note 25) JRIE (FF5E25) 3,739 (1,300)
Total tax expense/(credit) for the year REFRBERY (KR)BE 3,746 (1,392)
The income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in Vi N/NET N0 =2 bE ) BV o N = R/NG|
the PRC are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable R FTIS T B ARG R B AR R AT S 7%
profits as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax #3 A1 N 45 511 7 72 9 FE SR B A1) B 259%
rules and regulations of the PRC. New Zealand Income tax is HSE TR R o PR TS RIR
calculated at 28% of the assessable profits of the subsidiaries AU B8 8 OB B A B FE SR TR A
operating in New Zealand. Australia Income tax is calculated at ) 28% T & o MAR T PTISTIE
30% of the assessable profits of the subsidiary operating in PR K F| g8 & & R B B A 7 FERRFi
Australia. FEH 30%5TH ©

ERTEBERHERRR —T-—FER 187



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. PR (&)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss b) BARABREKRIBHHBEATFAE
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the AVARERAE T R E @ BN B
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the TRATE B RIAR S (K e) BHiR
tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation BEEMRAENHEERY (KE)
of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates are as follows: ST BR N 38 A A R B B PR R R 9

FRIOE -
2022 2022 £
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
hE AR AE® AKHIE @t
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 RMB'000 %  RMB'000
ARET T % ARETR ARET T % ARWTT
(Loss)/profit before tax BHA (B8R /FIE (17,877) 8,572 (1,195) (10,500)
Taxatthe statutory taxrates AT H X EMNFHE (4,468) 25.0 2,400 280 (359) 300 (2,427) 23.1

Additional deductible HrEm BN a8
alowanceforresearchand ~~ RFi%E

development expenses (177) 1.0 - - - - (177) 17
Expensesnotdeductible AR EX

for tax 57 (03) 553 6.5 - - 610 (5.8)
Taxlossesand temporary ~ FEESE R AR

differences not recognised R EE 4,796 (26.8) 793 9.2 359 (30.0) 5,948 (56.7)
Tax losses utilised from EHRREREER

prior years MEIEEE (208) 12 - - - - (208) 20

Tax credit at the Group's RASEERHZTE
effective rate HHEES - - 3,746 437 - - 3,746 (35.7)
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

10. FriS#% (&)

(b)  (Continued) o (&
2021 2021 F
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
i ARE i BN &t
RMB000 RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB000
ARETTL b AEET % ARETRT % ARETRT
(Loss)/profitbefore tax FR Al (B1),/ M (27557) (6755) 1213 (33099
Taxat the statutory taxrates AT B Rt EM A (6:889) 250 (1,891) 280 364 300 (8416) 254
Lower tax rates enacted EHEEDMHE
by local authority B ivRd 2) = = = = = v =
Adjustmentsin respectof  SLiBf EIRIANERH B
current tax of previous FfEAZ
periods - - 92 14 - - 92) 03
Additional deductible e BN aTIH
allowanceforresearchand ~ %5i#8
development expenses (306) 1.1 - - - - (306) 09
Expenses not deductible A HIFEX
for tax 120 (04) 607 (9.0) - - 727 22
Taxlossesand temporary BB R ARER
differencesnotrecognised ~ EHER 7061 (256) = = - - 7,061 (213)
Taxlosses utilised from BHRREBAFER
prior years HEEE - - - - (364) (300) (364) 1
Tax credit at the Group's BASEERHEGE
effective rate MFIERY (16) 01 (1376) 204 - - (1392) 42
11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

ARPFEHARNERQAE

—E - FER

BEEeCHATHEZ2022F12 831 H
IEFESIREMAREARE (20214 : ) -
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 946,298,370 (2021:
946,298,370) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

Loss EE
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the parent used in the basic loss

12. BAREBREGEEAEMLSES
IR 518
BRERNBEDNZE AR EEERTE
ANEEAFEEBEERAFEERITER
A% 0 ¥ F 5 £0946,298,370 (2021 4 :
946,298,370) IX T & ©

HE202FE K221 E12A31BIEFEE -
NEBY EBEEEDRTERK

BRERNBBIZATEEAE

2022 2021
2022 F

2021 &
RMB'000

ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT T

ANERERERFTENT AT
EmEDRHE ARGER

per share calculation (14,246) (31,707)
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Shares [:dv)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FIRA B IR EAE BT E R AR
for the purpose of the basic loss e 19 x
per share calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 1% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture
improve- Plantand and Motor
Buildings ments machinery fixtures vehicles Total
53 HEXE  HERME  GERKE hE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTr  ARMTR  ARBTz  ARET:R
31 December 2022 R2022$12A318
A1 January 2022 RanE1A18:

Cost A 97,69 8382 12,132 15,500 11,208 144918

Accumulated depreciation ZifE (24,700) (5,749) (8,833) (10,039) (6,014) (55,335)

Net carrying amount FEE 72,99 2633 3,299 5,461 5,194 89,583
At January 2022, RNRFIAIA

net of accumulated depreciation BHREHTE 72,996 2,633 3,299 5,461 5,194 89,583
Additions b 1,425 277 mi7 278 742 3,839
Transfer to investment properties (note 14~ EEZRENE (Mt 14) (4,067) - - - - (4,067)
Depreciation provided during theyear — AREREHIRATE (Hf3t6)

(note 6) (3,569) (1,603) (799) (1,879) (1,480) (9,330)
Disposals RE - - (31) - (33) (66)
Exchange realignment ErAE - 3 5 7 53 115
At31 December 2022, RANE1A3NA

net of accumulated depreciation BHRETE 66,785 1310 3,638 3,867 4,474 80,074
At31 December 2022: RANEIANA:

Cost A 83,541 8,678 13,331 15,850 11,908 133,308

Accumulated depreciation ZiE (16,756) (7,368) (9,693) (11,983) (7,434) (53,234)

Net carrying amount HEFE 66,785 1310 3,638 3,867 4474 80,074
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

31 December 2021

20215128318

Buildings

BF
RMB000

ARBTT

Leasehold
improve-
ments
HEEE
RMB'000
ARBTT

13. 9% - BB RRE ()

Plant and
machinery
RS Kb
RMB'000
ARBFT

Furniture
and

fixtures
REREE
RMB'000
ARETTT

Motor
vehicles
B
RMB'000
ARETTT

Total

Bar
RMB'000
ARETT

At 1 January 2021: K201 E1H18

Cost AR 112,348 8920 16,729 17,203 6,498 161,698

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (22,424) (4.676) (10,879) (10,102) (5,254) (53,335)

Net carrying amount REFE 89,924 4,244 5,850 7,101 1244 108363
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021E1R18

accumulated depreciation EMNREFTE 89,924 4,244 5,850 7,101 1,244 108,363
Additions S 1,081 55 557 548 5943 8184
Transfer to investment HEREGENE

properties (note 14) (FizE14) (11,548) = = = - (11,548)
Depreciation provided during ~ R EEHRITE

the year (note 6) (FizEe) (6461) (1471) (1,027) (2,018) (1522) (12499)
Disposals RE = = (1,744) = (340) (2,084)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHEAR - (179) = (177) (70) (426)
Exchange realignment &5 AR = (16) (337) 7 61) (407)
At31December 2021, netof 720215128318

accumulated depreciation EHRRFHTE 72,996 2633 3,299 5461 5,194 89,583
At 31 December 2021: R2021%E 124318 :

Cost A 97,696 8382 12,132 15,500 11,208 144918

Accumulated depreciation ZETITE (24,700) (5,749) (8833) (10,039) (6,014) (55,335)

Net carrying amount REFE 72,996 2633 3,299 5461 5,194 89,583
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14.

REW=E

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BRREE 60,229 40,608
Transferred from owner-occupied property BEFEAYWEFF13) &

(note 13) and right-of-use assets (note 15) ERAEEE (M 15)BA

— Cost — AN 4,067 13,352

— Revaluation gains — Bl 9,006 6,756
Fair value losses on investment properties WEYERAREEE (KiE6)

(note 6) (348) (487)
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A3 HREEEE 72,954 60,229

The Group's investment properties consist of two commercial property
and three industrial properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, commercial and industrial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property.

The investment properties are leased to the third parties under operating

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy NREER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAAREEAREMENAAEFE
the Group's investment properties: 4

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
R2022F12A31 AN AAEHBRAUTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WEBMZN EATEE EATITER

#E BAYE BARE 3

(%8—E) (8=8) (B=H)
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR%®TR ARBTRT AR®Tx

Recurring fair value measurement for: R E MDA EE

Commercial property EAmE - - 15,877 15,877
Industrial properties IEME - - 57,077 57,077
i} - 72,954 72,954

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
R2021F 12 31 B AR EFERAUTREE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WEBMEN  EAUBE EXTIEE
WwIE LN BARE H

(F—FB) (B=FE) (F=FE)
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETE

Recurring fair value measurement for: ~ EEHEA AL EHE

Commercial property EAYmE = = 2,630 2,630
Industrial properties TEYE = = 57,599 57,599

- - 60,229 60,229
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRNF-EEE_EEVEALE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: HEMEZE TEEAGERF ==
Nil). (20215 : &) o
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

14. BEYE (E)

ARPFEHARNERQAE

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy:

DERAREBESERTFE=EBOREF
- Ea

Commercial Industrial
property properties
R TEYE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 202151 A1 BHEREEE 2,630 37,978
Transferred from owner-occupied property B¥x B AmE (MisE13)
(note 13) and right-of-use assets (note 15) REAEEE (M5 8A
— Cost — AR = 13,352
— Revaluation gains — EHkEE - 6,756
Fair value losses on investment properties HEYHEARBEEE - (487)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and M2021F12 A31 AR
1 January 2022 202241 B 1 BHREBREE 2,630 57,599
Transferred from owner-occupied property EEEI==L EA(IEAE))
(note 13)
— Cost — B 4,067 =
— Revaluation gains — BfhkEs 9,006 =
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment BEMEARERE(BE)
properties 174 (522)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 AWREE 15877 57,077

—E - FER
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

14. REY*E(E)
REYEMEBEMFERHERNT R EEH
ABIEMBEHI T -

Significant

Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average

SEENMMEFEHEE
2022 2021
2022 & 2021

(CEE-30 EATUBERARE

Commercial property Term and reversion Market rent 1.23t0 2.95 12310220

ElkIES FHRIERE (persgm.and permonth) AR¥1.23tZE ARK123TE
miHe AR¥2957wT ARK2207T
(BABFHK)
Long term vacancy rate 12.0%-15.0% 15.0%
REPZEEX
Discount rate 4.6%-5.2% 4.6%
BRI
Industrial properties Term and reversion Market rent 1.26 to 2.03 1.26 t0 2.03

Ty FHRIESR (persq.m.and per month) AR¥1.26 tE AR®126LE

misiHe AR¥2037xT ARK2037T
(BABFHK)

Long term vacancy rate 12.0% 12.0%
EHEEX

Discount rate
BEIR =

4.5% t0 9.5% 4.5% t0 9.5%

miSHEEAEENORD) BEBIRED

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent would result in a

significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the fair value of the investment properties is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the market rent and an
opposite change in the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate.

EMDAEARENCLL) - ROZE
= R E EBA RN OI) B ER
RAMER R ERBAD CEI) - —
ME  RENEOAR EOSDE
MSESHRER S D RERES
2EERERELRRABL -
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

15. LEASES 15. HE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery,
motor vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of plant and
machinery generally have terms between 1 and 20 years, while motor
vehicles generally have lease terms of 1 year. Other equipment generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group except for prepaid land lease payments,
which are further discussed below:

REBEREBA
AEBGANEEELENE M M
BmABERHEMRBRAIAEEAS
#) o BRAMEE —RMERFIAmEE I
BHEL HHR/0F  MBREZE
THEMGRR > ST SBESTER
R BEREBENEIABRTER1E20
F - MAIENHERBRES1F - HbRE
BRI R 1218 A Sk AR RS AE Bl
RENEERE - —KWME - KRENE
BN REEARIRASKEAINA
TEHRLOHEEEE  BREE— T
ErCHNE

(@) Right-of-use assets: (@) MEAEEE:
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the FAREEFHAEEENERAEBENR
movements during the year are as follows: T

Leasehold

land

Plant and Motor
machinery vehicles Total

HELH

T 5% e 2% " ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

RMBI000
ARETT

Asat 1 January 2021 R2021F1H1H 7,071 12,404 39 19514
Depreciation charge NERY (247) (3,890) (15) 4,152)
Modification of contracts CRIIET = 641 22 619
Transfer to investment BRBRBYE

properties (note 14) (BfzE14) (1,804) = = (1,804)
Disposal as aresult of disposal B HE—FEIHIBA A

of a subsidiary ZHEEE - (414) = (414)
Exchange realignment [ 5 R - (687) 2) (689)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 /318 5020 8,054 - 13,074
As at 31 December 2021 and K221 E 124318 %

1 January 2022 202%1A1H 5,020 8,054 - 13,074
Modification of contracts BREN - 29,155 - 29,155
Depreciation charge ELH (128) (3,450) - (3,578)
Exchange realignment R - 1,334 - 1,334
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H 4,892 35,093 - 39,985

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities:

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

15. HE (&)

AEBEERABEAN (B)

(b) HESME:
FREEAENREERESN
I

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January »1 A1 BRERAEE 8,870 13,463
Disposal as a result of disposal of HE—FNBARZHESIE
a subsidiary - (478)
Accretion of interest recognised during FABERF2IZ 0 (FEE7)
the year (note 7) 472 685
Payments N (4,078) (4,445)
Modification of contracts B HMER 29,155 641
Exchange realignment b 5 EE 1,334 (996)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A 31 BHREREE 35,753 8,870
Analysed into: DA -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETTT
Current portion mENER 4,368 4,285
Non-current portion IEREE S 31,385 4585

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32 to

the financial statements.
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERARBEA (E)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (0 MNIER

follows:

15. #HE (&)

REMEERBEHRLT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERE 472 685
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEENTES L (HiTe6)
assets (note 6) 3,578 4,152
Expense relating to short-term leases and 252 HAFA & K H i FH EFER A
other leases (included in selling and X (GFAEER
distribution expenses and #E SRR S SR ATIE A 2 )
administrative expenses) (note 6) (FFzE6) 382 141
Total amount recognised in profitor loss ~ A EZERH A SR 4,432 4978
The Group as a lessor AEBERAEHBEA

AEERELEHELHEHAEMIER
RAYMER=TBIEDE(M:T14) - HE
BR—RERBELINRES KR ER
BEBRITMRETCHASHE - K
£ B FANmERHES WA AR4763000
JC(20214F : AR #37920007C) 15
BB ISR FES ©

The Group leases its two commercial property and three industrial
properties (note 14) under operating lease arrangements. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB4,768,000 (2021: RMB3,792,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

R2022F 12 A31 8 » NEBR AR
BIEEHEFI VM T BEEEHE R
W ARBIAFAEMN AT ¢

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Within one year —F R 4,511 4111
After one year but within two years —FEMF 3,559 3,824
After two years but within three years MEE=F 2,871 2,791
After three years but within four years = FEPF 2,809 1,970
After four years but within five years MEZRE 2,824 1,842
After five years RELE 10,079 6,524
26,653 21,062
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022912 831H
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE

RMB'000

ARETT

200

At 1 January 2021

R2021F1 A1 H

Cost B 148,820

Accumulated impairment 2FmE (114,329)

Net carrying amount REDFE 34,491
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment 7320214 1 A1 BEIRRZS » k& BHR1E 34,491
Exchange realignment HE 5 8B (2,564)
At 31 December 2021 2021512 431 B 31,927
At 31 December 2021 2021512 4318

Cost B 57,019

Accumulated impairment REHRE (25,092)

Net carrying amount BREDFE 31,927
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment ~ $220224F 1 A1 BEIBR » 1k 25HRE 31,927
Exchange realignment b 5 A 447
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R 202212 A 31 B A K EREFE 32,374
Cost at 31 December 2022: 2022612 A31 BHYRKA :
Cost AR 57,816
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (25,442)
Net carrying amount REEE 32,374

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. IBHE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to GHP
cash-generating unit (the “CGU") for impairment testing:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not recognise
any impairment loss in relation to the goodwill of the GHP CGU (2021:
nil).

The respective carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the GHP cash-
generating unit as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

GHP CGU GHPIR & EA BN

AERERNE
BEREBEHAMBBENEEIOET
GHPIREEA B ([REELEEM]) A
TEREAIR :

HZE2002F 12831 BILEE  AEEN
L GHP IR & & A B AL i B R R
EER (20214 : &) o

2022 % %2021 F12 A 31 H DB F GHP
REEEBMNEENERRABRNT :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARETT

32,374 31,927

The recoverable amount of GHP CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of goodwill, the key
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

FHGHPIR & EA B[ A Al W Bl & R E
ERARREREIEN D F R A
BEREKENRSRERAAENERE
BEE - BRABRINRSREZ T
FEFHERFETHEE -

HREESERANSHESEESNMN -
2022F M 202112 A3 HEREBEE
AR A BERR  REREE KA,
BEMT :

Sales annual growth rate (%) SHE FILRIE (%)

Gross margin (% of revenue)

Long-term growth rate REERE
Pre-tax discount rate R BT RL IR 3

EME(UERRBOLL)

2%-8% 2%-11%
58%-62% 53%-58%
2% 2%

21.4% 18.3%

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. BHE (&)

202

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Discount rates
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant units.

Long-term growth rate
The long-term growth rates used are based on common industry
practice.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of
the cash-generating units, the discount rates and long-term growth rate
are consistent with external information sources.

AERENE (&)
VAT it & 32 A 1T BB ER S A 3R
EREFEAKIEESERERR

EEEMZE

FIA S B T T R W B E IR
PR EAEEREEEA—FRRE
RO TFHEFNE  mREHORERA
RESOTIERRMAFIEH -

BB =
PRABEER R RHIGHIE  YRREHE
(VA ES el e

REERE
PAARMIERETIIA—RITESARE
% o

ERRSELEMMSEE  BIREXR
EHERINEIZREMAE THEER
SRS B RIR— 2K -
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hiv B EE
Distribution Customer
Trademarks network Licence relationships Total
[ DEER FAR EFRRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETn AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR¥ETr ARETxn
note (b) note (b) note (a)
Kzt (b) Bit5E (b) Mz (a)
31 December 2022 R2022%12 8310
Costat 1 January 2022, net of 1202241 B 1 HRIAA -
accumulated amortisation IR 25tk 7,188 1,132 262 155 8,737
Amortisation provided during FRatiREE (fite)
the year (note 6) (1,652) (325) - (24) (2,001)
Impairment during the year (note 6) & AJRI{E (FT5E6) (1,369) - (221) (133) (1,723)
Exchange realignment 1, F9%8 54 5 3 2 64
At 31 December 2022, net of R202% 128318
accumulated amortisation and Mk Bt RAE
impairment 4,221 812 44 - 5,077
At 31 December 2022; R202F 12318
Cost B 21,498 3,360 1,060 1,449 27,367
Accumulated amortisation ZHEHELRE
and impairment (17,277) (2,548) (1,016) (1,449) (22,290)
Net carrying amount BREFE 4,221 812 44 - 5,077
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

17. HtwEFEEE (E&)

Licence and
Distribution health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates  relationships Total
Bz ARzt arcs Fa]E BEPAE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AR®ETT ARETT ARETR
note (b) note (b) note (a)
Bt 3% (b) Pt 2 (b) Bt 3E @)
31 December 2021 R2021%E12H318
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of R2021%F1 A1 BRI -
accumulated amortisation ks 25t 20,044 1,581 916 2210 24751
Amortisation provided during FREtHREE (o)
the year (note 6) (1,759) (346) (3) (166) (2,274)
Impairment during the year (note 6) S AJRIE (FT5E6) (1,628) - (288) - (1,916)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR (8,720) - (302) (1916) (10938)
Exchange realignment 3L (749) (103) (61) 27 (886)
At 31 December 2021, net of R2021F 12318
accumulated amortisation and Mkr R EESE KRB
impairment 7,188 1,132 262 155 8,737
At 31 December 2021: R2021F12A318 ¢
Cost B 7R 21,195 3314 1,044 1437 26,990
Accumulated amortisation and KETEELORE
impairment (14,007) (2182) (782) (1,282) (18,253)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7,188 1132 262 155 8737
Notes: MigE -
(a) EFBEERENR

(a) Impairment testing of customer relationships
The LN CGU recognised an impairment loss of RMB133,000 in relation to customer
relationships in the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

HE202F12A3BLEFE  INBESEL
BAURREZTFBAEREBHREBBARE
133,000 7T (2021 4F © &) o
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations in 2016 are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives because the products with the trademarks are expected
to generate net cash flows indefinitely.

The licence acquired as part of the business combination in 2016 is regarded as
having indefinite useful lives because the licence term can be renewed annually and

is expected to generate net cash flows indefinitely.

The trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are allocated to the LN CGU

for impairment testing:

The net carrying amounts of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

allocated to the LN cash-generating units are as follows:

17. Hth\EEEE (&)

BsE : ()

(b)  HAERERFHANEREENRERR
016 FEREL A Hf — 82 AT IR IR
BRABERNERAFY AAEHERER
TRt BRWESFRENR

016 FERER A Hf — &P P KEB O RF AT &
HRRBEAERNERFY  BAFAIEN
SFEENRESRRABESFRER

BEERERFHOHERITAIZ
INIR S EE BN AMERERR :

DT

DETINEEELAEMNEMBAEEERER
FHNETEENREFENT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Trademarks Bz 88 1,438
Licence Bl 44 261
132 1,699
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
(Continued)
The values of the trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are assessed
annually by using the relief from the royalty method calculated based on a five-year
cash flow projection approved by senior management. The fair values of the
trademarks and the licence were equal to the future royalty savings resulting from

ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, including royalty saving rates, long term growth rates and
discount rates used in the annual impairment testing of the trademarks and licence
with indefinite useful lives in 2022 are as follows:

Sales annual growth rate (%) SHEF IR (%)
Royalty saving rates (%) FEETREE A B ERAYE (%)
Long term growth rate REERE

Pre-tax discount rate FRAE AR IR X

The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate over the forecast
period. It is based on past performance and management's expectations of market
development.

The royalty saving rates used are with reference to comparable intangible assets and
the related royalty rates that the buyers typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external information

sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of RMB1,590,000 in relation to the trademarks and licence of the LN CGU (2021:
RMBT1,916,000 in relation to trademarks and licence of the LN CGU), arising from the
business combinations.

206

17. Hth B EE (&)

BeE : ()

(b) HMOBEREAFHNELEENRERNA
(&)
AEERERFHOHERITAIESFRA
R RTREGE BB RETIME  AHEDY
AREEREEEHANTFRENER
Bl BERFAENRIAEBENEEEEE
£ BRI R B AL

2022 - BIRRR  BREARERERFH
P9I R 7F AT 78 1O R R E DRI SR PR Y
Rt AR  REERR LR K

AR
LN
Trademark Licence
[l FFRIRE
29%-9% 2%-9%
0.10% 0.05%
2% 2%
26.9% 28.8%

HEFEREYRIRHHAMAN TIHFE
RX - HERDENBEERREREHN
BERMNTRE

FIERAR ST REREHNRH2BAEL
BREVEERETREAEREERT XN
MWBRETEERE -

FAT ER P O BA 3R 3 75 Bk 751 A B 3R 3R 3P [ Bk £24R
BETHRERR

SETFEERRINEEREINEER FRE—
B o

HE202F 1231 BILFE - AEERERE
LN IR & B 4 By P43 KR T PT 78 8 B MO (B 165
B A R #1,590,0007T (2021 4F : EINIR & E
EEMEIERFAEGRAHARE 1916000
JT) °
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BTSRRI AL

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

18. INVENTORIES

18. FE&

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Raw materials B R 29,407 24,196
Work in progress pa 412 611
Finished goods RUAK o 45,179 34,589
Goods merchandise RS 274 587
75,272 59,983

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. EZBWFIEA

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARET T

Trade receivables B 5 R FOR 30,858 28,587
Impairment A (2,674) (2,361)
28,184 26,226

In general, the entities in the Group have no credit period granted to the
retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have been issued.
The credit period offered by the Group to its distributors is generally 30
to 90 days, and the credit term granted to TV shopping platforms is 30
days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK

mEME  ARENERIRTTER
FEEH  —KHABRZNAXM - K
SERHETOHEBONEER -—RA30X
EOX RRTERBYTFENEEN
BOK BMEREE R Bie
fe ENLEXAMRARENE SR
REEZEZNHEFPAHR  ASEME
BEXEEETRR - ARELERER
YR IBEHRTA T ERmcEL
EEIEW - BEHRUFA/RE °
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

208

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

19. EZ BRI ()

RBEPRZBEZ AR RNGBRERS
HE R FIRR BRI DTN T

2022 2021

2022 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

Within 1T month 1EA A 14,078 16,019
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MEAZE31@A 11,739 8,159
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3EAEE 1,983 1,306
Over 1 year HBid 1 F 384 742
28,184 26,226

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

At beginning of the year F4] 2,361 2,499
Impairment losses accrued (note 6) ZEREEE (H5e) 655 69
Amount written off as uncollectible ESENER Bk G e t-c] (371) (44)
Exchange realignment BE 5 A 29 (163)
2,674 2,361

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

NE&HE B HERAREREETRED
- U EBEHMEEEE - BEXHE
REGHEUEBREANZ EEF 5 84A
A (BlE ~ BRI - P BRI RFR
URERRREMERERREANRE
HEMWAPARET - LT ERREER
AR EREEMAREBHAS
MABBESFE - BRI ER KL E
REBANASERAIEEN - —RM
5 BZRWHIRMESEE —FRE
AR RBIATT/AZ A T AN
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. EZEWFIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TRV ANEBFABREEREAENE
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SEWZENEERBEHKA
As at 31 December 2022 720229 12H831H

Past due

Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months

B 1EAA 1E3@A 3EAME

Expected credit loss rate TEHIEEEEX 4.0% 8.8% 11.4% 55.4% 8.7%
Gross carrying amount BIRME(E 14,658 12,873 2,006 1,321 30,858
Expected credit losses JEHR=E K18 579 1,135 228 732 2,674
As at 31 December 2021 202112 A31 H

Past due
781 5

Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months

BIHR 1EAMA 1ZE31EA 3M@AE

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX 36% 8.6% 10.9% 52.9% 8.3%
Gross carrying amount IR (A 16,616 8,931 1,466 1,574 28,587
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE 597 772 160 832 2,361
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. EFRIE - REREMERR
RECEIVABLES iz |

2022 2021
2022 F 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREET T

Deposits and other receivables e M HE MU ERIE 4,799 4175
Prepayments SEANE 10,939 7,958
Value-added tax recoverable A] Ui [B] 3 (8 7 288 3,082
Right-of-return assets REEEE 44 52
16,070 15,267
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial L4 B A& EE S HA SR B o BT AR AS
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which BHSREEN R E R E DTN
there was no recent history of default. FEUHIA -
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BERAEEEY

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARBTT

Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTEHEER 57,462 57,007
Time deposits T HATF =K 17,279 16,121
74,741 73,128

Less: Pledged deposits B BT K - (1,071)
Restricted cash ZRHFEE (1,350) =

Cash and cash equivalents B MBS EEBY 73,391 72,057
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

21. BERBEEEY (H)

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

Denominated in RMB AAREE 32,627 37,959
Denominated in NZD AR PR RS T EHE 30,166 21,064
Denominated in HKD LA ITTEHE 2,273 2,081
Denominated in AUD LURITEHE 6,008 6,689
Denominated in USD AETEHE 2,242 4,238
Denominated in EUR LARRTEHE 75 26
Total st 73,391 72,057

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. As
at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash included an amount of
RMB1,350,000 (2021: Nil) which was frozen by the People’ s Court due to
lawsuits.

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK

ARBEWIFR B LIRIEREMERE - R
- AR B R B BE SINE B IR R B N 4
- EEMMIEETERTE AKERE
BRREEFINEXRBORITHARE
RBMREMER -

RITRSBREBEFARTTARAXRIRZE
FEFE - CHETHEFERAEETRAE
R BE—HBZE=@A BUARAEEH
BN IR & FH oKk - WIHABEE BT RE
KRR - RITHEHR R B ER TR
EREEEEROBYWEENLENR
17 MR2022F 12 31 B XBRHFIEEH
BHEFRAEARERENSEARE
1,350,000 7T (2021 £F : &) o
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22. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22. ESEMNFIE

RBERRNEHENHRBAGRERR
HY) BRER AT AN T -

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within 1 month MEARA 10,541 7,155
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MEAZE31@A 9,907 7,544
Over 3 months but within 1 year TEAZE1F 361 217
Over 1 year BiE1F 719 744
21,528 15,660

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit terms are
normally between 30 and 90 days.

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BORNRERREREEH —RA30

FEOOK e

HiBARERETER

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFTT
Accrued payroll & 515 B 15,743 14,702
Contract liabilities aHAE @) 13,923 4,689
Other payables H fth ST /I (b) 5,274 5927
Refund liabilities BRREE 4,752 2,666
Other tax payables HibpESFIE 1,409 1,500
41,101 29,484
Notes: BiaE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a AHBEFHBWT -

)5 P W ER O 52 H 24 K

Short-term advances received from customers

2022
2022

RMB’000
ARET T

13,923

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARBFT

4,689

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

b HEENFALETE o
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24. PROVISION

24, BE

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

At 1 January ®1A1H 740 777
Increase in discounted amounts arising from  BER @5 M I% 0,2 BR IR 58

the passage of time 22 22

Exchange realignment [E 5 32X 12 (59)

At 31 December M®12H31H 774 740

GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a

property lease agreement.

AEBE—RFHBARGHPIREYMEEE
A EREE -

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. EEHIE
@@  Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ WNER - EEEPBRAREZD
statement of financial position and movements during the year FERTBEEARESEFEOT ¢
are as follows:
Write-down Impairment
Lease of of trade Accrued Taxable
liabilities  inventories receivables expense loss Total
ESEWR
HESE MAZE RERE ZitX ERHER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TRE ARBTrn AR%®TR AR%TR ARETT AR®TR
31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
At 1 January 2022 N2 E1A1H 2,485 1,051 534 1,421 3,485 8,976
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to RENIBE(HR)/
profit or loss during the year st AREERE 7,085 (618) (12) (108) (3,420) 2,927
Exchange realignment [ 1 A% 268 (6) 7 18 (65) 222
At31 December 2022 2025124318 9,838 427 529 1,331 - 12,125
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25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25, EEHIE (&)
(@  Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ RFER - ST RARERD
statement of financial position and movements during the year REFRBBEEARESHFBOT
are as follows: (Continued) (48)

Write-down  Impairment
Lease of of trade Accrued Taxable

liabilities inventories receivables expense loss Total

HERE HAER  FURE 2itHx  ERHEBE 5t
RMB000 RMBI000 00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETL ARETL ARETR ARETL ARETL ARETR

31 December 2021 M2021€ 12431 R
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A18 3,588 1,145 383 597 4117 9,830
Deferred tax (charged)/credited RERIBE (08),/

to profit or loss during the year AREEFIE (874) 9) 188 909 (341) 127)
Exchange realignment 0 A (229) (85) 37) (85) 91) 727)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%F 128318 2485 1,051 534 1421 3485 8976

(b)  Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated b) REA - e WBIR AR ERT

statement of financial position and movements during the year BELEHIBEBEREFEOT

are as follows:

Fair value Fair value

adjustments  adjustments

Right-of-  arisingfrom arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties  subsidiaries

REME LRHELF

EEW EEHW
EREEE AAERE  AAERE ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARETR AR%TR

At 1 January 2022 M202F1A18 2,242 2,039 555 4,836
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss REARGABRRNELHE

during the year 7,155 - (489) 6,666
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive  FASERIF1R H A 2 E ez

income during the year BT A - 2,252 - 2,252
Exchange realignment 0 % 268 - 9 277
At 31 December 2022 m202F12A318 9,665 4,291 75 14,031
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25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25, EEHIE (&)
(b)  Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated b) RER - EHEEMIEIRARERD
statement of financial position and movements during the year BEEFHBEEREEHFBOT
are as follows: (Continued) (%8)

Fair value Fair value

adjustments adjustments

Right-of- arising from arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties subsidiaries

BEME WENELRE

EER EEN
EREEE AnERAE  ArEEE it
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000
ARBTL  ARETT ARETT ARETR

At T January 2021 R %1 A18 3322 350 3827 7499
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RERT ABZH

during the year EEHE (868) = (559) (1427)
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive A5 R HIBR £ 4 2 I UNES 69

income during the year EEHE = 1689 - 1689
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRBAR = - 2617) (2617)
Exchange realignment Tk (212) = (96) (308)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E 12318 2242 2,039 555 4836
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of REBNPEREARBEERAR
RMB188,805,000 (2021: RMB183,238,000) that will expire in one to & 188,805,000 7T (2021 4F = A R #&
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax 183,2380007C ) I$ I —E A F A &
assets of RMB47,201,000 (2021: RMB45,810,000) have not been i AR SHAR R ER TR A o I A
recognised in respect of the losses as they have arisen in A E IR AR 47 201,000 7T (2021
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not F: AR¥458100007T) 1% RIE
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against ERIEERE - HERERE R — B
which the tax losses can be utilised. RS EENHREAR - B E

A% F] BE RS A FE SRTA N P 0K 36
WIS RS

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. fRA
Shares B3

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Issued and fully paid: BT RABEHE
946,298,370 (2021: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 i% (2021 £F :
ordinary shares 946,298,370 i% ) & 3 A% 94,630 94,630
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27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 135 to 136 of the financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

28.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in the
PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are made. The
statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable and may be
used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issues by way of
paid-up capital.

Capital reserve

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount arising
from the excess of the par value of the shares from the paid-in
capital contribution.

Other reserve

This resulted from the acquisition of non-controlling shareholder.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to the investment properties carried at
fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB29,155,000 and RMB29,155,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements modifications for
plant and equipment. (2021: right-of-use assets of RMB641,000;
lease liabilities of RMB641,000 in respect of lease arrangements
modifications for plant and equipment).

27. f##E
REBRAFERBEFENFEESSE
D EHESPR I IEHRKR S 135 % 136 B4R
BREBREHERER -

28.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EERREE

RIBFEDER - FERBEAET QA
AEELFBED KA - ASEBIR
R B AT RIEE E RO RR AR 1R
BREITARFHES ATAR
TR DIk - Al BRI HER
FA BB AT A A B E A%
1T

EXfEE
1HRA & BIR B AR A B D
EERERSBELR o

Htf# e
RU BB IEE R MEL -

BEEEMHE
BESHFHBEANKETIERY
XETRE/RANEBIIRIKE
YIRMESE

REREREBRMEE

(a)

FEHFREXRS !
RAFE @ SEERRENEER

BEmmE AEBFERBEEER
HEABMNIERSEMO R AEAR
#% 29,155,000 7T & A R # 29,155,000
(20215 : B E RS ENHEE
ZHHERIME - FREEEARK
641,0007T * HE A EA R 641,000
JT) °
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

28. ZEBREREBRME (FE)

(b) BMEZHRESH :

2022 2022 F
Lease
liabilities
HESE
RMB’000
AR® TR
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 12 A31H 8,870
Changes from financing cash flows BMERERELH (3,606)
Modification of contracts B HER 29,155
Exchange realignment bE S 1,334
At 31 December 2022 72022 12 H31H 35,753
2021 20214
Lease
liabilities
HEBE
RMB'000
ARETTT
At31 December 2020 72020512 A 31 B 13,463
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREEE (3,763)
Modification of contracts A RMER 641
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHB AR (478)
Exchange realignment PE H, A2 (993)
At31 December 2021 72021512 31 H 8,870

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

(0 HERSRHARE

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

Within operating activities LEEBN 382 141
Within financing activities BhEEB)A 3,606 3,763
3,988 3,904

MRAEMERBARAR —T__FFHK
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29. COMMITMENTS 29, ZEKiE
The Group had no capital commitments at the end of the reporting 7N £ B A 3y 4 HE R I 48 R A& HE (2021
period (2021: Nil). FE) -

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 30. BHEAIE
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial MR ZANBA TS SR R B M B D s 3X B4 -
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related REBNANEERNEBE T ETUTR
parties during the year: Z °
(@  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (@ ATEEBFTEETEEBASNIEH:

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Basic salaries and bonus BEREHE RIEL 5,181 5,269
Social insurance and housing fund tHerRkEEAESR 165 147
5,346 5416

(b) (b)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Purchase of a car from the controlling A1 ARAR RIS B — 8 5=

shareholder - 1,900
The transaction price was determined based on external valuation R 5B TIARIESE S ERD Nanjing
by Nanjing Guotong Second-hand Motor vehicle Appraisal co., Guotong Second-hand Motor vehicle
LTD, an independent valuer. Appraisal Co LTD# 1T RN ER(H1EE
E o
There was no outstanding balance with related parties as at 31 HZE2022F 128318 - BHEREZBHH
December 2022 (2021: Ni). 77 4R (2021 6F - 4E) -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. REFESNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHRNSHESm T AREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: s
2022 2022 fF
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost Total
TR o8 B AN T
HEEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥ TR
Trade receivables E 5 WA 28,184 28,184
Financial assets included in prepayments, SFAFENFOE « e REM
deposits and other receivables NFIEN S REE 4,799 4,799
Cash and cash equivalents BHehBESEED 73,391 73,391
Restricted cash SRHIH & 1,350 1,350
107,724 107,724
Financial liabilities o= =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R SH PR AN 5T
NEeEaE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR® TR
Trade payables B SRR 21,528 21,528
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A E fth e~ 0B & fE 51 & A
and accruals MEemaE 5,274 5,274
26,802 26,802
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. REHE SNSRI A (E)
(CONTINUED)
2021 20215
Financial assets ERMEE

Financial
assets at

amortised cost Total

g Iy

MEREE a5
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT

Trade receivables Z 5 W IR 26,226 26,226
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATBN RO « ke RHEAM
deposits and other receivables FEBGRIER & B EE 4,175 4,175
Cash and cash equivalents BEMESEEY 72,057 72,057
Pledged deposits BEFEZE 1,071 1,071
103,529 103,529
Financial liabilities SEMEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total

YR SH P AT

MERRIE mast
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT

Trade payables B S ENFIE 15,660 15,660
Financial liabilities included in other payables 5t A ELth fE < 2/ 18 & B 51 &
and accruals WEeF A&
5927 5,927
21,587 21,587
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written risk management policies and

guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to analyse

and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to market risk,

including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate

risk. As the directors of the Company consider that the Group's exposure

to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any

derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group's risk

management objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising the

potential adverse effects of these risks on the Group by closely

monitoring the individual exposure as follows:

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group’s
management continuously monitors the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit rates assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a number of customers which had no recent
history of default.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

ARPEBARNAERAT —T-_FF3If

2. SRERER

ZER B0 M AT AR E R R B IR BROR Mk
3l R EXEEMBITEH 2
No bl 5T 45 i A i 3 AN 5% [ P T S O T 5
R BREERR RBESRAR -
SMNERREAERER ARARBES
RAAEEME SN T SRR EFN R
EKF - AEEY EEREAITERE
it TRAEEh Ak - AEENERE
BREELBRREZAENEBEIEE
ATEI R - R FRRE AN EE
VEETHNZE

(a) FEERR
AEBMNEERREZEREHEES
NEMEKZIE BEEREEE
Ak - ANEEEIE B E TR
K ARBRERENZ BT E) IR O 360
BAETS o BN » REBES REH
KRB B ER W EEEE -
VAREAR 7R AT Y o] 2 BERHR B 5908,
BEEE HEME @  A2FEER
AASENEERR D AR TEE -

R MRTESNEERRAR
FRRARRZHF REBRESTR
WL TREENRORT -

ARELMEAEROZEES -
B 5 R D B S E
KRB -

BEAEEE S EWFIBHEED
FEERBANE— T TEHESNHT
FE19e

(b) RBETER
AEEHRR R EREIE AR KA
HRPpESFR  URETEER
MEER - UERERTHRRS
M EUS £ 2 & B - SRy
AEERE  WENREHRDE

== <t
SER -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

222

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
financial liabilities and lease liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

32. SREMEE (F)

Total

contractual

Carrying
amount

undiscounted
cash flows

ALRARER
RERE

RMBI000
ARBTT

REE
RMB'000

ARETT

Asat31December2022  A2022%F12F31H

(b)

On demand

ARBFR

RBES R (&)
TERFIAEEeRABELHER
BB TERNIEBER - TRIIER
BERBENRBRERSRER
ZETRABRRHEERGBIR
BAKEREANKNKEBHD
BeooRAELRHEERENIIHA
TyIR 1% E &K B HEE °

21,

Within
one year

Over
one year

—FR
RMBI000
ARETT

—FHE
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000

Lease liabilities HEAE 35,753 65,033 - 4,580 60,453
Trade payables Z 5 ENZE 21,528 21,528 - 21,528 -
Other payables HbfERFIE 5,274 5,274 4,477 797 -
62,555 91,835 4,477 26,905 60,453
As at 31 December 2021 K201 124318
Lease liabilities HERE 8,870 9,542 - 4,41 5,301
Trade payables B SRR 15,660 15,660 = 15,660 =
Other payables H i e 708 5927 5927 5,350 577 -
30457 31,129 5,350 20478 5,301
Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial () ERMIAAARERANEER
instruments
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash EREFMREeRREEEY &
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets SEWFIE - EHENFIA - 5TA
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial TARTFRIE © & R E A EUGRIEHR)
liabilities included in other payables and accruals. The differences SREE  FTAEMEKIERE
are immaterial since the fair values are mainly equal to their FEANSRAENARE AR
carrying amounts. AABRB EENEERE @ =
BAWTERX o
Foreign currency risk (d) SMER B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 45% (2021:
33%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst approximately 80% (2021: 85%) of costs were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies. The Group also
has certain bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

REBA TR ZERAHNERE -
FERE R bR R A4S & BB T RE & HE LA
SNEEEESEMES - NEEHES
%A rh #745% (2021 £F : 33%) A{EEH
HELLBENINEEE LN EE (B
275 - 1 %)80% (2021 4F : 85%) Y
AN AABRE BRI T RE B HE 2 51| o AR
EEEAS TUAAERT =T
KB TTEHERRITHE R o
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32. SREMEE (H)

SN L B (48 )
TREFNERBEM BB RISTE
HIBRT « AR HRRk A RIS 5 4
FEMT - £ RTRETHES
ABALE B Y A EERTAEE
(REUETRAREHENS R
TE) REXHERE (RREYE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates against NZD, USD, AUD and HKD, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (arising from
EUR and RMB denominated financial instruments) and equity (due
to changes in the fair values of forward currency contracts).

BaARAERS) -

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
RMBrate loss before tax in equity*
ARBER e A 518 Rz,
EH(TH) 2,/ (RD) (R ) *
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
2022 2022
If NZD weakens against RMB WA T AR E (1%) (4) 903
If NZD strengthens against RMB {4 Fa R T % A R EFHE 1% 4 (903)
If USD weakens against RMB METHAREEE (1%) (3) -
If USD strengthens against RMB {3 7T 3 A R EEFHE 1% 3 -
If AUD weakens against RMB R AREEE (1%) (13) 6
If AUD strengthens against RMB i3 7T 3 A R & FHE 1% 13 (6)
If HKD weakens against RMB MB T ARKEE (1%) (25) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB i 7T 3 A R EE FHE 1% 25 -
If EUR weakens against RMB MBI AR (E (1%) - -
If EUR strengthens against RMB  fil BT 3 A R EE FHE 1% - -
2021 20214
If NZD weakens against RMB WA T AR E (1%) ©) 915
If NZD strengthens against RMB M4 PE B8 T 3 A R EEFHE 1% 6 (915)
If USD weakens against RMB METHAREEE (1%) 7) -
If USD strengthens against RMB {3 7T 3 A R EEFHE 1% 7 =
If AUD weakens against RMB BRI AREEE (1%) (14) 4
If AUD strengthens against RMB i3 7T 3 A R EE FHE 1% 14 )
If HKD weakens against RMB MB T ARKEE (1%) (25) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB i 7T 3 A R EE FHE 1% 25 =
If EUR weakens against RMB THET AR (E (1%) - -
If EUR strengthens against RMB  fid BT 3 A R EE FHE 1% = =
@ Excluding retained profits * TEIEREFE
ARPEBHERHAERRA —T-_FFR 223
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

224

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to
pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried at prevailing
market rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as
these bank balances are all short-term in nature.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. The Group'’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and 30%. Net
debt includes lease liabilities, trade payables, other payables and
accruals. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

32. SRREMEE ()

(e)

(f)

R E R
AEE T EHBRBIRE RSN X
R 2 BEMRITFRMIRITAERR

ZBRERENERAR - A AR
HZERITEROBREEE - %R

FEapN SENE e

EXxERE

ARBEEAEREZ ZEABBERRE
AEBEZ BB LN RERIZR
BARERXFHRBERTERBRR
EBE&KL -

REEEREERERE  WIREL
ERIREC RAEEERRIEE (E
AREB ] REA B M RIRE « MR
FUREBRRARREITHR - AEET
ZAEAINER M INE) B R Z2 KRR o
B 22022% 128318 &2021%F12
A3WBLEEE - EREENBEE -
BRI EF R EES) o

AEEFREEABL R (AIER
FRERACHABREANERFHE)
ERERN - AEENPREBEE
BELEREZFTNT10%ZE30% - &
BFEREREARE BHEMNR
A HihEA BN ETER - 3R
EHRNEEAGBLLERNT :

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

12A31H 12H318

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREFTT

Lease liabilities (note 15) HE & & FE15) 35,753 8,870

Trade payables (note 22) B 5 e IR (fisE 22) 21,528 15,660
Other payables and accruals (note 23) Hi e RB K ERTE A

(B¥zE23) 41,101 29,484

Net debt ERHER 98,382 54,014

Equity attributable to owners of the parent £} A ]G A JE(G#E2E 323,800 330,244

Capital and net debt BARRERFE 422,182 384,258

Gearing ratio BEBMBLE 23% 14%
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 33. HEWRSEE
There has been no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group. NEBENEE AHIBREIE -
34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AATBHERRE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of the financial position of the RIPEHAK - BEAR T ERRERN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRI

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET R ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRG 3,049 8,209
Investment properties wEYZE 15,877 2,630
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIRE 151,192 151,192
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 170,118 162,031
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Inventories FE 2,037 2,585
Trade receivables E 5 REIGIR 1,964 726
Due from subsidiaries N ENGIE /S 216,034 194,775
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfHFRIE ~ 24 N E b & W FIE 10,398 7,185
Tax recoverable AT Y B 7 18 - 2,542
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEEY 32,838 39,291
Pledged deposits EEfRe - 1,071
Total current assets MBEERE 263,271 248,175
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE

Trade payables B SN FIR 936 2,288
Due to subsidiaries FER B R R FE 139,465 115,074
Other payables and accruals H fth FE (T RIB K BT & 17,126 16,134
Total current liabilities MEN A BB 157,527 133,496
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 105,744 114,679
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABAR 275,862 276,710

ERTEBERHERRR —T-—FER 225
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34, ARQ BB T ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEF

Deferred taxes liabilities FEFIEBE 2,251 =
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EERE 2,251 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 273,611 276,710
EQUITY R

Share capital % 94,630 94,630
Other reserves H b f#E 178,981 182,080
Total equity AR 273,611 276,710
Note: B 5E -

A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: RARMEMBEHEBEZNT

Statutory Asset
Capital surplus revaluation Accumulated

reserve reserve reserve losses Total

EERER BEEM

B s i RitER st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AR®TIT AR¥ETT ARETT AR%T:Z

At 1 January 2021 202151 818 544,223 47,315 101 (367,565) 224,074
Total comprehensive loss for the year — £E A & [H 5184258 - - - (41,994) (41,994)
At 31 December 2021 2021128318 544,223 47,315 101 (409,559) 182,080
At 1 January 2022 R202F1 818 544,223 47,315 101 (409,559) 182,080
Total comprehensive loss for the year — 4F X2 [ 5 18 4258 - - 6,755 (9,854) (3,099)
At 31 December 2022 R202212A31H 544,223 47,315 6,856 (419,413) 178,981

35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 35. HEGZESBMBEHRER
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for REMBHmKRBESEN 202343 30
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023. Bt R -
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hFPBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling &8k B B HIZ K& B X SRR WAL E 5 (K8
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the )M AEBFA A BN B FEE 2 EEME
published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is set 2 B & M IFIEREREZ &M T o

out below.

RESULTS

ES

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20205 2021 5 2022 &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBO000O  RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
REVENUE Wzs 453,199 322613 296,525 252,325 274,851
Cost of sales SHEERK AR (204,229) (165,775) (125,821) (113522)  (114,856)
Gross profit EF 248970 156,838 170,704 138,803 159,995
Other income and gains HAWA R 9,053 8,673 12,735 15,094 7,910
Selling and distribution expenses HE RKHEEY (225,550) (185,436) (132,898) (105,984) (108,603)
Administrative expenses THRAEX (79,768) (85,187) (77,571) (70,217) (63,924)
Other expenses HihFE (76,465) (72,841) (15,857) (10,110) (5,406)
Finance costs BB A (3,363) (3,601) (1,275) (685) (472)
Share of profits of a joint venture HME—BEERENE = = = - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX B AR, (E518) (127,123) (181,554) (44,162) (33,099) (10,500)
Income tax (expense)/credit FER (), % 14,286 (13,104) (5,443) 1,392 (3,746)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EFE,/ (EE) (112,837) (194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246)
Attributable to: FEBER
Owners of the parent (SYNSIEZZ=PN (112,837) (194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246)
Non-controlling interests FEE R R - - - - -
(112,837) (194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246)
MRPEBHARHERAF —T-_FFR 227
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L FEHBEHRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE -BERFEERER
INTERESTS

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

20184 20194 20204 2021 5 2022 &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETT AR®TT ARBTT AR®TxR

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 740,981 542,720 449731 390,112 436,987

TOTAL LIABILITIES raffk (137,427) (131,570) (87,368) (59,868) (113,187)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ES g = - . _ _

TOTAL mEt 603,554 411,150 362,363 330,244 323,800
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